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Selected key consolidated financial data

Year ended December 31,
02 20 2010 2009 2008

Consolidated data
Revenues {a) 28994 29,813 29878 27132 25392
EBITA {a} {b) 5283 5 860 5726 5390 4953
Earnings attnbutable o Vivend) SA shareowners 164 2681 219 830 2503
Adjusted net mcome {b) 2,550 2 952 2,638 2585 2735
Financial Net Debt {b) c) 13419 12,027 80713 9 566 8,349
Total equity {d} 21,436 22070 78,173 25,968 26 626

of which Vivench SA shareowners’ equity {d) 18,465 19447 24,058 22017 22515
Cash flow from operations before capital expenditures net {CFFO before capex net} 7872 8,034 8 569 7799 7,056
Capital expenditures, net {capex, net} (e} {4,490) {3340 {3.357) {2 562 (2001}
Cash flow from operatians {CFFO) {b) 37382 4694 5,212 5237 5055
Financial investments {1,795) (636) {1397) {3050) {3947}
Financial divestments 239 4701 1982 97 352
Dividends pard with respect to previous fiscal year 1245 1,731 1721 1639 {) 1,515
Per share data
Weghted average number of shares outstanding {o) 12989 12814 12738 12447 1,2086
Adjusted net income per share (g) 196 2.30 212 208 2.26
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the period (excluding treasury shares} (g) 13225 12874 12787 1,2703 12118
Equity per share, attributable to Vivends SA shareowners [g) 13496 1511 1881 1733 1858
Dividends per share pard with respect to previous fiscal year 100 140 140 140 130

In melliens of euros, number of shares in millions, data per share 1in eurcs

a

An analysis of revenues and EBITA by operating segment 1s presented in Section 4 1 of this Financial Report and in Note 3 to the
Consalidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Vwendi considers that the non-GAAP measures of EBITA, Adjusted net income, Finantial Net Debt, and Cash fiow from operations
{CFFQ} are relevant indicators of the group’s operating and finaneial performance Each of these indicators 1s defined in the approprate
section of this Financial Report or in 1ts Appendix These indicators should be considered 1in addition to, and not as a substitute for,
other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
naotes, or as described in this Financial Report |t should be noted that other companies may define and calculate these indicators
differently from Vivendi thereby affecting comparability

As of December 31, 2009, Vivend! revised 1ts definition of Financial Net Debt to include certain cash management financial assets
whose features do not strictly comply with the definition of cash equivalents as defined by IAS7 and the AMF's position n°2011-13 (in
particular, these financial assets may have a matunty of up to 12 menths) Considering that no investment 1n such assets was made
prior to 2008, the retroactive application of this change in presentation would have no impact on Financial Net Debt for the refevant
periods and the information presented 1n respect of the 2008 fiscal year 1s therefore consistent

With effect from January 1, 2009, Vivend: voluntanly opted for early application of the revised IFRS 3 (Business Combinations) and
IAS 27 {Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements) As a result, certan reclassifications have been made to the 2008
cansolidated statement of changes in equity to conform to the 2009 financial statements presentation, as prescribed by revised IAS 27

Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

The dividend distnibution with respect to fiscal year 2008 totaled €1,639 million, of which €904 midlion was paid in Vivendi shares
{which had no impact on cash} and €735 million was paid in cash

The number of shares, adjusted net income per share, and the equity per share, attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners have been
adjusted for all pertods previously published i order to reflect the dilution ansing from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012 of
one bonus share for each 30 shares held, n accordance with IAS 33 - Earnings Per Share
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Nota:

In accordance with European Commmission Regulation (EC) 809/2004 (Article 28) which sets out the disclosure obligations for issuers of secunties
listed on a regulated market within the Eurgpean Union {imptementing Directive 2003/71/EC, the "Prospectus Regulation™), the following items are
incorporated by reference

« 2011 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented in pages 130 to 266 of the “Document de Référence” No D 12-0175, filed on March 19, 2012 wath the
French Autorité des Marchés Financiers {AMF), and i pages 128 to 264 of the English translation of this "Document de Référence”, and

« 2010 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2010, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented 1n pages 126 to 270 of the “Document de Référence™ No D 11-0155, filed on March 21, 2011 wath the
French Autonté des Marchés Financiers (AMF), and in pages 126 to 270 of the English translation of this “Document de Réference”
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| - 2012 Financial Report

Preliminary comments.

On February 18, 2013, during a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Annual Financial
Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 Hawing considered the Audit Committee’s
recommendation given at its meeting held on February 15, 2013, the Supervisory Board, at 1ts meeting held on February 22, 2013, reviewed
the Annual Financial Report and the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, as approved by the
Management Board on February 18, 2013

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 have been audited and certified by the Statutory Auditors with
no qualified opimon The Statutery Auditors” Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 1s included in the preamble to the Financial
Statements

1 Major events

As publicly announced to shareholders on several occasions in 2012, Vivend's Management Board and its Supervisory Board have engaged
In a review of the group’s strategic development marked by a desire to strengthen its positions in media and content Given the stage of
completion of this strategic review and considering the uncertainty of the timing of potential disposals of certain telecom businesses, none
of the group’s business segments met the critera of [FRS 5 standard neither as of December 31, 2012, nor as of February 18, 2013, the date
of Vivendi's Management Board meeting that approved the Cansolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Vivendi's Management Board remains committed to focusing on shareholder value creation, adjusted net income per share and maintaining
a long-term credit rating of BBB (Standard & Poar's / Fitch) / BaaZ (Moody's)

1.1 Major events in 2012

1.1.1  Acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by Vivendi and Universal Music Group (UMG)

In accordance with the agreement entered into with Citigroup In¢ {Cits) on November 11, 2017, and following receipt of the regulatory approvals
from the European Commission and the Federal Trade Commission in the United States on September 21, 2012, Vivend and UMG completed the
acquisition of 100% of the recorded music business of EMI Group Global Limited {EMI Recorded Music) on Septernber 28, 2012 EMI Recorded
Music has been fully consolidated since that date The transaction was also uncondionally cleared in New-Zealand {June 21, 2012), Japan
{July 8, 2012}, and Canada {August 20, 2012)

The purchase price, In enterprise value, amounted to £1,130 million (approximately €1,404 milhon) and included €1,363 million paid i cash
of which £991 million (approximately €1,230 million) was paid in early September 2012, when conditions to payment were satisfied As part of
this transaction, Citi agreed to assume the full pension obligations in the United Kingdom, and UMG recewved commitments customary for
this type of transaction In addition, Citi undertock to indemnify UMG against losses stemming from taxes and litigation claims, in particular
those related to pension obhigations in the United Kingdom

The approval by the European Commission was cond:tional upon the divestment of EMI's Parlophone label and certain other music assets
waorldwide, such as EMI France, EMI's classical music Tabels, Chrysalis, Mute and several other local EMI entities In accordance with IFRS
5. Vivend: reclassified these assets as assets held for sale at market value n the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of
December 31, 2012

The sale of Parlaphone Label Group, part of EMI Recorded Music, for £487 million (approximately €600 million after taking into account the
EUR/GBP foreign currency hedge n place) to be paid n cash, was announced on February 7, 2013 Additional, less significant dwvestments
were also sold bringing the total amount of sales to exceed £530 mullion, all of which are pending regulatory approvals

With these sales, Vivendl nears the finalization of its regulatory commitments following the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music, while
reinforcing UMG’s position as a worldwide leader in music The combination of UMG's and EMI's Recorded Music businesses 1s expected to
generate annual synergies of more than £100 million as previously stated As a result of the sale of Parlophone Label Group, the acquisition
of EMI Recorded Music acquisition will be at less than SxEBITDA multiple, including disposals, restructuning charges and synergies

For a detailed description of this transaction and of its impact on Vivend:’s financial statements, ptease refer to Note 2 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
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112 Acquisition of Bolloré Group's channels by Vivendi and Canal+ Group

On December 2, 2011, Bolloré Group and Canal+ Group announced the entry into a definitive agreement regarding the acquisition by Canal+
Group of Botloré Group’s free-to-air channels, Direct B and Direct Star In February 2012, Canal+ Group exercised sts option to acquire, In one
transaction, a 100% interest in Bolloré Group's television business, in exchange for the issuance of Vivend: shares

On September 27, 2012, Vivendi camed out a share camital increase of 22,356 thousand shares, which 1t paid n consideration for the
contribution made by Bolloré Media, representing an enterpnse value of €336 million After taking into account a €16 mullion price
adjustment related to debt and changes :n working capital, the fair value of the transferred counterparty amounted to €320 million Bolloré
Group commutted to retain the Vivendi shares received in connection with the completion of this transaction for a minimum period of six
months after September 27, 2012 Since that date, Vivend: and Canal+ Group have been granted guarantees capped at £120 million These
guaranties expire 3 months after the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations for tax or social matters, and 18 months after
September 27, 2012 for all other matters D8 and D17 have been fully consolidated since September 27, 2012 and were renamed D8 and
D17. in connection with thetr launch on October 7, 2012

As part of the French Competition Authonty's approval of the transaction on July 23, 2012, Vivend: and Canal+ Group undertook certain
commitments These commitments provide for restrictions on the acquisition of rights for Amencan movies and television senes from certain
Amenican studios and for French movies, the separate negotiation of certain nights for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and television series,
limutations on the acquisition by D8 and D17 of French catalog movies from StudioCanal, and the transfer of nghts to broadcast major sports
events on free-to-air channels through a competitive bidding process These commitments are made for a 5-year period, renewable once if
the French Competition Authonty, after having performed a competitive analysis, deems 1t necessary In addition, on September 18, 2012,
the French Broadcasting Authority (Consell Supérieur de I'Audiovisuel) approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain
commitments relating to broadcasting, investment obligations, transfer nghts, and the retention by Canal+ Group of the D§ shares for a
minimum period of two and a half years

Following the closing of this transaction, Bolloré Group reported having increased its interest in Vivendi SA to 4 41% Subsequently, on
October 16, 2012, 1t announced that it had crossed the 5% threshold in Vivend: SA’s share capital

On December 13, 2012, Vivendi's Supervisory Board co-opted Vincent Balloré, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Bolloré Group, as
a member of the Supervisory Board This cooptation will be submitted for ratification at the General Shareholders Meeting to be held on
April 30, 2013

For a detailed descreption of this transaction and its impact on Vivend's financial statements, please refer to Note 2 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

1.1.3  Strategic partnership among the Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN in Poland

In accordance with the agreement announced on December 19, 2011, and following the receipt on September 14, 2012 of unconditional
approval from the Polish Competition and Consumer Protection Authority, on November 30, 2012, Canal+ Group, ITI, and TVN finalized the
combination of thewr Pohish Pay-TV platforms, which remain controlled by Canal+ Group, and the acqussition by Canal+ Group of a 40%
interest in N-Vision, which has been accounted for under the equity method since that date

Following the merger of Canal+ Cyfrowy {Canal+ Group’s Cyfra+ platform) with ITI Neovision (TVN's “n" platform), which created a new
satellite TV platform in Poland, with a base of 25 million customers, Canal+ Group owns a 51% mterest :n the new structure “ne+”
{compared to a previous 75% interest in Canal+ Cyfrowy), TYN and UPC own a 32% and 17% (nterest, respectively As Canal+ Group has the
majority on the Supervisory Board and the power to govern the financial and operating policies of “nc+”, the latter has been fully
consohdated by Canal+ Group since November 30, 2012

For a detailed descript:on of this transaction and its impact on Vivend:'s financial statements, please refer to Note 2 3 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

114 Liberty Media Corporation Complaint

On June 25, 2012, a verdict was returned by the jury against Vivendi in a lawsuit filed by Liberty Media Corporation and certain of 1ts
subsidiaries before the US District Court for the Southern District of New Yark The jury awarded damages to Liberty Medhia Corporation in
the amount of €765 million

On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury’s verdict [t also awarded pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16, 2001, using the
average rate of return on one-year US Treasury hills, or €180 milon On January 17, 2013, the Court entered a final judgment in the total
amount of £945 million, ncluding pre-judgment interest, but stayed 1ts execution while it considered two pending post-trral metions, which were
deried on February 12, 2013 On February 15, 2013, Vivends fited with the Court a Notice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which it
believes It has strong arguments
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On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and following the entry of the final judgment by the Court, as of December 31, 2012,
Vivend accrued a reserve in the amount of €945 million Please refer to Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012

115 New financings

For a detailed description of the new financings set up in 2012, please refer to Section 5 4 For a detatled desernption of the matunties of the bonds
and bank credit famities as of December 31, 2012, please refer to Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012

1.1.6 Acquisition of 4G spectrum by SFR

In January 2012, following calls for bids of the tender offer for 4G motule spectrum {very-high-speed Intermet - LTF} carried out in 2011 and in
accordance with the announcement made by the “Autonté de Régulation des Communications Flectromigues et des Postes” or "Arcep” {the French
telecommunications regulatory body), SFR acquired two 5 MHz duplex spectrum n the 800 MHz band for €1,065 milion As a reminder, in
October 2011, SFR acquired another 4G spectrum {the 2 6 GHz band) for a total amount of €150 mulhon

1.1.7  Corporate officers

At a meeting held on June 28, 2012, the Supervisory Board terminated Mr Jean-Bernard Léwy's term of office as Chairman of the Management
Board On June 28, 2012, the Supervisory Board also terminated the terms of office of the following Management Board members Mr Abdeslam
Ahizoune, Mr Amos Genish, Mr Lugian Grange, and Mr Bertrand Méheut. It also appointed Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos as Chawman of the
Management Board

The Management Board 1s currently composed of Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos and Mr Philippe Capron

As a reminder, on March 28, 2012, Mr Frank Esser resigned from his offices as a member of Vivendr’s Management Board and as Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of SFR

For a detailed description of the situation and compensation of the corporate officers, please refer to Note 25 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

1.1.8 Other events in 2012

Activision Bhizzard

License agreements 1n China
On March 20, 2012, Blizzard Entertainment, a subsidiary of Activision Bhzzard, announced that they renewed their license with NetEase for
World of Warcraft n mainland China, adding an additional three years to the current license agreement

On July 3, 2012, Activision Blizzard and Tencent Holdings Limited, a leading Internet services provider announced a strategtc relationship to
bring the Call of Duty franchise to Chinese game players Under the multi-year agreement with Activision Publishing, Tencent holds the
exclusive license to operate Activision's new Call of Duty game in mainfand China

Stock repurchase programs

In 2012, Actvision Blizzard repurchased its own common shares for €241 mullion ($315 mullion), including €42 million ($54 million} pursuant
to the stock repurchase program of up to $1 hillion authorized by Actwvision Blizzard's Board of Diwectors on February 2, 2012 and
€193 million {$261 mullion) pursuant to the previous stock repurchase program As of December 31, 2012, Vivend: held a 61 5% non-diluted
interest in Activision Blizzard {compared to an approximate 60% interest as of December 31, 2011)

Dividends

On May 18, 2012, Activision Blizzard paid to its shareholders a cash dividend of $0 18 per common share, with respect to fiscal year 2011,
representing $123 million {€34 million) for Vivendi Due to its strong eamings and 1ts cash and short term vestments amounting to
approximately $4 4 bilhon at year-end 2012, Activision Blizzard declared on February 7, 2013, a dividend of $0 19 per common share, to be
paid in cash on May 15, 2013

In additron, as part of its earmings release announced on February 7, 2013, the Board of Actvision Blizzard 1s considering, or may consider
during 2013, substantial stock repurchases, dividends, acquisitions, licensing or other non-ordinary course transactions These potential
transactions could be financed by debt
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Canal+ Group

Inquiry into compliance with certain undertakings given m connection with the merger of CanalSatellite and TPS
The French Competition Authonty opened an inguiry into comphance with certain undertakings given by Vivend and Canal+ Group in
connection with the merger of TPS and CanalSatellite

On September 20, 2011, the French Competition Authonty rendered a decision in which 1t established that Canal+ Group had not complied
with certain undertakings — some 1t considered essential — on which depended the decision authonizing, in 20086, the acqusitton of TPS and
CanalSatellite by Vivend: and Canal+ Group As a consequence, the French Compettion Authority withdrew the merger authenization,
requinng Vivendi and Canal+ Group to re-notify the transaction to the French Competition Authonty within one month Furthermore, the
Authority ordered Canal+ Group to pay a €30 mullion fine

On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State rejected the Canal+ Group and Vivend motions requesting the annulment of the
decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012, and decreased the fine imposed on Canal+ Group from €30 million to €27 million
Pursuant to the July 23, 2012 decision, the merger was again authorized, subject to comphance with 33 injunctions

Please refer to Note 26 and 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Acquisition of a non-controlling interest in Orange Cinema Series

On Apnl 12, 2012, Multithématiques, a subsidiary of Canal+ Group, and Orange Cinema Series entered into a partnership via a joint
company, Orange Cinema Seres - 0CS SNC, in which Multithématiques acquired an approximate 33% interest and to which Orange Cinema
Senes contributed the publistung and broadcasting operations of its pay cinema channels Since Apnl 5, 2012, Canal+ Distribution has been
distnbuting the channels of the Orange Cinema Series’ package through CanalSat On July 23, 2012, as part of the decision authonzing the
merger of TPS group and CanalSatellite, the French Competition Authonty required that Canal+ Group sell its non-controlling interest in
Orange Cinema Series - OCS SNC or, upon failure to sell such interest, to relinguish certain of its nghts contained in the shareholders’
agreement between Multithématiques and Orange Cinema Senes (please refer to Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2012)

On February 4, 2013, at the request of Multithématrques and to comply with the injunction 2{b) ordered by the French Competition Authority
on July 23, 2012, the members of Orange Cinema Series - OCS SNC' Board of Directors resigned from their positions As a result,
Multithématiques appointed, by letter with an effective date of February 4, 2013, two independent representatives with no affiliation to
Multithématiques within the Board of Directors of Orange Cinema Series - 0CS SNC

Acquisition of & 100% interest in Hoyts Distribution
On July 17, 2012, StudioCanal announced the acquisition of a 100% interest in Hoyts Distribution, a company specializing in the distribution
of feature films in Australia and New Zealand The company has been fully consolidated since that date

Creation of Numergy by SFR

On September 5, 2012, SFR, Bull, and Caisse des Dépdts et Consignations announced the creatron of Numergy, a company offenng cloud
computing services to all economic players As of December 31, 2012, SFR held a 47% interest in Numergy and 1s accounted for under the
equity method As of December 31, 2012, SFR subscribed to the capital increase of this new company for €105 mitlion, of which €26 million
had been released

Distributions to shareholders of Vivendi SA and its subsidianies

Dividend paid by Vivendi SA with respect to fiscal year 2011
On May 9, 2012, Vivend: SA paid to its shareholders a cash dividend of €1 per share with respect to fiscal year 2011, representing a total
distribution of €1,245 million

Bonus shares granted to Vivendi SA shareholders

On May 9, 2012, Vivend: SA granted to each shareholders one bonus share for each 30 shares held This transaction, realized by a
€229 mifhon withdrawal from additional paid-in capital, resulted in the i1ssuance of 416 million new shares with a nominal value of
€5 5 each and entstlement as from January 1, 2012

Dividends distributed by Maroc Telecom group

On May 31, 2012, Maroc Telecom group paid to its shareholders a cash dividend of MAD 3 26 per common share with respect to fiscal year
2011, representing MAD 4 3 bilfion (€391 million) for Vivend: The Supervisory Board of Maroc Telecom group will propose at the Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting, to be held on Apnl 24, 2013, the payment of an ordinary dwdend of MAD 7 4 per share, which corresponds to 100%
of distributable earnings with respect to fiscal year 2012 This dividend will be paid in cash on May 31, 2013
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1.2 Major events since December 31, 2012

The major events that have eccurred since December 31, 2012 were as follows

January 9, 2013 US court rulng in the lawswuit between Vivend: and Liberty Media Corparation {please refer to Note 27 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012),

January 16, 2013 Maroc Telecom and the Moroccan State entered into a fourth capital expenditure agreement (please refer to
Note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012),

February 7, 2013 Vivend: and Universal Music Group entered into a definttive agreement to sell Parlophone Label Group, a unrt of
EMI Recorded Music, to Warner Music Group for £487 million {approximately €600 million) ta be paid in cash,

February 12, 2013 Lagardére Holding TV, a 20% shareholder of Canal+ France, filed a complaint against Vivend), Canal+ Group and
Canal + France with the Pans Commercial Court Lagardare Group is seekng restiwuion, under penalty, from Canal+ Group, of the
entire cash surplus given over by Canal+ France (please refer to Note 27 to the Consolidated Fimancial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012), and

February 15, 2013 Vivend: and Universal Music Group signed a definitive agreement for the sale of Sanctuary Records to BMG for
£40 millon to be paid in cash
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Consolidated statement of earnings and adjusted statement of

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

ADJUSTED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

Revenuss

Cost of revenues

Margin from operations

Selling general and administrative expenses excluding
amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations

Resteucturing charges and other operating charges and
income

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations

impaiment losses on intangtble assets acquired through
bustness combinations

Reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation
liugation in the Uniled States

Other mcome

Other charges

EBIT

Income from equrty atfiliates

Interast

Income from investments

Other financial income

Other financial charges

Earnings from continuing operations before provision
for income taxes

Prowision for income taxes

Earmings from continuing operations

Earnings from discontinued operations

Earnings

Of which

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners
Non-controlling interests

Earmings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners per
share - basic {in euros)

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per
share - difuted {in euros)

In millions of euros, except per share amounts

Year ended December 11 Year ended December 31
2012 2011 m2 201
28,994 2813 8,99 28813
(14 364) {14 391) {14 364) {14 391)
14,630 14422 14,630 14,422
(8.995) {8401) (8 995} {8 401}
{352) {167) {352} (161}
{487} (510}
(760} (397
(945) -
22 1,385
{235) {656} _
2878 5682 5283 5,860
(39 {18} (38} {18}
{568) {481} (568} (481}
9 75 9 75
37 14
{210} {167}
208 5,105 4,586 5435
{1 159} 1378} 1339 {1 408)
949 31
949 3127 3,347 4,028
164 2581 2.550 2952
785 1046 797 1 076
013 209 1.96 230
012 209 186 230

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Margin from operations

Selling general and administratrve expenses excluding
amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
COMDINARINIS

Restrugturing charges and other cperating charges and
nCome

EBITA

Income from equity affiliates
Interest

Income from investments

Adjusted earnings from continuing operations before

provision for ;mcome taxes
Provision for income taxes

Adjusted net income hefore non-contralling interests
Of which

Adjusted net income

Non-controlling interests

Adjusted net income per share - basic (tn suros}

Adpusted net incoma par share - difuted {in euros)

Note. Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share and adjusted net income per share (basic and diluted) for all perods
previously published have been adjusted in order to reflect the dilution ansing from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012, of one !
bonus share for each 30 shares held, in accordance with 1AS 33 - Earnings per share [please refer to Section 1 1 8 of this Financial Report)
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22 Eamings review

Adjusted net income amounted to €2,550 milhan {or €196 per share!) compared to €2,952 million {or €2 30 per share) in 2011 This
€402 million decrease (-13 6%) in adjusted net income resulted primanly from

¢ 3 €577 mihon decrease in EBITA to a total of £5,283 million {compared to €5,860 million tn 2011) This change mainly reflected the
dechne in the performances of SFR {-€678 million, including the €187 million restructunng charges), Maroc Telecom group
{-€102 mullion, tncluding the €79 mithon restructuring charges), and Canak Group {-€38 million, including the -€51 million 1mpact of
the acquisition of the DB and D17 channels and the new actvities in Poland, partially offset by the operating performances of
Activision Blizzard {+£138 million), GVT (+£92 million), and Universal Music Group (+€18 million) including -€98 mullion in EMI
Recorded Music integration costs and restructuring charges,

* 2 €87 milhon increase In mterest expense, resulting from the impact of the mncrease in the average outstanding Financial Net Debt
{-€127 million}, partially offset by the decrease of the average interest rate on Financial Net Debt (+840 million),

*  a €66 mlhon decrease mainly attrbutable to the balance of the contractual dividend paid by GE to Vivend: in January 2011 as part
of the completron of the sale by Vivend: of its interest 1n NBC Universal,

» 3 £20 million decrease resulting from income from equity affiliates,

»  a €63 mihon decrease in income tax expense This change notably reflected the impact of the dechine In the group's business
segments taxable income (+€264 million), primanly related to SFR, partially offset by the €181 million decrease In current tax
savings related to Vivend) SA’s tax group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems This decrease notably included the impact
of the changes in French Tax Law 1n 2017 and 2042, mainly the capping of the deduction for tax losses camed forward at 50% of
taxable income {compared to 60% in 2011}, and

¢ a €279 mllion decrease n adjusted net income attnbutable to non-controlling interests, mainly resulting from the acquisition In
June 2011 of Vodafone's non-controlling interest in SFR (€242 million)

Breakdown of the main items from the Statement of Earnings

Revenues were €28,994 million, compared to €28,813 million 1n 2011, a €181 million increase (+0 6%, or -0 7% at constant currency) For a
breakdown of revenues by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financial Report

Costs of revenues amounted to £14,364 million, compared to £14,391 milhion in 2011, 2 €27 million decrease -0 2%)
Margin from operations increased by €208 million to €14,630 million, compared to €14,422 million 1n 2011 (+1 4%)

Selling, general and admimstrative expenses, excluding the amortization of intangible assets acqured through business combinations,
amounted to £8,995 millian, compared to €8,401 million 1n 2011, a €594 mullion increase (+7 1%)

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets are mcluded either n the cost of revenues or in selling, general and
administrative expenses Depreciation and amortization, excluding amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amounted to €2,682 million {compared to £2,534 million in 2011}, an additional £148 million charge (+5 8%) This change primarily resulted from the
increase in the depreciation of telecommunication network assets at Maroc Telecom group and GVT

Restructuring charges and other operating charges and income amounted to a net charge of £352 million, compared to a net charge
of €161 miltion in 2011, a €191 millton increase In 2012, they primarily included restructuring charges of SFR (€187 million) and Maroc
Telecom group (€79 million), restructuning charges and integration costs at UMG (€98 million), as well as transition costs incurred by Canal+
Group as part of the acquisition of the free-to-air channels DB and D17 in France and the pay-TV platiorm “n” in Poland {E11 million)
Moreover, 1n 2012, other operating charges included the €66 mullion fine ordered against SFR by the French Competition Authonty in
December 2012 in 2011, restructuring charges amounted to €100 million, of which €67 million at UMG and €19 million at Activiston Blizzard
In 2011, other operating charges included the €30 million fine ordered in September 2011 by the French Competition Authority on Canal+
Group, as part of the audit related to the comphance with the commitments undertaken by Canak+ Group in connection with the merger of
CanalSatellite and TPS in January 2007

EBITA was €5.283 milion, compared to €5,860 million 1n 2011, a €577 million decrease (-38%, or -107% at constant currency) For a
breakdown of EBITA by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this financial Report

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations was €487 million, compared to €510 million in 2011, a
€23 million decrease (-4 5%)

! For details of the adjusted nat incoms per share please refer to Appendix 1 of this Financial Report
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Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business comhnations amounted to €760 million, compared to
£397 million in 2011 n 2012, they related to Canal+ France's goodwill (€665 million} and certatn goodwill and music catalogs of Universal
Music Group (€94 mullion) In 2011, they mainly related to Canal+ France’s goodwall (€380 rullion)

As of December 31, 2012, based an the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012 regarding the Liberty Media Corporation litigation in the
United States, which was confirmed by the court in New York on January 9, 2013 and entered into record by the judge on January 17,
2013, Vivend: accrued a reserve for the full amount of the judgment (€345 million), representing, €765 million in damages and €180 million in
pre-judgment interest covering the perod from December 16, 2001 to January 17, 2013, at the rate of one-year US Treasury notes In
addition, the reserve regarding the Securities Class Action in the United States was unchanged as of December 31, 2012, at €100 mitlion
Please refer to Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Other income amounted to €22 million, compared to £1,385 mullion 1 2011 In 2011, 1t primanly included the impact related to the
settlement on January 14, 2011 of the litigation over the share ownership of PTC in Poland (€1.255 million) and the sale in October 2011 of
UMG's interest in Beats Electronics (€89 million}

Other charges amounted to €235 million, compared to €656 million in 2011 In 2012, they mamly included the €113 million impairment loss
on Canal+ Group’s interest in N-Vision in Poland and acquisition costs {EMI Recorded Music, and the strategic partnership in Poland) of
£63 million In 2011, they mainly included the capital loss incurred tn January 2011 on the sale of Vivend’s remaining 12 34% interest in
NBC Universal (€421 million, of which €477 mdlion related to a foreign exchange loss attnbutable to the decline 1n value of the US dollar
since January 1, 2004) and the settlement of the past disputes between GVT and various Brazilian States regarding the application of ICMS
tax on Internet and Broadband services (€165 million)

EBIT was £2,878 million, compared to €5,682 million 1n 2011, a €2.804 million decrease {-49 3%) In addition to the decline in EBITA
{-€577 million, of which -E678 million from SFR), this change manly reflected the recognition 1n 2012 of the reserve accrual regarding the
Liberty Media Corporation htigation {-€945 million) and the impairment of Canal+ France’s goodwill {-€665 million) In 2011, the impact
related to the settlement of the hitigation over the share ownership of PTC in Poland {€1,255 million), partially offset by the capital loss
incurred from the sale of the remaining 12 34% mterest in NBC Universal {-€421 milhon), and the settlement of the past disputes between
GVT and varous Brazilian States regarding the application of the ICMS tax (-€165 million)

Income from equity affiliates was a €38 million charge, compared to a €18 mullion charge in 2011

Interest was an expense of £568 million, compared to €481 million in 2011, a €87 million increase {+18 1%)

In 2012, interest expense on borrowings amounted to €599 million, compared to €529 million 1n 2011, a €70 milhon increase {+13 2%) This
change was mainly attributable to the increase 1n the average outstanding borrowings to €17 1 billion 1n 2012 {compared to €137 billion in
2011}, primanly reflecting the impact of the acquisitions of the 44% interest in SFR in June 2011 (€7 75 billion) and of EMI Recorded Music
in September 2012 (€1 4 billion), partially offset by the decrease in the average interest rate on borrowings to 3 50% 1n 2012 (compared to
387% 1n 2011)

Interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents amounted to €31 million in 2012, compared to €48 millon 1n 2011, a €17 million
decrease This change was attributable to the decrease in the average cash and cash equivalents to €3 4 billion in 2012 {compared to
£4 1 bilhon 1n 2011) and to the decrease in the average income rate to 091% in 2012 (compared to 1 16% in 2011)

Income from investments amounted to €9 million, compared to €75 miffion 1n 2011 In 2011, ot incfuded €70 million attnbutable to the
balance of the contractual dividend paid by GE to Vivend: on January 25, 2011 as part of the completion of the sale by Vivend: of 1ts interest
in NBC Universal

Other financial income and charges amounted to a net charge of £173 million, compared to a net charge of €153 million n 2011, and
notably included foreign exchange losses on intercompany borrowings (-€105 million in 2092, compared to -€27 milhion in 2011) and fees
related to borrowings and derwvative instruments {-€15 million 1n 2012, compared to €52 miflion in 2011) For more information, please refer
ta Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31,2012

Income taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of €1,339 mifhon, compared to a net charge of €1,408 million 1n 2011,
a €69 million decrease This change notably reflected the impact of the dechne in the group’s business segments’ taxable income
(+£264 million), primarily related to SFR, partially offset by the decrease (-€181 mdlion} in current tax savings related to Vivendi SA’s tax
group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems following the changes in French Tax Law in 2011 and 2012, mainly the capping of the
deduction for tax losses carnied forward at 50% of taxable income {compared to 60% in 2011} The effective tax rate reported to adjusted net
income was 28 3% m 2012 (compared to 25 8% 1n 2011)

In addion, provision for income taxes was a net charge of €1,159 milhon, compared to a net charge of €1,378 million in 2011, a
£219 million decrease In addition to the items that explained the increase in income taxes reported to adjusted net income, this increase
reflected the change n deferred tax assets refated to Vivendi SA’s tax group System, which was a €48 million charge {compared 10 a
€129 million charge in 2011)
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Adjusted net income attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to €797 milion, compared to €1,076 million in 2011 The
€279 million decrease was primarily attributable to the impact of the acquisition of Vodafone's 44% mterest i SFR (-€242 million), offset by
the operating perfarmances of Actwision Bhzzard (+€34 milhion)

Eamnings attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to €785 million, compared to €1,046 mullion in 2011 The €261 millign
decrease was matnly atinbutable to the impact of the acquisition of Vodafone's 44% interest in SFR (€224 mllion), offset by the operating
performances of Activision Blizzard (+841 million)

Earmings attnibutable to Vivendi SA shareowners amounted to €164 million {or €013 per share), compared to €2,681 milhon (or
€2 09 per share) in 2011, a €2,517 milhon decrease In addition to the decline in EBITA {-€577 mullion, of which -€678 mullion from SFR), this
change mainty reflected the recognition in 2012 of the reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Medra Corporation litigation {-€345 miflion) and
the impairment of Canal+ France's goodwill (-665 million), and in 2011, the impact related to the settlement of the litigation over the share
ownership of PTC in Poland (€1,255 m:ltion), partially offset by the capital loss incurred from the sale of the remaining 12 34% interest in
NBC Universal {-€421 million), and the settlement of the past disputes between GVT and vanous Brazlian States regardmg the application of
the ICMS tax {-£165 million)

The reconciliation of earnings attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners with adjusted net wncome Is further described in
Appendix 1 of this Financial Report In 2012, this reconciliation primanly included the reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media
Corporation Iitigation in the United States {-€945 mullion}, the impairment of Canal+ France’s goodwaill {-€665 million}, and amortizatron and
other impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations (-€414 miliion, after taxes and non-controlling
interests) In 2011, this reconciliatton primanly included the impact of the settlement of the litigation over the share ownership of PTC in
Poland {+£1,255 million) and the sale in October 2011 of UMG's interest in Beats Electronics (+€89 million), partially offset by the capital loss
incurred from the sale of Vivend's remaining 12 34% interest in NBC Universal completed on January 25, 2011 (-€421 mullion, of which
-E477 mithion related to a foreign currency ranslation adjustment reclassified 1o earmings, which represented a foreign exchange loss
attnibutable to the decline in value of the US dollar since January 1, 2604} and the settlement of the past disputes between GVT and various
Brazlian States regarding the application of ICMS tax on Internet and Broadband services {-€165 millien) The recanciliation alse included
the imparrment of Canak+ France's goodwill (-€380 million) and the amortization and other impairment losses on intangible assets acquired
through business combinatians (-€336 million, after taxes and non-controlling interests)
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3 Cash flow from operations analysis

Preliminary comment: Vivend: considers that the non-GAAP measures cash flow from operations (CFFO), cash flow from operations before
capital expenditures (CFFO before capex, net) and cash flow from operations after interest and taxes {CFAIT} are relevant indicators of the
group’s operating and financial performance These indicators should be considered in addition to, and not as substitutes for, other GAAP
measures as reported in Vivend\'s cash flow statement, contained in the group’s Consolidated Financial Statements

In 2012, cash flow from operations before capitat expenditures {CFFO before capex, net) generated by business segments amounted to
€7.872 million (compared to €8,034 million 1n 2011}, a €162 mitlion decrease (-2 0% This change included the increase n EBITDA after
changes in the group's net working capital (#6277 mithion), notably thanks to the good performances of Actwiston Blizzard {+€338 million},
Canal+ Group (+£108 milion), and Maroc Telecom {+€94 million), despite the decline in the performance of SFR (-€407 million) Moreover, it
also reflected the increase in content investments (-£286 million), restructuring charges {(-€75 miliion, primanly the ympact of the voluntary
redundancy plan at Maroc Telecom), as well as the impact of the dividend received n January 2011, as part of the completion of the sale of
Vivendi's interest in NBC Universal {-€70 mitlion)

In 2012, capital expendttures, net amounted ta €4,490 million {(compared to €3,340 million 1n 2011), a €1,150 milhion ncrease This change
included SFR's acquisition of 4G mobile spectrum for €1,065 million in January 2012 and €150 million in October 2011 Excluding the
acquisition of mobile spectrum (n 2012 and 2011, capital expenditures, net increased by €235 million {(+7 4%), pnmarly attnbutable 1o the
geographical expansron of GVT's telecommunication netwaork and to the develapment of its pay-TV business (+€242 million)

After capital expenditures, net, cash flow from operations {CFFO) generated by busmess segments amounted to £3,382 million {compared to
£4,694 million n 2011}, a €1,312 mullion decrease Excluding the acquisition of mobile spectrum in 2092 and 2011, CFFQ generated by
business segments amounted to €4,447 million {compared to £4,844 million 1n 2011), a€397 million decrease (-8 2%), pnmarly reflecting the
decline in SFR's performance

In 2012, cash flow from operations after interest and income taxes paid (CFAIT) amounted to €1,954 million {compared to €2,884 miflien i
2011}, a €930 milen decrease {-32 2%) The decrease in CFFO {-E1,312 million} and the increase in nterest expense {-€87 million) were
partially offset by the €141 million decrease in cash payments of other items related o financial activities and by the €328 million decrease
in Income taxes paid, net The change in 1ncome taxes pard, net mainly reflected the change from one fiscal year to another of the amount of
Income tax instaltments for the current fiscal year and final settlements far the previous fiscal year paid by the group’s entities in the course
of the given year

Cash payments of other items related to financial activities notably included the net premium paid 1n connection with borrowings issued and
the early unwinding of interest rate hedging dervative instruments (-£74 milion} and the settlement of the past disputes between GVT and
varous Braz:lian States regarding the application of the ICMS tax on Internet and Broadband services (€7 milhen paid 1n 2012, compared to
€164 million paid in 2011} In addition, hedging currency nsk transactions generated a net cash outflow of €52 million in 2012 {including a
€78 million foreign exchange loss attributable to the redemption in April 2012 of a $700 million bond), compared to an €8 million net cash
inflow 1n 2011
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{in millions of euros)
Revenues
Operating expenses excluding deprectation and amortization
EBITDA
Restructuning charges pad
Content mvestments nat
of which internally daveloped franchises and other games content assets at Actvision Blizzard
of which payments 1o artists and répertorre owners net at UMG
Payments to artists and repertoira owners
Recoupment of advances and other movements

of which fiim and telewision rights nat at Canals Group
Acquisition of fiim and telewision nghts
Consumption of film and televiston rights

of which sports rights net at Canal+ Group
Acquisition of Sports nghts
Consumption of sports iights

Neutralizatien of changs in provasrons included m EBITDA

Other cash operating items excluded from EBITDA

Diher changes i net working capital

Net cash provided by operating actiities before income tax peid

Drvidends receved from equity affiliates

of which balance of the contractual dividend pad by GE
Drndends receved from unconsolidated companies
i om tigns, befor ital ex| itury t {CF| x, net
Capital expenditures net {capex net)
of which SFRIf)

Maroc Telecom Group
ovr

Cashfl m gperation:

Interest patd net

Other cash items related to financial activities

ofwhich  settfements with the Braziian Authorities regarding ICMS

foas and pramium on borrowings issued/redeemed and early unwinding of hedging
denvative instruments
gains/flosses) on currency transactions

Financial activitios cash payments

Paymert recerved from the French Stale Treasury as part of the Vivendi SA s French Tax Group

and Consodidated Globat Profit Tax Systems

Qther taxes pard

Income tax (pardlreceived, nat

Cashfl m gperat anter mncome aigd {CFA

na* notapplicable
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Year ended Degamber 31

2012 0m € Change % Change

28994 28813 +191 +1 6%

{20 641) {20 320} -321 -16%

{al 8353 8493 -140 16%
{189} {114) -5 858%

{2499) 113) 286 1230

{108) {49) 59 x22

{547} {589) 58 98%

503 581 +22 +38%

44} {8) 36 x585

{760/ {724) 3 50%

703 706 -J 4%

{57} {18) -39 x32

{654) (662) +8 +12%

572 595 23 33%

18 33 15 455%

{56} {100) +44 +44 0%

{3 %] 24 x44

90 1307) +397 na*

(b} 7,068 7952 -84 -1 1%
e} 3 79 76 -962%
- 70 70 -100 0%

e 1 3 -2 6657%
1,872 8,034 152 -20%

{0 {4,490} {334D) <1150 34 4%
{2,736} {1 805} 977 512%

{457 {466} +9 +19%

{347) {705} 242 -34 3%

3382 4,694 -1,312 -28 0%

{e) {568} {a81) 87 181%
{e) {3a) {239) +141 +590%
{7 {164 +157 +95 7%

{9) {83} +24 +892%

{52} g 50 na*

(656} {720) +54 +75%

536 591 55 93%

11,298} (1,681) +383 122 8%

{b) {762) {1,090 +328 +30 1%
1954 2,884 -930 -32.2%

a EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure, 1s described in Section 4 2 of this Financial Report

b As presented in operating activities of Vivendi's Statement of Cash Flows {please refer to Section 5 3}

¢ As presented in investing activities of Vivendi's Statement of Cash Flows [please refer to Section 5 3)

d Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets as presented in
iwvesting acuvities of Vivendr's Statement of Cash Flows {please refer to Sectron 5 3

¢ Aspresented in financing actvities of Vivendi's Statement of Cash Flows {please refer to Section 5 3)

f  SFR's capital expenditures notably included a cash payment for 4G mobile spectrum of €1,065 million in 2012 and of €150 mullion

2m
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4 Business segment performance analysis

4.1 Revenues, EBITA, and cash flow from operations by business

segment
Year ended December 31,
% Change at
{in millions of euros) 2012 2m % Change constant rate
Revenues
Actwsion Blizzard 3768 3412 +98% +23%
Universal Music Group 4,544 4197 +83% +11%
SFR 11,288 12183 713% -713%
Maroc Telecom Group 2689 273 -18% 30%
GVT 1,16 1,446 +187% +282%
Canal+ Group 5013 4857 +32% +32%
Non-core operations and others, and elimination of intersegment
transactions (24) 41) na* na®
Total Vivendi 28,994 78,813 +0 6% -07%
———] ———

EBITA
Activision Bhizzard 1149 101 +136% +656%
Uriversal Music Group 525 807 +36% +12%
SFR 1,600 2278 -298% -298%
Maroc Telecom Group 987 1,089 94% -105%
GVT 188 3% +23 2% +337%
Canat+ Group 663 m 54% 51%
Holding & Corporate {115) {100} -15 0% -130%
Non-core operations and others 14) (22} na* na*
Total Vivend 5283 5860 -9.8% =10 7%

——

Year ended December 31
{n mallions of euras) 2012 2011 % Change
Cash ftow from operations, before caprtal expendrtures, net (CFFO before capex, net)
Activision Blizzard 1161 923 +25 0%
Universal Music Group 528 4% £ 7%
SFR 349 3841 -107%
Maroc Telecom Group 1523 1,501 +15%
GVT 621 558 +113%
Canak+ Group 706 735 39%
NBC Universal dividends - 0 100 0%
Holding & Corporate {93} &) -120%
Mon-core operations and others {3) {12) na*
Total Vivend: 1872 8,04 -2 %
——

Cash flow from operations (CFF0)
Actmwision Bhizzard 1,104 877 +25 9%
Universal Music Group 472 443 +65%
SFR 693 2032 659%
Maroc Telecom Group 1 066 1035 +30%
GvVT (326} (1a7) x22
Canal+ Group 476 484 17%
NBC Unwersal dmdends - 0 -100 0%
Holdwng & Corparate {94) 84) 119%
Non-core operations and others {9) (16) na”
Total Vivend: 3382 4694 -28 %

na* notapplicable

Data presented above takes into account the consolidation of the following entities at the indicated dates
- atUniversal Music Group EMI Recorded Music (September 28, 2012}, and
- atCanal+ Group D8 and D17 (September 27, 2012), as well as “n” (November 30, 2012
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42 Comments on the operating performance of business segments

Preliminary comments

e Vivendl Management evaluates the performance of Vivend:'s business segments and allocates the necessary resources to them based
on certain operating performance Indtcators, notably the non-GAAP measures EBITA {Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Income
Taxes) and EBITDA {Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amartization)

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations, the impairment of goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations and EBIT's “other
charges” and “other income” as defined in Note 1 2 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December
31, 2012

As defined by Vivend:, EBITDA 15 calculated as EBITA as presented in the Adjusted Statement of Earnings, before depreciation
and amortization of tangible and intangible assets, restructuring charges, gains/(losses) on the sale of tangible and intangible
assets and other non-recurnng 1tems {as presented in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings by operating segmenit - Please
refar to Note 3 to the Consolidated Financral Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012)

Moregver, it should be noted that other companies may define and calculate EBITA and EBITDA differently from Vivendi, thereby
affecting comparabihty

o The Vivend: group operates through six businesses at the heart of the worlds of content, platforms and interactive networks As of
December 31, 2012, Vivendi's ownership interest in each of these businesses was as follows

Activision Blizzard 61 5%,

Universal Music Group (UMG) 100%,
SFR 100%,

Maroc Telecom group 53%,

GVT 100%. and

Canal+ Group 100% (Canal+ Group holds an 80% interest in Canal+ France)
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Year ended December 31

% Change at
{in mulhons of euros, except for margins) 2012 201 % Change constant rate
Activision 2370 2,047 +15 8% +84%
Blizzard 1160 1,082 +72% -12%
Distribution 238 303 -21 5% -26 7%
Total Revenuas 3,768 3,432 +9.8% +2.3%
EBITDA 1315 1.174 +120% 4%
Activision 678 520 +30 4% +23 9%
Blizzard 463 483 41% -119%
Distribution 8 8 - -13%
Total EBITA 1,149 1.011 +136% +6.6%
EBITA margm rate (%)} 30 5% 295% +1pt
Cash flow from operations {CFFO} 1,104 817 +25.9%
Non-GAAP and US GAAP measures, as pubhished by Activision Blizzard®
Year ended December 31

{n mithons of US dallars} mz2 2011 % Change
Actwision 3072 2828 +86%
Blizzard 1609 1243 +294%
Distribution 306 418 26 8%
Total non-GAAP not revenues 4987 4483 +H11%

Ehmimation of non-GAAF adjusiments {131) 266 na*
US GAAP net revenues 4856 4,755 +2.1%
Activeston 970 851 +140%
Blizzard 17 496 +14 6%
Mhstnibution 11 11
Total non-GAAP operating mcome 1 1,358 +25 0%
Non-GAAP operating margin rate (%} 0% 303% +37pts

Ehmination of non-GAAP adyustments 247) {30/
US GAAP operatmf mcoma 1,451 131 +33%
Net revenues by distribution channgl

Retail channels 3082 2512 +227%

Digrtal online channels [a) 1559 1559 +2 5%
Sub-total Actvision and Blizzard 4681 40N +150%

Distribution 306 418 -26 8%
Total non-GAAP net revanues lg? 4,489 +111%

t ravenues by pl mi

Online subscriptions (b} 101 1155 73%

PC and other (c} 1,250 299 x42

Console 2201 2452 -102%

Hand held 159 165 -36%
Sub-total Actraision and Blizard 4681 40n +150%

Distnbution 306 418 26 8%
Total non-GAAP net revenues 4,987 4,489 +11 1%
Net revenues by geographic regign
North America 2514 2251 +117%
Europe 19% 1886 1+58%
Asia Pacific 417 352 +355%
Total non-GAAP net revenuas 44987 l,ﬁ H1M1%

ra* notapplicable

a Includes revenues from subscriptions and memberships, licensing royalties, value-added services, downloadable content, digitally

distributed products and wireless devices

7 The reconciliation of US GAAP and non-GAAP data pubhshed by Actvision Blizzard {net revenues and EBITA) to data relating te Actvision Blzzard prepared by Vivend in
accordance with IFRS stangdards 1s described in Appendix 2 to ths Financial Report
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b Includes revenves from all World of Warcraft products, including subscriptions, boxed products, expansion packs, licensing royalties
and value-added services It also includes revenues from Call of Duty Elite memberships

¢ Other revenues include standalane sales of toys and accessories products from Skyfanders franchise, mobile sales and other physical
merchandise and accessores

Revenues and EBITA

Higher than expected, Actvision Blizzard's revenues were £3.768 million, up 98% (+2 3% at constant currency} compared to 2011, and
EBITA was £1,149 million, a 13 6% increase (+6 6% at constant currency) compared to 2011 These results take into account the accounting
principles requining that revenues and related cost of sales associated with games with an online component be deferred over the estimated
customer service period The balance of the deferred operating margin was up 10% to €1,000 milhen as of December 31, 2012, compared to
€913 miltion as of December 31, 2011

In North America and Europe combined, Activision Blizzard was the #1 console and handheld publisher for 2012 with the #1 and #3 best-
selling franchises®, Call of Duty and Skylanders In November 2012, Black Ops /f became the first video game ever to cross the $1 billion mark
in 15-days* As of December 31, 2012, the Skylanders franchise had generated, life-to-date, more than $1 hillion in worldwide sales® In
January 2013, sell-through of Skyfanders figuses worldwide has exceeded 100 milhon®

In addition, Diablo if was the #1 best-selling PC game, breaking PC-game sales records with more than 12 million copies sold-through
worldwide through December 31, 2012, and World of Warcraft® Mists of Pandaria® was the #3 best-seliing PC game® As of December
31, 2012, World of Warcraft temains the #1 subscription-based MMORPG, with more than 9 6 milhon subscribers®

Cash flow from operations (CFFQ}

Activision Blizzard's cash flow from operations amounted to €1,1704 million, a €227 million increase compared to 2011 This performance
reflected the growth 1n EBITDA after changes in Actvision Blizzard's net working capital (+€338 mullion), refated to the success of the games
released in the fourth quarter of 2012

3 According to The NPD Groug, GfK Chart-Track and Actvisron Bhizzard interal estimates including toys and accessones
* Acrording to Chart-Track retail customer seli-through information tefnal company estimates and screenrant corm

5 Accorthng to Activision Bhzzard internal estmates

& At retaid and according to The NPD Group GfK Chart-Track and Activision Bhzzard internal estimates
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422 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Year ended December 31
% Change at
{m mitlions of ewros except for margins) 02 2011 % Change constant rate
Physical sales 175% 1789 18% 1%
Digital sales 1365 1105 +735% +168%
License and athers 548 478 +146% +39%
Recorded music 3,669 (a} 3an +8B% +37%
Music publishing 661 638 +3 6% -10%
Merchandising and others 247 222 +113% +45%
Intercompany elimination (33) {35) na* na*
Total Revenues 4,54 4,197 +#3% +31%
EBITDA 674 (a) 623 +8.2% +50%
Recorded music 3181a) kit +#46% +39%
Mustc pubhshing 186 183 +16% -24%
Merchandising and others 21 20 +50% -58%
Total EBITA 525 507 +3 6% +12%
EBITA margmn rate (%) 116% i21% {5pt
Restructuring and integration costs (98} ' (67) -46 3%
EBITA excluding restructuring and integration costs 523 514 +5% +55%
Cash flow from operations {CFFQ) 472 1] +65%
Recorded music revenues by geographical area
Europe 40% 1%
North Amenca 3% 36%
Asta 16% 15%
Rest of the world 7% 1%
100% 100%
“UMG" recorded music. sales of physical and digital albums and DVDs, in millions of units (b}
Artist - Title 2012 Artist- Title 2011
Taylor Swft - Red 51 \lady Gaga - Born this way 99
Justin Bieber - Believe 29 Justin Bigber - Under The Mistletoe 28
Lana Del Rey - Born To Die 27 Rihanna - Loud 27
Rod Stewart - Merry Chnstmas, Baby 26 Rihanna- Talk That Talk 26
Rihanna - Unapologetic 23 LWayne - Tha Carter IV 24
Maroon 5 - Overexposed 227 AmyWinehouse - Lioness Hidden Treasures 24
Madonna - MONA 18 Drake Take Care 19
Gotye - Making Mirrors 17 Kanye West & Jay 2 Watch The Throne 17
Lonel Richie - Tuskegee 15 Amy Winehouse - Back to Black 17
Nicki Minaj - Pink Fnday  Roman Reloaded 14 MFAQ - Sorry for Party Rocking 17
Total T 242 ot T 8

na* not applicable

a Includes EMI Recorded Music {retained businesses) revenues and EBITA consolidated since September 28, 2012, for €279 million {of
which £148 million for physical sales and €79 million for digital sales) and -€2 mullion, respectively

b Atconstant perimeter
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Revenues and EBITA

Universal Music Group’s (UMG) revenues were €4,544 million, an 8 3% increase compared to 2011 At constant penmeter (excluding
revenues from EMI Recorded Music, acquired at the end of September 2012, revenues were up 1 6% thanks to growth in recorded music
sales in North America and favorable currency movements At constant currency and at constant penmeter, revenues were down 3 3% with
a 10 0% increase i digital sales and tugher license incame offset by the decline in physical sales Dugital sales represented 44% of recorded
music sales compared to 38% in the prior year

Recorded music best sellers notably included new releases from Taylor Swift, Justin Bieber, Maroon 5, Rihanna, Nicki Minaj, Lana Del Rey,
Gotye, Carly Rae Jepsen, Cecilia Bartoh, Daniel Barenboim, Rolando Vllazén, and Myléne Farmer

UMG's EBITA of €525 miflion was up 3 6% compared to 2011 Excluding EMI Recorded Music and at constant currency, EBITA was up 1 6%,
strengthened by cost reduction policy

Cash flow from operations (CFFQ)

UMG’s cash flow from cperations amounted to €472 million, a €29 million increase compared to 2011 This includes the impact of the
integration of EMI Recorded Music since September 28, 2012 {-€18 mulbon, including restructurng and integration costs paid for
€37 million), which was more than offset by UMG's operating performances (EBITDA after changes in net working capital increased by
€69 mullian}, the proceeds frum the sale of certain content assets from UMG's catalog (€25 million), and a decreass i restructuning charges
patd by UMG {-€14 milliort}
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423 SFR
Year ended December 31,

{tn millions of euros, except for marging) 2012 2011 % Change
Mobile service revenues 7,006 7.885 -111%
Equipment sales, net 510 567 -10 1%

Mobile 7.516 8,452 -1 1%

Broadband Internet and Fixed 3,963 4,000 -09%

Intercompany elimination {191} (269) +290%

Total Revenues 11,288 12,183 -1.3%

EBITDA 3,299 3,800 -132%

EBITA 1,600 2278 -298%

EBITA margn rate {%) 14 2% 18 7% 45pts

Restructuring costs (187} {12} x156

EBITA excluding restructuring costs 1,787 2290 -22.0%

Capital expenditures, net {(capex net) {a} 2,136 1,809 +51.2%

of which acquisttions of mobile spectrum 1,065 150 x71
capital expendrtures, net excluding acquesitions of mobile spectrum 1,671 1,659 +07%

Cash flow from operations (CFFO} 693 2,032 -65 3%

of which acquisitions of mobile spectrum {1.065) {150/ x71
cash flow from operations excluding acquisttions of mobile spectrum 1,758 2,182 -194%

Mohile

Number of customers {in thousands)

Postpaid (b} 16.563 16,566 -
Prepaid 4,127 4,897 -157%

Total SFR Group 20,690 21,483 -36%

Mobile customer base market share {c) 283% 3N 3% -dpts

12-month rotling ARPU (in euros/year) (d)

Postpaid 417 462 7%
Prepaid 112 138 -17 6%

Blended ARPU 344 378 -90%

Acquisition cost compared to mobile service revenues {in %) 11% 76% Q5pt

Retention cost compared to mobile service revenues {in %) 91% 82% +09pt

Residential broadband Internet and Fixed

Number of broadband Internet customers (in thousands) 5075 5,019 (e} +11%

ADSL customer base market share 225% (f) 235% -1pt

a Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
b Includes MZM (Machine to Machine) customers
¢ Source Arcep

d  Includes mobile terminations ARPU {Average Revenue Per User}1s defined as revenues net of promotions and net of third-party content
provider revenues, excluding roaming in revenues and equipment sales divided by the average Arcep total customer base for the last
twelve months ARPU excludes M2M {Machine to Machine) data

e  0On December 31, 2011, the Broadband Internet customer base was adjusted by 23,000 customers following the removal of 1P and 2P
Akéo customers from the consolidation penmeter

f  SFR estimate for 2012
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Revenues and EBITA

SFR revenues’ amounted to £11,288 millron, a 7 3% decrease compared to 2011 due to the progressive Impact of price cuts related to the
competitive environment and to price cuts imposed by the requlators® Excluding the impact of these regulatory decisions, revenues
decreased by 3 3%

Moabile® revenues amounted to £7,516 million, an 11 1% decrease compared to 2011

Dunng the fourth quarter, SFR’s postpaid mobite customer base increased by 109,000 additions At the end of 2012, SFR's postpaid mobile
customer base reached 16 563 million, stable compared to 2011 The customer mix {the percentage of the number of postpaid customers n
the total customer base) amounted to 80 1%, a 2 9 percentage point increase year-on-year SFR's total mobile customer base reached
20 690 mullon Mobile Internet usage contnued to pragress, with 4% of SFR customers equipped with 3 smartphone (41% at the end of
2011}

SFR became the first French aperator to open the 4G network ta the mass market and enterprises  After Lyon on November 29, 2012, the 4G
network was launched in Montpellier and Pans-La Défense Four additronal cities will open in the first half 2013 This offer includes the
availability of @ wide range of compatible equipment and 15 based on « Formules Carrées » packages

SFR also introduced a new pricing policy in January 2013 offening the best value/prce ratio on the market both for tts low-cost offers and its
premium offers, the latter remaining the choice of the majonity in the French market

Broadband Internet and fixed revenues® amounted to £3,963 million, a 0 9% decrease compared to 2011, and a 0 3% increase excluding the
impact of regulated price cuts

At the end of 2012, the postpatd broadband Internet residentrat customer base reached 5 075 million, with 56,000 net additions™ year-on-
year The customer base for the quadruple play offer (" Mufti-Pack de SFR') reached 1 8 mitiion at the end of 2012

SFR's EBITDA amounted to €3,293 million, a 13 2% decrease compared to 2011 Excluding negative and positive non-recurnng 1tems
(-€15 million in 2012 and +€93 milhon in 2011}, EBITDA decreased by 10 6%

EBITA amounted to €1,600 million, a 29 8% decrease Excluding negative and positive non-recurring items and restructuring charges, EBITA
decreased by 180%

In 2012, SFR launched an adaptation plan while continuing to nvest in 4G and fiber infrastructures and adapt its organization to changing
market conditions In November, SFR announced a voluntary redundancy plan with a target of 856 net departures

Cash flow from operations {CFF0)

SFAR's cash flow from operations amounted to €693 million, a 65 9% decrease compared to 2011 This change notably (ncluded the impact of
the acquisition of 4G mobile spectrum for €1,065 million in 2012, compared to €150 miflion in 2011 Excluding these impacts, cash flow from
operations amounted to €1,758 million, compared to €2,182 million in 2011, a €424 million decrease (-19 4%), pnmanily due to the decrease
in EBITDA after changes in net working capital {-€407 million)

? Foltowing the disposal of 100% of Débitel France SA to La Poste Telécom SAS Débitel France SA with a customer base of 290,000 has been exciuded from the consoldation
penmeter since March 1 2011
8 Tanif cuts impesed by regulatory decrsion
1) 33% decrease in mobile voica tarmmation regulated pice on July T 2011, & 25% additonal decrease on January 1, 2012 and a further 33% decreass on July 1, 2012
1) 25% decrease in SMS termination regulated price on July 1, 2011 and a 33% additional decrease on July 1 2012 In addition to asymmetric tanif in favor of Free
1) Roamng tariff cuts on July 1, 2011 and July 1, 2012, and
v 40% decrease in fixed voice termination reguiated pricg on October T 2011 and & 50% additional decrease an July 1, 2012
* Mobila revenues and broadband Intemnet and fixed revenues are datermined as revenues before elmnation of intersegment gperations within SER
At the end of December 2011 SFR group broadband Internet residential customer base totaled 5 019 mulon following the exclusion of 1P and 2P Akéo customers from tha
consolidation perimeter
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424 WMaroc Telecom group

Year ended December 31

% Change at
{in millions of eures, except for margins} 2012 201 % Change constant rate
Mobile service revenues 1,529 1815 53% £6%
Equipment sales, net 45 67 32 8% 33 8%
Mobile 1574 1,682 -64% 77%
Broadband Internet and Fixed 601 660 -89% -103%
Intercompany ehmnation {87) {119} na* na*
Morocco 2,088 2,223 1% -7 4%
International 638 539 +18 4% +17 7%
Intercompany elimmation (37) {23} na* na*
Total Revenues 2,689 2739 -18% -30%
Tota! EBITDA 1,505 1,500 +0.3% -09%
EBITDA margin rate (%) 56 0% 548% +12pt
Moracco 830 1,000 -17 0% -181%
International 157 89 +76 4% 475 1%
Total EBITA 987 1,089 -94% -105%
Restructuning charges {79) - na*
EBITA excluding restructuring charges 1,066 1,089 -2.1%
Margin rate (%)} 396% 398% 42pt
Capital expenditures, net (capex net) 457 466 -19%
Cash flow from operations (CFFO) 1,066 1,035 +30%
Morocco
Number of mobile customers (in thousands)
Prepaid 16 656 16 106 +3 4%
Postpaid 1,199 1,019 +17 7%
Total 17.855 17,126 +43%
Mobile ARPU (in MAD/month) 79 87 -92%
MoU {in min/month) 122 85 +435%
Mobile churn rate {in %/yearl{a) 208% 233% -25pts
Postpaid 15 5% 134% +2 1 pts
Prepaid 227% 24 8% -26pts
Number of fixed lines {in thousands} 1,269 1241 +2 3%
Number of Broadband Internet customers {in thousands) (b} 683 51 +156%
International
Number of customers {in thousands)
Mobile 12 685 9,626 +31 8%
Fixed 298 299 03%
Broadband internet 90 99 91%

na* not applcable
a  Excluding the impact of non-recurrent termination of inactive customers

b Includes narrowband and leased line accesses
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Revenues and EBITA

Maroc Telecom group's revenues were €2,689 million, a 1 8% decrease compared to 2011 (-3 0% at constant currency) The group’s overall
customer hase mamntained positive momentum 1n 2012 with a 13 5% increase and reached nearly 33 million customers, primanly due to a
30 4% increase in the (nternational market year-on-year

Operations in Meroceo generated revenues of €2,088 million, a 6 1% decrease compared to 2011 [-7 4% at constant currency) This change
reflected the successive cuts in mobile termination rates carmed out in January and July 2012, the additional price cuts m the mobile
segment (-34 6%), and the decrease in fixed-line revenues under competitive pressure from the mobile segment The economic slowdown
and competitive environment continued to be very intense

The group’s international activitres generated revenues of €638 million, a strong 18 4% growth compared to 2011 (+17 7% at constant
currency} This performance resulted from very strong growth among mobile customers (+31 8%), enhanced product offers and higher
customer usage In a stable competitive environment Despite the conflict 1n Mali, the growth in revenues continued at a very sustained
place {+15 7% at constant currency)

The group’s EBITDA amounted to £1,505 million, a 0 3% increase compared to 2011 {-0 9% at constant currency) This performance reflected
a strong 43 5% growth (+42 6% at constant currency) in international EBITDA, which offset the 6 6% dechine in EBITDA in Morocco EBITDA
margin increased by 1 2 percentage point year-on-year, reaching the high level of 56 0%

The group’s EBITA amounted to €987 million, a 94% dechne compared to 2011 (-105% at constant currency] Excluding restructurning
charges of €79 million, EBITA amounted to £1,066 million, a 2 1% decrease, representing a 39 6% margin, a modest 0 2 percentage point
decrease

Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

Maroc Telecom group’s cash flow from operations amounted to £1,066 million, a €31 million increase compared to 2011 (+3 0%), primanly
due to the increase 1n EBITDA after changes in net working capital (€94 million} and to the reduction in capital expenditures, net
{+€3 mithion), which was partially offset by the restructuning charges paid {-£79 mithon)
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425 GVT
Year ended December 31,
% Change at
{in mullions of euros, except for margins) 2012 201 % Change constant rate
Telecoms 1,633 1,444 +131% +22 1%
Pay-TV {(a) 83 2 na* na*
Total Revenues 1,716 1,446 +18 7% +28.2%
Telecoms 749 616 +21 6% +316%
Pay-TV (a) {9) {15) na* na*
Total EBITDA 740 601 +23 1% +33 4%
EBITDA margin rate (%) 431% 41 6% +15pt
EBITA 438 39% +23.2% +337%
EBITA margin rate {%) 284% 27 4% +1pt
Total Capital expenditures, net {capex net} a7 705 +34 3%
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ} (326) (147) x22
Net Revenues (IFRS, in millions of BRL)
Voice 2577 2,081 +23 8%
Pay-TV (a) n 4 na*
Corporate and carrier data 263 235 +119%
Broadband Internet 1,188 972 +22 2%
VoiP 51 62 -16%
Total 4,300 3354 +28.2%
Number of covered cities 139 119 +20
Net Revenues by region
Region Il 59% 63% -4 pts
Regions | & HlI 1% 37% +4 pts
Total homes passed {in thousands of ines) 9,095 1,207 +26.2%
Number of hnes in service (in thousands)
Retail and SME 5515 4372 +261%
Vorce 3358 2 709 +24 0%
Broadband Internet 2157 1663 +29 7%
Proportion of offers > 10 Mbps 80% 5% +3 pts
Corporate 3154 1,954 +61 4%
Total Télécoms 8.669 6,326 +37 0%
Pay-TV {a) 406 32 na*
Total 9,075 6,358 H2.T%
Net New Additions {in thousands of lines)
Retail and SME 1,143 1337 -145%
Voice 549 769 156%
Broadband intermet 454 568 130%
Corporate 1,200 757 +58 5%
Total Télécoms 2,343 2,094 +119%
Pay-TV {a) 374 32 na*
Total 217 2126 +271 8%
ARPU by line - Retait and SME {BRl./month)
Voice 648 669 31%
Broadband Internet 509 580 -122%

na* not apphcable
a  GVT launched its pay-TV offer in October 2011
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Revenues and EBITA

GVT's revenues reached €1,716 million, an 18 7% ncrease compared to 2011 (+28 2% at constant currency), excluding the impact of tax
changes (VAT), revenues (ncreased by 35% at constant currency In 2012, GVT expanded ws coverage to 20 additional cities and currently
covers 139 cities As a result of commercial efforts and geographical network expansion, GVT Telecom lines-in-service reached
8 669 million, a 37 0% ncrease year-on-year After only one year in operation, its pay-TV service generated revenues of €93 million

GVT was named the best Broadband service in Brazil for the 4™ consecutive year, offenng the most modern and differentiated network 1n
Brazil At the end of 2012, 44% of its customers opted for speeds equal to or higher than 15 Mbps, compared to 37% one year ago

Launched commerctally in January 2012, the number of subscribers to rts new pay-TV service totaled about 406,000 as of
December 31, 2012, representing an 18 8% penetration rate among the broadband customer base During 2012, GVT's share of the net adds
of the entire Brazilian pay-TV market reached 11 4%, and when considering only the cities where 1t operates, GVT's share of net adds
reached 27 7%

GVT's EBITDA was €740 mithon, a 23 1% increase compared to 2011 (+33 4% at constant currency) and EBITDA margin reached the record
level of 43 1%, or 45 9% for the telecom activities only

GVT's EBITA was €488 million, a 23 2% increase compared to 2011 (+33 7% at constant currency and 457 5% excluding the impact of the
VAT change and at constant currency)

GVT's capital expenditures amounted to €347 million, a 34 3% increase compared to 2011, of which approximately €248 million related to
the pay-TV business GVT reached break-even on an EBITDA-Capex bass for its telecom activities

Cash flow from operations {CFFO)

GVT's cash flow from aperations amounted to €326 mullion, compared to -€147 million 1n 2011 This change reflected the increase in GVT’s
capital expenditures, net to €347 milion in 2012, compared to €705 million 1n 2011, which was primarily related to investments in networks
in order to increase coverage in regions | and i}, as well as investments relating to the pay-TV operations However, cash flow from
operations before capital expenditures (CFFQ before capex, net) increased by 11 3% in 2012, to €621 million, reflecting the growth in EBITDA
after changes in net working capital
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426 Canal+ Group

Year ended December 31
% Change at
{1 mulbons of euros, except for margins) 012 201 % Change constant rate
Revenues {a) 5013 4857 +32% +32%
EBITDA 940 913 +30% +31%
EBITA 663 m -5 4% -53%
EBITA margin rate (%) 132% 14 4% 12pt
D8 D17, and "n" integration {including transition costs} {51} -

EBITA excluding D8 D17, and "n" integrauan {including transition costs) 74 m +19%
Cash fiow from operations {CFFQ) 476 484 17%
Subscriptions {in thousands}

Pay TV France [b) 9680 9760 80

Canal+ Qverseas (¢} 1 683 145 +227
Canal+ France 11 363 11216 +147
Poland {at constant penmeter) and Vietnam 1,882 1730 +152
Total Canal+ Group at constant penimeter 13.245 12,945 +299
"n" platform in Poland 1008 na® +1 009
Total Canal+ Group 14,254 12.946 +1,308
Churn per digital subscnber (Mainland France) 136% 121% +15pt
ARPU 1n euros per subscriber (Mainland France) 480 415 +11%

a Includes the D8 and D17 free-to-air channels, consolidated since September 27, 2012, as well as the “n” platform, consolidated since
November 30, 2012 The contribution of these entities to Canal+ Group’s revenues amounted to €41 milion, since their respective
consolidation date For information, revenues and EBITA of D8, D17, and “n” amounted to €287 million and -€95 mullon in 2012,
respectively

b Includes subscriptions with commitment at Canal+ and CanalSat, as well as subscriptions with no commitment at CanalPlay Infinity in
Mainland France

¢ Includes French overseas territories and Africa

Revenues and EBITA

Canals Group's revenues were €5,013 million, a 3 2% increase compared to 2011 {+2 4% at comparable penmeter, 1e excluding D8, D17
and the new activities in Poland)

At the end of December 2012, Canal+ France, which includes Canal+ Group's pay-TV activities in France and French-speaking countries, had
11 363 million subscriptions, representing a net growth of 147,000 year-on-year This growth was driven by strong performances at Canal+
Qverseas {in French overseas terntories and primanly n Africa), which had 1683 mullion subscriptions at year-end, a net growth of
227,000 subscriptions, compared to 2011 In mainland France, the subscription portfolio reached 9 680 mitlion, a shght decrease compared to
2011 due to a difficult economic and competitive environment Average revenue per subscriber increased slightly to €48, particularly
reflecting improved cross-selling between Canal+ and CanalSat offenings

Revenues from other Canal+ Group activities grew strongly thanks to StudioCanal and new ternational actvities {notably in Poland and
Vietnam}, as well as to free-to-air TV

Excluding the impact of D8, D17 and the new activities 1n Poland (as well as transition costs), Canak Group's EBITA amounted to
€714 million, 2 1 9% ncrease year-on-year, thanks to Canal+ Overseas’ growth, notably n Africa, and despite the negative impact of a VAT
nse {around €40 million} Including the 1impact of the integration of the new activities in Poland and of D8 and D17, Canal+ Group's EBITA
reached €663 milhon

On January 31, 2013, Canal+ Group renewed its exclusive nights to England's Premier League, the world's most widely broadcast football
championship, for the coming three seasons As a result, 1t will be positioned to offer 1ts subscribers the best French and European soccer,
with the top twao of the Ligue 1, the top Champions League and 100% of the English Premier League In addition, Canal+ Group announced
on February 14, 2013, that it had secured exclusive nghts in France to the Formula 1 world championshup

Cash flow from operations (CFFO}

Canal+ Group's cash flow from operations amounted to €476 mitkon, compared to €484 million in 2011 The favorable evolution in EBITDA
after changes in net working capital were offset by the increase in content investments, net (notably StudioCanal)

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivend /30




Tuesday, February 26, 2013 |

42.7 Holding & Corporate

Year ended December 31

{in millions of eurcs) 2012 2011

EBITA {115) {100)
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ) {94) (84)
EBITA

Holding & Corporate’s EBITA was -€115 million, compared to -€100 miilion in 2011, due notably to higher hitigation costs and several one-
time items

Cash flow from operations {CFFQ)

Holding & Corporate’s cash flow from operations amounted to -€94 million, compared to -€84 million 10 2011 The change in cash flow from
operations between 2011 and 2012 was mainly attnbutable to the change in EBITA

428 Non-core operations and others

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euras) 2012 20Mm |
Non-core operations and others 65 41 |
Elimination of intersegment transactions {89) (82)
Total Revenues {24) (41)
EBITA {14) 22)
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ) (9 (16)
Revenues and EBITA

Revenues from non-core operations amounted to €65 million, a €24 million increase, following the 2012 contribution of Digrtick (€11 million
(n 2012, compared to €3 million in 2011), and of See Tickets (€33 mullion in 2012, compared to €12 millon 1n 2011} acquired on
August 23, 2011

EBITA irom non-core operations amounted to -€14 million in 2012, compared to -€22 million 1n 2011 This increase was mainly due to the
contrtbution of See Tickets (€11 million m 2012, compared to €4 milhon in 2011} !
Cash flow from operations (CFFQ)

Cash flow from operations from nan-core operations amounted to -€9 million, compared to -£16 million 1n 2011 This change was mainly
related to the change in EBITA
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5 Treasury and capital resources

Preliminary comments:

9.1

Vivend! considers Financial Net Debt, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant indicator in measuring Vivend!'s indebtedness Financial Net
Debt 15 calculated as the sum of tong-term and short-term borrowings and other iong-term and short-term financial liabilities as reported
on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, less cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position as well as denvative financial instruments in assets, cash depesits backing borrowings, and certain cash management
financial assets (included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Posttion under “financial assets”) Financial Net Debt should be
considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for, other GAAP measures reparted on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position,
as well as other measures of indebtedness reported in accordance with GAAP Vivend: Management uses Financial Net Debt for reporting
and planning purposes, as well as to comply with certain debt covenants of Vivend:

In addition, cash and cash equivalents are not fully available for debt repayments since they are used for several purposes, including but
not limited to, acquisitions of businesses, capital expenditures, diwdends, contractual obligations and working capital

Summary of Vivendi’s exposure to credit and liquidity risks

Vivendi's financing policy consists of incurring long-term debt, mainly in bond and banking markets, at a variable or fixed rate, in euros or in
US dollars, depending on general corporate needs and market conditions

Non-current financial debts are primanly raised by Vivendi SA, which centralizes the group’s financing management, except for Actvision
Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group In this context, in 2012, Vivendi pursued 1ts policy of disintermediation, having recourse in
prionity to the bond market Vivendi also sought to diversify its investor base by 1ssuing on the American bond market and pursued
its policy of mantaining the “economic” average term of the group’s debt above 4 vears In additicn, Vivend: has a Euro Medium
Term Notes program on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, which is renewed each year, i order to take advantage of every euro
bond market opportunity Vivend:'s bank counterparties must meet certain critenia of financial soundness, reflected in their credit rating
with Standard & Poor's and Moody's Moreover, to comply with the rating agencies’ prudential regulations regarding liquidity
management, Vivend: arranges to the extent possible, the refinancing of all expinng bank credit facilities or bonds one year In
advance As a result, n 2012, Vivendi made three bond 1ssuances 1n euro for a total amount of €2,250 million {January, Apnl and
December 2012}, and one 1ssuance in US dollars for $2,000 million {Apni 2012}

Contractual agreements for credit facilities granted to Vivendr SA do not include provisions that tie the conditions of the loan to its
financial ratings from rating agencies They contain customary provisions related te events of default and at the end of each half-
year, Vivendi SA 15 notably required to comply with a financial covenant (please refer to Note 22 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012} The credit facilities granted to group companies other than Vivend: SA are
intended to finance either the general needs of the borrowing subsidrary or specific projects

In 2012, \nvestments, working capital, debt service (including the redemption of borrowings), and the payment of come taxes and
the dividend distnbution, were financed by cash flow from operations, net, asset disposals, and borrowing or share 1ssuances
(Direct 8 and Direct Star} For the foreseeable future and based on the cument financia! conditions on the financial market, subject
to potential transactions which may be implemented in connection with the group’s change in scope, Vivendi intends to maintain
this financing policy for its ivestments and operations

As of December 31, 2012

The group's bond debt amounted to £10,888 million {compared to €9,276 million as of December 31, 2011) In 2012, Vivend: 1ssued
bonds 0 euros and in US dollars for a total amount of €3,758 million and redeemed bonds for a total amount of €2,048 million {of
which $700 million {or €448 million} were early redeemed in Apnl/May 2012) For additional information on this bond debt, please
refer to Section 54 below The group’s bond debt represented 61% of the borrowings in the Statement of Financsal Position
{compared to 59% as of December 31, 2011)

The total amaunt of the group's confirmed credit faciities amounted to €9,038 million {compared to €12,083 millon as of
December 31, 2011) The group’s aggregate amount of credit faciities neither drawn nor backed by commercial paper amounted to
£3,361 million {compared to £6,635 million as of December 31, 2011) The decrease in the amount of credit facilities neither drawn
nor backed by commercial paper was notably dug to the disintermediation policy, the increase sn the outstanding amount of
commercial paper, and the financing of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Musie by drawing on credit facilities

Vivendi SA's and SFR's total confirmed credit facilires amounted to €8,340 million as of December 31, 2012 (including €2 billion in
available swingltnes), compared to £11,242 mulhon as of December 31, 2011 All these credit facilities have a maturity greater than
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one year These credit facilities were drawn for €1,.894 million as of December 31, 2012 Considenng the €3,255 million
commercial paper tssued at that date and backed to bank credit facihties, these facilities were available up to a maximum amount
of €3,191 million

= Inconnectron with its appeal of the verdict rendered in the Liberty Media Corparation Iitigation, Vivend) will shortly deliver a letter
of credit ssued by Bank of Amenica for the benefit of Liberty Media Corporation, for €975 millien ([damages and interest, as well as
legal costs) The latter was guaranteed by a syndicate of fifteen interationa! banks with which Vivendi has signed a
Reimbursement Agreement which includes an undertaking by Vivendi to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out under the
letter of credit The Reimbursement Agreement notably contains events of default and acceleration clauses similar to those
contaned in Vivendi's credit faciities in certain circumstances, these provisions could cause Vivendi to have to post cash
collateral for the benefit of the banks In the same way, if one of the 15 banks defaults in respect of its obligations and was not
able to 1ssue a guarantee sufficient enough to provide comfort to Bank of America, Vivendi could be caused to substitute such
bank with another bank or, as a last resort, be obligated to post cash collateral in the amount of such bank’s participation in the
letter of credit

e The short-term borrowings mainly included 1ssued commercial paper The “economic” average term of the group’s debt was
4 4 years (compared to 4 0 years as of December 31, 2011)

e Finally, there 1 no restnction on the use of the financial resources which the group’s companies benefit {including Vivendi SA) that
may materially affect, directly or indirectly, the group’s activities

On October 26, 2012, Standard & Poor's removed the credit watch negative that 1t had placed on Vivendi’s debt on July 4, 2012 and
confirmed the rating, with a negative outlook, of the BBB long-term debt and the A-2 short-term debt rating, which 1s used as a reference for
the 1ssuance program of commercial paper Vivend: reaffirmed its commitment to maintaning such credit rating

As of February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivendi's Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012, Vivend: SA and SFR had available confirmed credit facilities amounting to £€8,340 million, of which €500 million were
drawn Considering the amount of commercial paper 1ssued at that date, and backed on bank credit facilities for €3.991 million, these
facilities were available for an aggregate amount of £3,849 million Moreover, the sale of Parlophone Label Group, announced on February 7,
2013, for £487 million {please refer to Note 2 1 to the Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012), should be
finalized during the second half of 2013

Taking nto account the foregaing, Vivend: considers that the cash flows generated by its operating actvities, its cash and cash equivalents,
as well as the amounts available through its current bank credit facilities will be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and capital
expenditures, service its debt {including the redemption of borrowings), pay 1ts Income taxes and dividends, as well as to fund its financial
investment projects, if any, for the next twelve months, subject to potentral transactions which may be implemented in connection with the
group’s change in scope In addition, Vivendi considers that the bank commitments received on September 28, 2012 to cover the letter of
credit to be soon put in place in connection with its appeal of the Liberty Media Corporation lihgatien will be sufficient to suspend
enforcement of the judgment by Liberty Media Corporation untii the appeal 1s resolved
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.2 Financial Net Debt changes

As of December 31, 2012, Vivend's Financial Net Debt amounted to €13.418 million {compared to £€12,027 million as of December 31, 2011), a
£€1,392 millon increase This change notably reflected the following transactions

- the impact of the acqursition of EMI Recorded Music (€1,322 milhon, of which £1,363 million paid in cash and €34 million net cash
acqurred) and the 40% nterest in N-Viston (€277 million, excluding the redemption of the loan granted by Canal+ Group to [Tl in
November 2011}, for further details please refer to Section 1 1 above,

- the cash payments related to capital expenditures (4,490 mitlion, of which €1,065 mullion was paid in January 2012 by SFR for 4G
mobile spectrum),

- the dividends patd notably to shareowners of Vivendi SA (1,245 mrhon), Maroc Telecom SA (€345 million), and Activision Blizzard
{€62 rmillion), and the 1mpact of Activision Blizzard's stock repurchase program (€241 mithon), and

- Interest expense (E568 million),

- the above 1tems being offset by net cash generated by operating activities of business segments {£7,106 millien) and by the capital
increase subscribed by emplayees in connection with Vivendi SA’s employee stock purchase plan in July 2012 {127 mullion)

Refer to Notes tg the
Consolidated December 31 2012 December 31, 2011

i millions of euros) Financral Statements

Borrowtngs and gther financial liabiities 17757 15710
of which long-term (a) 22 12 667 12 409
short-term (a) 22 5090 3301

Cash management financral assets (b} {c} 15 (301) (266)
Derivative financial instruments in assets (b} 15 (137 (101}
Cash deposits backing borrowings {b) 19 {61 {12
17.313 15331

Cash and cash equivalents {a) 17 (3894) {3304)
of which Activision Bhzzard {2.989) {2,448}
Financial Net Debt 13,419 12,027

a Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
b Included in the Financial Assets items of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

¢ Pnmanly included Activisson Blizzard's US treasuries and government agency securities, with a matunty exceeding three maonths

Cash and cash Borrowangs and other  Impact on Financial Net
i millions of euras} equivalents financial 1tems {a) Debt
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2011 {3.304) 15,331 12,027
Outflows/linflows) generated by
Operating activities {7 106) - {7 108}
Investing actmvties 6,042 21 6,063
Financing actwities A77 2085 2512
Foreign cufrency translation adjustments a7 (124} {77)
Change 1n Financial Net Debt over the penod {590} 1982 1392
Frnancial Net Debt as of December 31, 2012 {3.894) 17313 13419

a “Other financial rtems” include commitments to purchase non-controlling interests, derivative financial instruments {assets and
liatihties), cash deposits backing borrawings, as well as cash management financial assets
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{in millions of guros)

EBIT

Adjustments

Content «vestments net

Gross cash provided by operating sctivitios bofore income tax paid
Other changes i net worlang caprtal

Nat cash provided by operating itras bafore tax paid
Incoma tax paid net

Operating activities

Financia! investments
Purchases of consoldated companies after acquired cash
of which aequisttion of EMI Recorded Music by Vivend: and UMG
Payment 1n cash
Ne! cash acquired
Investments i equity affiliates
of which acquisition of 40% winterest in N Vision by Canals Group
Increase in financial assets
Tots! financial investments
Financial divestmonts
Proceeds from sales of consohdated compames after divested cash
Disposal of equity affikates
Decrease in financial assets
of which redemption of th foan granted by Canals Group ta IT!
Total inancial drvastments

K 1mb § atrme it -t
F

Diwdends recarved from equity affiliates

Dradends recerved from unconsoiidated companies
Netinvesting activities exchsding cepital expendimuses and procesds
from sales of property plant, equipmaent and intang(ble assets

Capital expenditures

Proceads from sales of property plant equipment and intangible assets
Capital expenditurss, net
Investing activities

Year ended December 31 2012

'::iz;: Impact on cashand Impact on boowangs  Impact on Financial
cash equivalents and cther financral items Net Debt

? {2518} - (2.878)
{5199} - 15199}

29 299

{2.778) - {2,778)

80 (90

3 17.868) - (7.868)
3 782 762
171067 - 17 106)

1314 56 1432

1 1280 43 1329
1363 1363

& 49 )

22 322

1 277 277
9% B0} 33

1795 2 1793

[ {13)

[1al} 11}

215 23 {192)

1 120} 120t
{239} 23 {216)

1536 21 1577

[K1] - 3

1 1)

1.582 2 1573

4516 4516

128} (26}

3 49 - 1450
6,002 21 6.063

Please refer to the next page for the end of this table
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Continued from previous page

Year ended December 31 2012

rl:::;: Impact on cash and Impact on borrowings Impact on Financial
cash equivalents and other financial items Net Debt
{in millions of euros)
T 1! with sh L]
Net proceeds {rom 1ssuance of common shares in connechion with Vivendi SA's share based compensation plans {¥31) {131}
of winch capital increase subscnbed by employees in connection with the stock purchase plan {127} - {127)
[Sales)/purchases of Vivend SA 5 treasury shares 18 18
Drvidends paid by Vivends SA (€1 per share} 1 1245 - 1245
(ther transactions with shareowners 229 - 229
of which stock repurchase program of Actiston Bhzzard 1 241 241
Dividends pasd by consolhidated companies to their non-controlling interests 1 483 483
of which Maroc Telecom SA M5 45
Actrvision Bhzard 62 - 62
Total transactions with sh 1.844 - 1844
Transactions on borrowings and other finonc! Liabilites
Setting up of long term borrowings and increase in gther long term financial iabilities 64 {5 B59) 5859
of which bonds {3 758) 3758
bank credit facilities {1894) 1894
Principal payments on long tem borrowings and decrease in other iong term financial habiliies 4217 #217)
of which bank credit facilities 4176 {4 176)
Principal payments on short term borrowangs 54 2615 {2615) -
of which bonds 2048 12 048) -
bank credrt faciiities 771 271 -
commercial paper 40 {46
Other changes in short ternm borrowangs and other financial habilittes {30561 3056
of whith commercial paper {2 767) 2767 -
Non-tash transactions z 2
Interest pad net 3 568 568
Other cash items related to financial activities 3 98 9B
Total ransactions on borrewings and othar hnancral habiites (1417) 2085 668
Financing activities ¢ 427 2085 2512
Forergn currency translation adjustments D 47 {124) 77}
Change m Financial Net Debt A+B4C4D 1590} 150 1352

5.4 New financings

Bonds
In January 2012, Vivend 1ssued a €1,250 mllion bond, with a 5 5-year maturity and a 4 125% coupon, and an effective rate of 4 31%
In Apnl 2012, Vivendi made the following transactions in the bond markets

+ A $2 billion bond 1ssue consisting of the following three tranches
- $550 million with a 2 4% coupon maturing in Apn! 2015 and an effective rate of 250% A USD-EUR foreign currency hedge
{cross-currency swap) was set up to hedge this tranche with a rate of 1 3082 USD/EUR, or a €420 milhion counter value at
matunty,
- $650 million, with a 3 450% coupon matunng in January 2018 and an effective rate of 3 56%, and
- $800 mullion, with a 4 750% coupon maturing in Apnl 2022 and an effective rate of 4 91%
This band notably allowed the early redemption, through a tender offer, of the $700 million bond, with an initial scheduled matunty in
April 2013

e A £300 milkion tap sssue on the €750 million bond maturing 1n July 2021, with a 4 750% coupon Thes transaction increased the total
amount of the bond 1ssue to £1,050 millron, with an effective rate of 4 67% [compared to 4 90% as of December 31, 2011)

In December 2012, Vivend: 1ssued a £700 million bond, with a 7-year and one month matunity and a 2 500% coupon, and an effective rate of
265%

Moreaver, the bonds 1ssued in February and Juty 2005 for €600 million and €1,000 million were redeemed upon matunity in February and
July 2012, respectively
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Bank credit facilities

¢ In January 2012, Vivend: set up a €11 billion bank credit facility with a 5-year maturity, which permitted the early refinancing of the
€1 5billion eredit facility with an initial scheduled matunty in December 2012 and a €05 billon SFR syndicated loan with an initial
scheduted maturnity in March 2012, and

e InMay 2012, Vivend: set up a €1 5 biflion bank credit facility matuning in May 2017, which permitted the early refinancing of the two credit
facihties for a total amount of €3 tillion (the €2 billion credit facility set up in August 2006, matuning in August 2013 for €1 7 billion and in
August 2012 for €0 3 bidlion, as well as the €1 illion credit facility set up in February 2008, maturing in February 2013)

Mareover, in June 2012, Vivend: ncreased the maximum amount authonized by the Bangue de France regarding Vivendi SA's commercial
paper program from €3 billion to €4 illion

For a detailed analysis of the bond and bank credit facdives as of December 31, 2012, please refer to Note 22 to the Consolidated Financral
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

5.5 Financing of subsidiaries

Excluding pnmanly Actwision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom, Vivendi SA centrahizes daily cash surpluses {cash pooling) of all controlled
entities (a) that are not subject to local regulations restricting the transfer of financial assets or (b} that are not subject to other contractual
agreements In particular, the increase to a 100% ownership interest in SFR on June 16, 2011 {please refer to Note 2 5 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012), has enabled Vivend SA to centralize all of SFR's cash surpluses on a daily basis
from July 1, 2011 through a cash pooling account

Alternatively, in particular at Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom, cash surpluses are not pooled by Vivendi SA but rather, as the case
may be, dstributed as dividends when they are not used to finance mvestments of the relevant subsidianes, as commen stock repurchases
or to redeem borrowngs used to finance therr vestments Regarding Activision Blizzard, up until July 9, 2013, the distnbution of any
dwvidend by Activision Blizzard requires the affirmative vote of a majonty of the independent directors if Activision Blizzard's Financial Net
Debt, after giving effect to such dividend, exceeds $400 rmillion

Activision Blizzard's net cash position amounted to €3,290 million (€2,714 million as of December 31, 2011} This amount notably includes US
treasuries and government agency securties having a matunty exceeding three months for $387 muliion {compared to $344 million as of
December 31, 2011}, classified as short-term financial assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position In addition, cash and cash
equivalents also include cash held outside the United States by Activision Blizzard's non-Amenican subsidiaries for €1,936 million {compared
to €1,266 million as of December 31, 2011} The funds held by foreign subsidiaries are generally subject to US income taxation on
repatriation to the United States

Maroc Telecom group’s Financial Net Debt amounted to €638 million (€617 mullion as of December 31, 2011)
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Outlook

Prelimmary comments. The outlook for 2013 presented below regarding revenues, EBITA, EBITA margin rates, EBITDA, EBITDA margin
rates, cash flow from operations {CFFO), and capital expenditures 1s based an data, assumptions, and estimates considered as reasonable by
Vivend: Management They are subject to change or modification due to uncertanties related n particular to the economic, financial,
competitive and/or regulatory environment Moreover, the matenalization of certam nisks described in Note 27 to the Consolidated Financial
Statermnents couid have an impact on the group’s eperations and its abihity to achieve its outlook for 2013 Finally, Yivendi considers that the
non-GAAP measures, EBITA. EBITDA, CFFO. and capital expenditures are relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial
performance

Vivendi's 2012 actuals compared to outlook

On March 1, 2012, Vivendi expected a 2012 adjusted net income above €2 5 billion, before the impact of the transactions announced
i the second half of 2011 {as a reminder acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by UMG, acquisition of the D8 and D17 channels by
Canal+ Group, and strategic partnership between Canal+ Group, IT!, and TVN in Poland} As a result, the group expected to propose a
cash dividend with respect to fiscal year 2012 represent:ng around 45% to 55% of adjusted net income In addition, Vivend: expected
Financial Net Debt to be below €14 billion at year end 2012, assuming closing by end of 2012 of the transactions announced in the
second half of 2011

On Novemnber 13, 2012, given the better than expected performance of Vivendr's businesses for the first nine months of 2012, which
offset the economic slowdown and heavier tax environment, Vivend announced an improvement in the 2012 adjusted net income
auidance ta “around €2 7 billion, before the impact of the transactions announced 1n the second half of 2011 and the restructunng
charges in telecom operations”

In 2012, Vivendi's adjusted net income amounted to €2,550 million, after the impact of the transactigns announced in the second half
of 2011 (-€51 million for Canal+ Group and -€2 million for UMG) and restructuring charges in its telecom operations {-€187 million for
SFR and -€79 million for Maroc Telecom group), as well as the fine sncurred by SFR (-€66 million} Excluding these non-recurning items
and after the impact of income taxes and non-controlling interests, adjusted net income amounted to €2,852 million, above the
upgraded guidance announced on November 13, 2012

In addition, at the end of December 2012, Financial Net Debt amounted to £13 4 billian {below the guidance of “below €14 billion™)
and the Management Board will propose, at the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on April 30, 2013, a €1 dwidend per share. to be
paid 1n cash, representing a distribution of £1,300 milhon, or 51% of adjusted net income, or 45% of adjusted net income, excluding
these non-recurring 1tems

Vivendi’s outlock for 2013

Vivend:'s new strategic onientation focuses on strangthening in media and content and the maximization of SFR's value The group’s
strong presence In content {games, mustc, and audiovisual) provides a sold and unique foundation to build a worldwide European-
born media leader Vivendr owns and creates high-guality content with strong brands and a unique know-how Moreaver, SFR will
strive to stabilize 1ts operations thanks to a proactive commercial strategy, invest to boost growth, adapt its cost structure to a new
bipolanzed market (and execute the €500 miflhon fixed cost savings plan), and seek to enter into partnerships {network sharing /
industnal partnerships}

Through this strengthening i media and content and the maximization of SFR's value, Vivend’'s Management Board remains
committed to focusing on shareholder value creation (through dividend distnbutions, share buybacks, and strategic acquisitions),
adjusted net income per share, and mawntaming a long-term credit rating of BBB {Standard & Poor’s / Fitch) / Baa2 (Moady's)

Vivendi’'s prionities for 2013 will be to focus on cash flow generation n a slow economic enviranment, continue to adapt 1ts telecoms
businesses to a challenging enwironment, and integrate the acquisitions closed in 2012 and deliver initial synergies

Activision Blizzard

In 2012, Activiston Blizzard exceeded 1ts guidance with an EBITA of €1,149 million, driven by the strength of its main franchises (Call
of Duty, Skyfanders, World of Warcraft and Diabio Iff

tn the short term, Activision Blizzard expects to defiver strong profitability, but below its record setting 2012 performance, due to a
challenged globa! economy, the ongoing console transition and a smaller number of game releases compared to 2012 However, for
2013, the EBITA guidance 1s still above $1 bilion

In addition, according to February 7, 2013's announcement on outlook, Activision Blizzard 1s considering or may consider during 2013,
substantial stock repurchases, dividends, acquisitions, licensing or other non-ordinary course transactions, and significant related debt
financings Activision Blizzard's full year 2013 outlook does not take into account any such transactions or financings that may or may
not occur duning the year, with the exception of the $0 19 per share cash dividend announced on February 7, 2013
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Universal Music Group {UMG)

SFR

In 2012, in line with its guidance, UMG achieved a double digit EBITA margin, at constant penmeter [before the impact of the
acquisition of EMI Recorded Music, announced on November 11, 2011 and completed on September 28, 2012) 12 4%, compared to
12 1% 1 2011, notably thanks to the increase in digital sales and to cost reductions

For 2013, UMG expects an increase in EBITA, with a positive contribution from EMI Recorded Music, including restructuning charges
The combination of UMG and EMI Recorded Music 1s expected to generate annual synergies above £100 million per annum by the end
of 2014, despite having ta sell one third of EMI Recorded Music’s revenues

The sale of Parlophone Label Group, part of EMI Recorded Music, for £487 million (approxmately €600 million after taking into
account the EUR/GBP foreign currency hedge in place), to be paid in cash, was announced on February 7, 2013 Additional, less
sigruficative divestments (of which natably Sanctuary, Mute, Co-Op) were also sold brnging the total amount of sales to exceed
£530 mullron, all of which are pending regulatory approvals

in 2012, the decrease in EBITDA, excluding negative and positive non-recurring 1tems {-€15 mullion in 2012 and +€93 million in 2011},
decreased by 10 6% thanks to its adaptation plan and the strong control of its commercial costs Cash flow from operations, excluding
the impact of the acquisition of 4G spectrum for €1,065 million amounted to €1,758 million Capital expenditures, net amounted to
€2,736 million in 2012 {€1,671 million excluding the acquisition of 4G spectrum} In addition, in 2012, SFR launched an adaptation plan
whife contiruing to invest in 4G and fiber infrastructures and adapt its crgamization to changing market conditions In November 2012,
it announced a voluntary redundancy plan with a target of 856 net departures

For 2013, SFR expects EBITDA of close to €2 8 billion and capital expenditures, net of around €1 6 billion and confirms its objective to
reduce operational costs by approximately €500 million by year-end 2014

Maroc Telecom group

GVT

In 2012, Maroc Telecom group’s EBITA margin, excluding restructuring charges, was better-than-expected, at 39 6% thanks to
outstanding results of its International activities Cash flow from operations amounted to €1,066 million 1n 2012 {compared to
€1,035 milhon in 2011}

For 2013, Maroc Telecom group expects to maintain the EBITDA margin at a substantial level of approximately 56% and a slight
growth in EBITDA - capex (excluding potential acquisition of spectrum and hicenses)

In 2012, GVT’s revenues increased by 28 2%, at constant currency and 1t achieved an EBITDA margin of 43 1%, including the impact of
the pay-TV business Capital expenditures, net amounted to €947 million {compared to €705 million n 2011} For the telecom actvities
only, GVT reached break-even on an EBITDA - capex basis

For 2013, GVT expects revenues growth in the low 20's at constant currency, an EBITDA margin slightly above 40%, and an EBITDA -
capex close to breakeven

Canal+ Group

In 2612, 1n line with its guidance, Canal+ Group's EBITA increased by 1 9% at constant perimeter {before the impact of the acquisition
of the D8 and D17 channels, completed on September 27, 2012 and of the merger between Cyfra+ and “n™ in Poland, completed on
November 30, 2012)

For 2013, Canal+ Group expects an EBITA of around €670 million {excluding restructuning charges related to pay-TV in Poland), up
€50 million compared with 2012 proforma EBITA of €620 million, including & €95 million loss related to D8, D17 and “n”, assuming
ownership as of January 1, 2012
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1 Forward-looking statements

Cautionary note regarding forward-looking statements

This Financial Report contains forward-looking statements with respect to Vivendr's financial condition, results of operations, business,
strategy. plans, and outlook of Vivend, inciuding projections regarding the payment of dwvidends as well as the impact of certain
transactions Although Vivend) believes that such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, such statements are
not guarantees of future performance Actual results may differ matenally from the forward-looking statements as a result of a number of
risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside Vivend:'s control, including, but not mited to, the nisks related to antitrust and other
regulatory approvals in connection with certain transactions as well as the nsks descnbed in the documents of the group filed with the
Autonté des Marchés Financiers (AMF) (the French secunties regulator), which are available in English on Vivend''s website
(www vivendi com} Accordingly, readers of this Financial Report are cautioned against relying on any of these forward-looking statements
These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Financial Report Vivend disclaims any intention or obligation to provide,
update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise

8 Other Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivendr does not sponsor an Amencan Depositary Receipt {ADR) facility in respect of its shares Any ADR facility currently in existence 15
“unsponscred” and has no ties whatsoever to Vivend: Vivendi disclaims any hability in respect of any such facility

Translation

This Financial Report 1s an English translation of the French version of such report and 1s provided for informational purposes only This
translation 1s qualified in its entirety by the French version, which 1s available on the company's website (www vivendi com) In the event of
any inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the English translation, the French version will prevail
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Il - Appendices to the Financial Report: Unaudited
supplementary financial data

1. Adjusted netincome

Vivendi considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant indicator of the group’s operating and financial performance
Vivendi Management uses adwusted net income because it illustrates the underlying performance of continuing operations more effectively
by excluding most non-recurnng and non-operating items Adjusted nst ncome 1s defined in Note 12 3 to the Consohdated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Reconciliation of eamings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2012 2011

Eamings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners (a) 164 2631
Adustments
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 487 510
Impairment losses on intangibie assets acquired through business cambinations {a} 760 397
Reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Comporation Hitigation 1n the United States (a) 945 -
Other income (a) (22) {1385)
Other charges (a) 235 696
Other finaneial iIncome {a) (37) (14)
Gther financial charges (a) 210 167
Change in deferred tax asset related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group and to the
Consolidated Globa! Profit Tax Systems 48 129
Non-recurnng 1tems related to proviston for income taxes {25} 4
Provision for income taxes on adjustmenis {203) {200}
Non-controlling intarests on adjustments 12) {30}

Adjusted net income 2,550 2,952

a  Aspresented (n the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Adjusted net income per share

Year ended December 31,

2012 01
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Adjusted net income (in millions of euros) 2,550 2,547 (a} 2,952 2,949 {a)
Number of sharas (in millions)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding {b} {c) 1,298 9 1,298 9 1,2814 1,2814
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation {d) - i5 - 24
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 12989 1.302.4 12814 12838
Adjusted net incoma per share {in euros) (b} 196 186 230 230

a Includes only the potential dilutive effect related to employee stock option plans and restricted stock plans for Activision Blizzard in a
non-significant amount

b The weighted-average number of shares and adjusted net income per share have been adjusted for all periods previously published in
order to reflect the difution ansing from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012, of one bonus share for each 30 shares held, in
accordance with IAS 33 - Earnings per share Please refer to Section 11 8 of the Financtal Report above

¢ Netof treasury shares (please refer to Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012)

d  Does not include accretive instruments as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 which could potentially become dilutive The
balance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA's share based compensation plan 1s presented in Note 2122 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
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2. Reconciliation of Activision Blizzard's revenues and EBITA!

As reported below, the reconciliation of Activision Blizzard's revenues and EBITA to iFRS as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 201115
based on

e Activisson Bhzzard's data prepared tn compliance with US GAAP standards, in US dollars, contained i 1ts Farm 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2612 and non-GAAP measures published by Activision Blizzard on February 22, 2013, and

e data relating to Actvision Blizzard established i accordance with IFRS standards, in euros, as published by Vivendi 1n its Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
Non-GAAP measures of Activision Blizzard

Activision Blizzard provides net revenues, net iIncome {loss), earnings {loss) per share, operating margin data and guidance both including {in
accordance with US GAAP) and excluding (non-GAAP) certain items The non-GAAP financial measures exclude the following tems, as
applicable in any given reporting period

I the change in deferred net revenues and related costs of sales with respect to certain of the company's online-enabled games,
i expenses related to equity-based compensation,
n expenses related to restructuring,
v impairment of intangible assets acquired through business combimations,
v the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinat:ons, and

Vi the income tax adjustments associated with any of the above 1tems

Revenues reconciliation

Year ended December 31,

2012 2011

Non-GAAP Net Revenues {in millions of dollars) 4,987 4,489
Elmination of non-GAAP adjustments

Changes n deferred net revenues {a) {131} 266
Net Revenues in US GAAP {in millions of doblars), as published by Activision
Blizzard 4,856 4,755
Ehimination of US GAAP vs IFRS differences na* na*
Net Revenues n IFRS {in millions of dollars) 4,856 4,755
DOollar to evro transiation
Net Revenues in IFRS (tn millions of euros), as published by Vivendi 3,768 3432
of which

Activision 2,370 2,047

Blizzard 1,160 1,082

Distribution 238 303

Please refer to the Notes on the next page

na* not applicable

! Note For a definstion of EBITA, plaase refer to Section 4 2 of this Financial Report
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EBITA recanciliation.

Year ended December 31,

2012 20m

Non-GAAP Operating Income/({Loss) {in milhions of dollars) 1,698 1,358
Elimination of non-GAAP adiustments

Changes in deferred net revenues and related cost of sales (a) (91} 183

Equity-based compensation expense {126} {103}

Restructuring charges {26)

Amortzatien of intangibles acquired through business combinations (30) (72)

impairment of intangibles acquired through business combnations - (12)
Operating Income/iLoss) in U S GAAP {in millions of dollars), as published by
Activision Bhizzard 1,451 1328
Elmination of U S GAAP vs IFRS differences 5 7
Operating Income/{Loss) in IFRS (in millions of dollars) 1,456 1,335
Ehmination of items excluded from EBITA

Amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations 30 72

Impairment of intangibles acquired through bus:ness combinations - 5

Qther ) (3)
EBITA m IFRS {in millions of dollars) 1,485 1,409
Dollar ta euro transiation
EBITA in IFRS {in millions of euros), as published by Vivends 1,149 1,011
of which

Activision 678 520

Blizzard 463 483

Distribution 8 8

a  Relates to the impact of the change in deferred net revenues and related costs of sales with respect to certain of the company's

online-enabled games As of December 31, 2012, both in US GAAP and IFRS

» the change in deferred net revenues resulted 1n deferred revenues for $131 millon (€103 million) and, after taking into account
related costs of sales, the spreading of margin from operations for $92 million (E72 milhon), and

+ the deferred net revenues balance in the Statement of Financial Position amounted 1o $1,657 mifhon {€1,251 milhon), compared to
$1,472 milion (€1,139 mullion} as of December 31, 2011 After taking nto account related costs of sales, the deferred margin
balance n the Statement of Financial Positton amounted to $1,324 million {€1,000 million), compared to $1,181 million
{€913 million} as of December 31, 2011

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivend: /43




Tuesday, February 26, 2013

3. Revenues and EBITA by business segment - 2012 and 2011 quarterly data

2012

1st Quarter ended  2nd Quarter ended 3rd Quarter ended  4th Quarter ended
(tn mullions of euros) March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
Revenues
Activision Blizzard 894 837 673 1,364
Universal Music Group 961 961 981 1,641
SFR 2,927 2,834 2,747 2780
Maroc Telecom Group 676 687 665 661
GVT 432 L4 129 434
Canal+ Group 1,232 1.238 1477 1,366
Non-core operations and others, and elimination
of intersegment transactions (3) {13) (5) (3)
Total Vivend: 7,119 6,965 6,667 8.243
EBITA
Activision Blizzard 395 177 182 395
Unwversal Music Group 68 83 B2 287
SFR 561 552 637 (50)
Maroc Telecom Group 273 190 266 258
GVT 116 107 118 147
Canal+ Group 236 247 239 (59}
Holding & Corporate {25} (44) {26) {20)
Non-care operations and others {3} (1) {4) {6}
Total Vivendi 1.621 1316 1,394 952

2m

st Quarterended 2nd Quarter ended 3rd Quarter ended  4th Quarter ended
{in millions of euros} March 31 Juna 30 Sept 30 Dec 31
Revenues
Activision Blizzard 1,061 796 533 1,042
Universal Music Group 881 982 979 1,355
SFR 30656 3,064 3.017 3.046
Maroc Telecom Group 672 689 698 680
GvT 329 353 395 368
Canal+ Group 1,192 1,200 AN 1,294
Non-core operations and others, and elmination
of intersegment transactions {7 (15) {16} (31
Total Vivend: 7,184 7,069 6,777 1,183
EBITA
Actwision Blizzard 502 n 118 60
Universal Music Group a8 86 112 263
SFR 566 675 644 393
Maroc Telecom Group 266 265 302 256
GvVT a0 a7 nz 97
Canal+ Group 265 230 237 (31)
Holding & Corporate {20) {22) 17 (41)
Non-core operations and others (10) {4) (5) {3)
Total Vivendi 1,705 1.658 1.503 93

Data presented above takes 1nto consideration the consolidation of the following entities at the indicated dates
- at Universal Music Group EMI Recorded Music {September 28, 2012), and
- atCanal+ Group D8 and D17 {September 27, 2012) and “n" (November 30, 2012)
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Ill - Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012

Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your Annual General Shareholders’ Megtings, we hereby report to you for the year
ended December 31, 2012 on

e the audit of the accompanying consclidated financial statements of Vivendi $ A , hereinafter referred to as “the Company”,
e the ustification of our assessments, and

» the specific verfications required by law

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been approved by your Management Board Our role 1$ to express an opimion on the
consolidated financial statements, based on our audit

I Opinion on the Consoldated Financial Statements

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with professional standards applicable in France, those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonahle assurance about whether the consohdated financial statements are free of matenal misstatement An audit
involves performing procedures, using sampling techniques or other methods of selection, to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements An audit alsc includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the Consalidated Financial Statements
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to pravide a basis for our audit opinion

In our cpinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and farr view of the assets and liabilities and of the financial position of the
group and of the results of its operations for the year then ended 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union

Il Justification of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L 823-9 of the French Commercial Code (Code de Commerce) refating to the justification of aur
assessments, we bring to your attention the following matters

In connection with our assessment of the accounting prnciples applied by your Company

+ Note 136 to the Consolidated Financial Statements describes the applicable critena for classifying and accounting for
discontinued operations or assets held for sale in accordance wrth [FRS 5 We venified the correct application of this accounting
prnciple and we ensured that Note 2 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements provides appropriate disclosures with respect to
management's position as of December 31, 2012

e At each financial year end, your Company systematically performs impaiment tests of goodwill and assets with indefinite useful
lves, and also assesses whether there s any indication of impairment of other tangible and intangible assets, according to the
methods described in Note 1357 to the Consolidated Financial Statements We examined the methods vsed to perform these
imparment tests, as well as the main assumptrons and estimates, and ensured that Notes 1357 and 9 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements provide appropnate disclosures thereon

e Note 139 to the Consolidated Financial Statements describes the accounting princrples applicable to deferred tax and Note 13 8
descrtbes the methods used to assess and recognize provisions We venfied the correct application of these accounting principles
and also examined the assumptions underlying the positions as of December 31, 2012 We ensured Note 6 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements gives appropriate information on tax assets and hiabihties and on your company's tax posttions

e Notes 138 and 27 to the Consolhdated Financial Statements describe the methods used to assess and recognize provisions for
Iihgation We examined the methods used within your group to identify, calculate, and determine the accounting for such
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litigations We also examined the assumptions and data underlying the estimates made by the Company As stated in Note 131
to the Consolidated Financial Statements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes 1n estmates and assumptions which could
have an impact upon the reported amount of provisions

Our assessments were made as part of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements taken as a whole, and therefore contributed to |
the opinion we formed which 1s expressed in the first part of this report

Il Specific venfication

We have also verified, in accordance with professional standard apphicable in France, the information provided in the group management
report, as required by law

We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its confermity with the Consolidated Financial Statements

Paris-La Défense, February 25, 2013

The Statutory Auditors
KPMG Audit ERNST & YOUNG ET AUTRES
Département de KPMG S A
Frédérnic Quélin Jean-Yves Jégourel
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Year ended December 31,

Note 2012 2011
Revenues 4 28,994 28,813
Cost of revenues 4 {14,364} (14,391)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (9.482) {8,911)
Restructuning charges and other operating charges and income {352) {161)
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations 4 {760} {397}
Reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation itigation in the United States 2 {945) -
Other mcome 4 22 1,385
Other charges 4 {235) (656)
Earnings hefore interest and income taxes (EBIT) 3 2878 5,682
income from equity affiliates 14 (38) {18)
Interest 5 {568) {481)
Income from investments 8 75
Other financial income 5 37 14
Other financial charges 5 {210} {167)
Earnings from continuing operations before provision for ircome taxes 2,108 5105
Provision for income taxes 62 {1,159) {1,378}
Earnings from continuing operations 949 3727
Earnings from discontinued operations - -
Earnings 949 3727
Of which
Earnings attnibutable to Vivendi SA shareowners 164 2,681
Non-controlling interests 785 1,046
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share -
basic 7 013 209
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share -
diluted 7 012 209
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic 7 013 209
Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - diluted 7 012 209

in milhons of euros, except per share amounts, in euros

Note Earnings attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners per share (basic and diluted) have been adjusted for all peniods previously published
in order to reflect the dilution ansing from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012, of one bonus share for each 30 shares held, n
accordance with I1AS 33 - Earnings per share

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,

(in millions of eurgs) Note 20172 2011
Earnings 949 3.721
Foreign currency translation adjustments {605) 182
Assets avaitable for sale 63 15
Cash flow hedge nstruments 2 78
Net investment hedge instruments 17 21
Tax 1 {24)
Unrealized gains/{losses) 103 90
Other impacts, net - 12
Charges and income directly recognized in equity 8 {502) 284
Total comprehensive mcome a7 401
of which

Total comprehensive income attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners (317) 2,948
Total comprehensive income attnbutable to non-controliing interests 764 1,063

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consohdated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Note December 31, 2012

{in millions of euros)

ASSETS

Goodwll

Non-current content assets
Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in equity affiliates
Non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets

Inventones

Current tax receivables

Current content assets

Trade accounts recervable and other
Current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale
Current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital

Additional paid-in capital

Treasury shares

Retained earnings and other
Vivendi SA shareowners' equity
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current provisions

Long-term borrowings and other financial liabilities
Deferred tax habilities

Other non-current habilrties

Non-current habilities

Current provisions

Shart-term borrowings and other financial liabilities
Trade accounts payable and other

Current tax payables

Liabilittes associated with assets held for sale
Current liabilities

Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

10
1
12
14
15

16

10
16
15
17

18

19
22

i6

19
)
16
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December 31, 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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24,656 25,029
3,327 2,485
5190 4,329
9,926 9,001

388 135
514 394
1.400 1.421
45,401 42,794
738 805
819 542
1,044 1,066
6.587 6,730
364 478
3,894 3304
13,446 12,925
667 -

14,113 12,925

59,514 55,719
1,282 6,860
8271 8,225

{25) (28)
2937 4,390

18,465 19,447
291 2,623

21,436 22,070
3,084 1,569

12,667 12,409

991 728
1,002 864
17,754 15,570
n 586
5,090 33
14,196 13,987
32 205
20,318 18,079
6 .

20324 18,079

38,078 33,649

59,514 55,119
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of eurcs) Note 2012 201

Operating activities
EBIT K} 2,878 5.682
Adjustments 24 1 5,199 2,590
Content investments, net (299) {(13)
Gross cash provided by operating activities before mmcome tax paid 7778 8253
Other changes in net working capital 16 90 (307)
Net cash provided by operating activitigs before income tax paid 7,868 7.952
Income tax paid, net 63 {762} {1,090)
Net cash provided by operating activities 7,106 6,852

Investing activities
Capital expenditures 3 {4.516) {3.367)
Purchases of consclidated comparies, after acquired cash 2 {1,374} {210)
Investments in equity affliates 14 {322) {49)
Increase in financial assets 15 (99) {377}
Investments {6,311 {4.003)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets 3 26 e
Proceeds from sales of consolidated companies, after divested cash i3 30
Dispesal of equity affiliates 14 11 2,920
Decrease in financial assets 4 215 1,751
Diwvestitures 265 4728
Dividends received from equity affiliates 3 79
Dmidends receved from unconsolidated companias 1 3
Net cash provided by/{used for) investing activities {6,042 807

Financing activities
Net proceeds from issuance of common shares in connection with Vivend SA's share-based

compensation plans g 3 161
Sales/{purchases) of Vivend SA's treasury shares {18) (37)
Dividends paid by Vivendi SA to its shareowners 18 {1,245) {1,731}
Other transactions with shareowners {229) {7,909)
Dividends paid by consolidated companies to their nen-controlling interests 18 (483) {1,154)
Transactions with shareowners {1,844} {10,680)
Setting up of long-term bosrowings and increase in other long-term financial habilities 22 5,859 6.045
Principal payment on long-term borrowings and decrease 1n other lang-term financial habilities 22 {4217} {452}
Pringipal payment on short-term borrowrngs 22 {2,615} (2,451}
Other changes in short-term borrowings and other financial liatilities 22 3,056 597
Interest paid, net 5 {568} {481}
Other cash items relfated to financral actwities {38} {239)
Transactions on borrowings and other financial habilitias 1417 3019
Net cash provided by/(used for) financing activities (427} (7.661)
Foreign currency translation adjustments {47) (14)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 590 {6)

Cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of the penod 17 3304 3,310
At end of the penod 17 3894 31304

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivend: 15 a hmuted liability company {société anonyme) incorporated under French law, subject to French commercial company law and, in
particular, the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce) Vivendi was incorporated on December 18, 1987, for a term of 89 years expiring
on December 17, 2086, except in the event of an early dissolution or unless the term is extended Its registered office 15 located at 42 avenue
de Friedland - 75008 Pans {France} Vivendi is listed on Euronext Pans (Compartment A)

Vivendh 1s at the heart of the worlds of content, platforms and interactive networks and combines the world's leader in videc games
{Activision Blizzard), the world's leader in mus:c {Universal Music Group), the French leader in alternative telecoms {SFR), the Moroccan leader
in telecoms {Maroc Telecom group), the leading alternative broadband operator in Brazl (GVT) and the French leader in pay-TV (Canak+ Group)

The Consclidated Financial Statements reflect the financial and accounting situation of Vivend: and its subsidianes {the "group”} together
with Interests in equity affiliates Amounts are reported in euros and all vaiues are rounded to the nearest million

On February 18, 2013, during a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 Having considered the Audit Committee’s recommendation
given at 1ts meeting held on February 15, 2013, the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 22, 2013, reviewed the Financial Report
and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, as approved by the Management Board on
February 18, 2013

On Apnil 30, 2013, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 will be submitted for approval at Vivend''s
Annual General Shareholders” meeting

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

1.1 Compliance with accounting standards

The 2012 Consolidated Financia! Statements of Vivendi SA have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) as endorsed by the European Union (EU}, and in accordance with IFRS published by the International Accounting Standards
Board {IASB} with mandatory application as of December 31, 2012

1.2 Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
121 Consohdated Statement of Earnings

The main line items presented in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings are revenues, income from equity affiliates, interest, provision
for incomes taxes, earnings from discontinued or held for sale operations, and earnings The Consolidated Statement of Earnings presents a
subtotal for Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT) equal to the difference between charges and income {excluding those financing activities,
equity affihates, discontinued or held for sale operations, and income taxes)

The charges and income related to financing activities consist of interest, income from investments, as well as other financial charges and
income as defined in paragraph 12 3 and presented in Note 5

1.22 Consolhdated Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash provided from aperating activities

Net cash provided from operating actwities 1S calculated using the indirect method based on EBIT EBIT 1s adjusted for non-cash items and
changes in net working capital Net cash provided from operating activities excludes the cash impact of financial charges and income and net
changes in working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

Net cash used far investing activities

Net cash used far investing activities includes changes in net working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments (particularly dvidends receved from equity affilates) It also includes any cash flows ansing from the gan
or loss of control of subsidiaries

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for financing activitries includes net interest paid on borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, bank overdratts, as well as the
cash impact of other items related to financing activittes such as premiums from the early redemption of borrowengs and the settlement of
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denvative instruments It also includes cash flows from changes in ownership interests in a subsidary that do not result in a loss of control
{including increases 1n ownership interests)

123 Operating performance of each operating segment and of the group

Vivend: considers Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Tax {EBITA), Adjusted net income {ANI), and Cash Flow From Operations {CFFO), non-
GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance

EBITA

Vivendi considers EBITA, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reported In
the segment data The method used in calculating EBITA excludes the accounting impact of the amortzation of intangible assets acquired
through business combnations, impairment losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and other
income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners This enables Vivendi to measure and
compare the operating performance of operating segments regardless of whether thewr performance s driven by the operating segment’s
organic growth or acquisitions

The difference batween EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquwred thiough business combinations, impairment
losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, as well as other financial income and charges related to
financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners that are included in EBIT The charges and income related to financial
investing transactions include gains and losses recognized n business combinatrons, caprtal gains or losses related to destitures or the
depreciation of equity affiliates and other financral investments, as well as gains or losses incurred from the gain or loss of control In a
business

Adjusted net income

Vivend! considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and financial
performance Vivend: Management uses ad)usted net income because it better Wllustrates the underlying performance of continuing operations
by excluding most non-recurnng and non-operating items Adjusted net income includes the following items

EBITA [*),

income from equity affiliates {*} {**),

interest {*}{*"), corresponding to interest expense on borrowings net of interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents,
income from investments (*} {**), including dividends and interest received fram unconselidated compantes, and

taxes and non-controlling interests related to these items

It dees not include the following items

¢ amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations {**) as well as imparment losses on goodwill and other
intangibles acquired through business combnations {*) {**),

o other income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners {*), as defined above,

* other financial charges and income {*} {**}, equal to the profit and loss related to the change in value of financial assets and the
termination or change 1n value of financial liabilites, which primanly include changes n far value of dervative instruments,
premiums from the early redemption of borrowings, the early unwinding of derivative instruments, the cost of 1ssuing or cancelling
credit facilities, the cash impact of foreign exchange transactions (other than those refated to operating actvities, included in the
EBIT), as well as the effect of undiscounting assets and liabilities, and the financial companents of employee benefits {interest cost
and expected return on plan assets),
earmngs from discontinued operations {*) {**), and
provisions for income taxes and adjustments attributable to non-controlling interests and non-recurning tax items {notably the
changes in deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivend: SA’s tax group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax habilities relating to risks extinguished aver the pened)

{*} Items as presented in the Consohdated Statement of Eamings, (**) Items as reported by each operating segment

Cash Flow From Operations (CFFQ)

Vivend: censiders cash flow from operations (CFFO), a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and
financial performance The CFFO includes net cash provided by operating activities, before income tax paid, as presented m the Statement of
Cash Hows, as well as dividends receved from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies It also includes capital expenditures, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
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The difference between CFFQ and net cash provided by operating actwities, before mcome tax consists of dividends recerved from equity
affiiates and unconsolidated companies and capital expenditures, net, which are included in net cash used for investing activities and of
income tax paid, net, which are excluded from CFFO

124 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets and lrabilities that are expected to be reahzed, or wtended for sale or consumption, within the entrty’s normal operating cycle
(generally 12 months), are recorded as current assets or habilities |f thew maturity exceeds this period, they are recarded as non-current
assets or kabibities Moreover, certain reclassifications have been made to the 2011 and 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform
to the presentation of the 2012 and 2011 Consolidated Financial Statements

1.3 Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to IFRS principles, the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, with the exception of certain
assets and liabilities detailed below

The Consolidated Financia! Statements include the financial statements of Vivendi and its subsidiaries after eliminating intragroup tems and
transactions Vivendi has a December 31 year-end Subsidianies that do not have a December 31 year-end prepare intenim financial
statements at that date, except when their year-end falls within the three months prior to December 31

Acquired subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition
131 Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements im comphance with IFRS requires the group management to make certain estimates and
assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistic Even though these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivend
Management based, in particular, on past or anticipated achievements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes in these estimates and
assumptions which could impact the reported amount of group assets, liabilities, equity or earnings

The main estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of

+ revenue estimates of provisions for returns and price guarantees, and rewards as part of loyalty programs deducted from certain
revenue items (please refer to Note 13 4),

¢ Activision/Blizzard revenue estimates of the service period over which revenue from the sale of boxes for video-games with
significant anline functienality 1s recognized (please refer to Note 134 1),

e provisions nsk estimates, performed on an individual basis, noting that the occurrence of events during the course of procedures
may lead to a nisk reassessment at any time (please refer to Notes 1.3 8 and 19),

« employee benefits assumptions are updated annually, such as the probability of employees remaining within the group until
retirement, expected changes in future compensation, the discount rate and inflation rate (please refer to Notes 1 3 8 and 20},

¢ share-based compensation assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatility and the estimated dwidend
yield (please refer to Notes 1.3 10 and 21),
certain financial instruments fair value estimates {please refer to Notes 1358, 137 and 23),
deferred taxes estimates concerming the recognition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group [please refer to Notes 1 3 9 and 6,

e goodwill and other intangible assets valuation methods adopted for the identification of intangible assets acquired through
business combinations {please refer to Notes 135 2 and 2),

+ goodwill, intangible assets with indefimte useful lives and assets in progress assumptions are updated annually relating to
impairment tests performed on each of the group's cash-generating units (CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates {please refer
toNotes 1357, 9,11, and 12),

s Activision Blizzard content assets estimates of the future performance of franchises and other content assets related to games are
recognized 1n the Statement of Financial Position (please refer to Notes 135 3 and 10), and

+ UMG content assets estimates of the future performance of beneficianes who were granted advances are recognized in the
Statement of Financtal Position [please refer to Notes 13 53 and 10)

Given the current economuc crisis, notably in respect of sovereign exposures in countries considered to be at rnisk, Vivend has reviewed the
valuation of all nts financial assets and liabilities This review did not have any significant impact on the 2012 Consoldated Fnancial
Statements

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivend! /56




Tuesday, February 26, 2013
132 Principles of consohidation
A ist of Vivendr's major subsidianies, joint ventures and associated entities 1s presented in Note 28

Consolidation

All companies in which Vivend: has a controlling interest, namely these in which it has the power to govern financial and operational policies
to obtain benefits from their operations, are fully consolidated

A controlling position 1$ deemed to exist when Vivendi holds, directly or indirectly, a voting interest exceeding 50% of total voting nights in an
entity and no other shareholder or group of shareholders may exercise substantive participation nights that would enable 1t to veto or block
ordinary decrsions taken by Vivend

A controliing position also exists when Vivend:, holding an interest of 50% or less in an entity, has [1} control over more than 50% of the voting
nghts of such entity by wirtue of an agreement entered into with other investors, {1} the power to govein the financial and operational policies
of the entity by wirtue of statute or contract, {in} the right to appoint or remave from office a majonity of the members of the board of directors
or other equivalent governing body or {iv}) the power to assemble the majorrty of voting nights at meetings of the board of directors or other
governing body Rewised 1AS 27 presents the consohidated financial statements of a group as those of a single economic entity with two
categories of owners Vivend: SA shareowners and the owners of non-cantrolling mterests A non-controlling interest 1s defined as the equity
in a subsidiary that 1s not attnbutable, directly or indirectly, to a parent As a result of this new appioach, changes in a parent’s ownership
interest n a subsidiary that do not resuit in a loss of control only impact equity, as control does not change within the economic entity Hence,
in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a consolidated entity after January 1, 2009, Vivend recognizes the difference
between the acquisition price and the carrying value of non-controlling mterests acquired as a change in equity attributable to Vivend: SA
shareowners Conversely, any acquisition of control achieved 1n stages or a loss of control give nse to profit or loss in the statement of
earnings

Vivend: consolidates special purpose entities that it controls in substance where 1t either {)) has the right to obtain a majonty of benefits, or {1}
retains the majonty of residual risks inherent i the special purpose entity or its assets

Equity accounting

Entities over which Vivend exercises significant influence as well as entities over which Vivendi exercises joint control are accounted for
under the equity method

Significant influence 1s presumed to exist when Vivend holds, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of voting nghts in an entity unless 1t can be
clearly demonstrated that Vivend: does nat exercise significant influence Significant influence can be evidenced threugh other cnteria, such
as representation on the board of directors or the entity’s equivalent governing body, participation n policy-making processes, material
transactions with the entity or the interchange of managerial personnel

Companies that are jointly controlled by Vivend, directly or indirectly, and a limited number of other shareholders under the terms of a
contractual arrangement are also accounted for under the equity method

133 Foreign currency translation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in millions of euros The functional currency of Vivendi SA and the presentation currency
of the group 15 the euro

Foreign currency transactions

Forergn currency transactions are initially recorded in the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction At the closing date, foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the entity's functional currency at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date All foreign cumrency differences are expensed, with the exception of differences resulting from
borrowings in foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment in a foreign entity These chfferences are allocated directly to
charges and income directly recognized in equity until the divestiture of the net iInvestment

Financial statements denominated in a foreign currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctyation, financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures or other associated entities for
which the functional currency 1s not the euro are translated into eurcs as follows the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 1s
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period, and the Censolidated Statement of Earnings and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
How are translated using average monthly exchange rates for the perrod The resulting transtation gains and losses are recorded as fareign
currency translation differences in charges and income directly recognized in equity In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend) elected to reverse the
accumulated foreign currency translation differences against retained earnings as of January 1, 2004 These foreign currency translation
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differences resulted from the translation into euro of the financial statements of subsidiaries having forergn currencies as therr functional
currencies Consequently, these adjustments are not applied to earnings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidianies, joint ventures or
associates, whose functional currency ts not the euro

1.34 Revenues from operations and associated costs

Revenues from operations are recorded when 1t 1s probable that future economic benefits will be obtained by the group and when they can be
reliably measured Revenues are reported net of discounts

1341 Activision Blizzard

Video games

Revenues from the sale of baxes for video-games are recorded, net of a provision for estimated returns and price guarantees {please refer to
Note 1 345 below) as well as rebates, if any Regarding boxes for video-games with significant online functionality, revenues are recorded
ratably over the estimated relationship penod with the customer, usually beginning  the month following the shipment of boxes for video-
games developed by Activision Blizzard and upon activation of the subscription for Massively Multiplayer Online Role Playing Games
(MMORPG) of Bizzard { World of Warcraft and 1ts expansion packs) The estimated relationship period with the customer over which revenues
are recognized currently rangss from a mimimum of five months to a maximum of |ess than a year

Deferral of Activision Bhzzard revenues

Actvision Blizzard believes that online functionality for console games, along with its obligation to ensure durability, constitute, for certatn
games, a service forming an integral part of the game itself in this case, Activision Blizzard does not account separately for the revenues
linked to the sale of the boxed software and those linked to the online services because 1t 1s not possible to determine their respective values,
the online services not being charged for separately As a result, the company recognizes all of the revenues from the sale of these games
ratably over the estimated service period, usually beginning the month following shipment

Regarding games that can be played with hardware, Activision Blizzard determines that certain hardware companents have stand alone
values with established fair values, as the hardware 1s either currently being sold separately or will be sold separately in the future Where
this 1s the case, Activision Blizzard recognizes revenues for the hardware upon sale and defers the software revenues, If applicable, over the
estimated service period based on the relative fair value of the components

Deferral of Blizzard's MMORPG revenues

Based upon the view that the service proposed by the expansion pack 1s closely linked to the initial Worid of Warcraft boxed software and to
the subscription to onling service, thus valuing a global approach of the game, revenues related to the sale of World of Warcraft boxed
software, inciuding the sale of expansion packs and other ancillary revenues, are deferred and recognized ratably over the estimated service
relationshup period with the customer beginning upon activation of the software by the customer through subscription

Other revenues
Revenues generated by subscriptions and prepard cards for online games are recognized on a straight-line basis over the duration of the
service

Revenues from third-party licensees in certan countries {Russia, China, and Taiwan) who distnbute and host Blizzard's World of Warcraft
game are recognized as royalties, when the sale to the customer 1s made on behalf of the third party Any upfront hicensing fee received from
third parties 1s recogmzed over the term of the contracts

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues include manufactuning, warehousing, shipping and handling costs, royalty, research and development expenses, and the
amortization of capitalized software development costs Costs of sales associated with revenues from the sale of boxes for video games with
significant online functionality are recorded ratably according to the same method for revenues

1.3.42 Universal Music Group (UMG)

Recorded music

Revenues from the physical sale of recorded music, net of a provision for estimated returns (please refer to Note 1 3 4 5) and rebates, are
recognized upon shipment to third parties, at the shipping peint for products sold free on board (FOB} and on delivery for products sold free on
destination
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Revenues from the digital sale of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate, and reliable data from certain distributors, are
recognized based on their estimate at the end of the month in which those sales were made to the final customer In the absence of such
data, revenues are recognized upon notification by the distnbution platform {on-line of mobile music distributor) to UMG of a sale to the final
customer

Music publishing

Revenues from the third-party use of copynghts on musical compositions owned or administered by UMG are recognized when royalty
statements are receved and collectability i1s assured

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues mclude manufacturing and distrbution costs, royalty and copyright expenses, artsts’ costs, recording costs, and direct
overheads Selling, general and admimistrative expenses pnimarly include marketing and advertising expenses, selling costs, provisions for
doubtful receivables and indirect overheads

1.343 SFR, Maroc Telecom group, and GVT

Separable components of bundled offers

Revenues from telephone packages are recognized as muitiple-component sales In accordance with |1AS 18 Revenues from the sale of
telecommunication equipment {mobile phones and other equipment}, net of discounts granted to customers through the distribution channel,
are recognized upon activation of the ine Revenues from telephone subscriptions are recogmized on a straight-line basis over the subscription
contract penod Bevenues from incoming and outgoing traffic are recognized when the service 15 rendered

Customer acqwsition and loyalty costs for mobile phones, principally consisting of rebates on the sale of equipment to customers through
distributors, are recognized as a deduction from revenues Customer acquisition and loyalty costs consisting of premiums not related to the
sale of equipment as part of telephone packages and commisstons paid to distributors are recognized as selling and general expenses

Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease apphes to equipment for which a nght of use 1s granted Egquipment lease
revenues are generally recagnized on a straight-line basis aver the life of the lease agreement

Content sales

Sales of services provided to customers managed by SFR and Maroc Telecom group on behalf of cantent providers (maimnly premium rate
nurnbers) are either accounted for gress, or net of the content providers” fees when the provider 1s responsible for the content and for setting
the price payable by subscribers

Custom contracts

Service access and installation costs invoiced pnimanly to the operator's clients on the installation of services such as a broadband
connection, bandwidth service or IP connection are recogmzed over the expected duration of the contractual relationship and the supply of the
primary service

Access to telecommunication infrastructures 1s prowtded to clients pursuant to vanous types of contracts lease arrangements, hosting
contracts or Indefeasible Right of Use {IRU) agreements IRU agreements, which are specific to the telecommunication sector, confer an
exclusive and irmevocable right to use an asset [cables, fiber optic or bandwidth} during a {generally lengthy) defined period without a transfer
of ownership of the asset Revenue generated by leases, hosting contracts in the Netcenters and IRU agreements 1s recognized over the
duration of the corresponding contract, except in the case of a finance lease whereby the equipment is considered as a sale on credit

in the case of IRU agreements and certain lease or service contracts, services are paid 1n advance the first year Where the contract 1s not
quahfied as a finance lease, these non-refundable advance payments are recorded as deferred income and recognized ratably over the
contract term The deferral period 1s thus between 10 and 25 years for IRU agreements and between 1 and 25 years for leases or service
contracts

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues compnse purchasing costs {including purchases of mobile phones), interconnection and access costs, network, and
equ:pment costs Selling, general and administrative expenses notably include commercial costs relating to marketing and customer care
expenses
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1344 Canal+ Group

Pay and free-to-air television

Revenues from television subscniption services for terrestrial, satellite or cable pay-television platforms are recognized over the service perod,
net of gratuities granted Revenues from advertising are recogmized over the penod dunng which advertising commercials are broadcasted
Revenues from ancillary services (such as interactive or video-on-demand services) are recogrized when the service 1s rendered Subscriber
management and acquisitian costs, as well as television distribution costs, are included in selling, generat and administrative expenses

Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, applies to equipment for which a nght of use is granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease agreement

Film and television programming

Theatrical revenues are recognized as the films are screened Revenues from film distrbution and from video and television or pay television
licensing agreements are recognized when the films and television programs are available for telecast and all other conditions of sale have
been met Home video product revenues, less a provision for estimated returns (please refer to Note 1 3 4 5) and rebates, are recognized upon
shipment and availability of the product for retail sale Amortization of film and television capitalized and acquisition costs, theatrical print
costs, home video mventory costs and tefevision, and home video marketing costs are iIncluded n costs of revenues

1345 Other

Provisions for estimated returns and price guarantees are deducted from sales of products to customers through distributors  They are
estimated based on past sales statistics and they take into account the economic enviranment and product sales forecast to final customers

The recognition of awards associated with loyalty programs in the form of free or discounted goods or services are recorded according
to IFRIC 13 Loyalty programs of SFR (valid until the third quarter of 2012}, Marac Telecom, and Canal+ Group grant to existing customers
awards n the form of free services, according to the length of the relationship with the customer and/or loyalty points for subsequent
conversion Into either handset renewal subsidees, or free services IFRIC 13 - Interpretation 1s based upon the principle of measuring loyalty
awards by reference to their fair value Fair value 1s defined as the excess price over the sates incentive that would be granted to any new
custorner and, should any such excess price exist, would resutt in deferring the recogmtion of the revenue associated with the subscription in
the amount of such excess price

Selling, general and administrative expenses prnmarily include salaries and employee benefits, rent, consulting and service fees,
Insurance costs, travel and entertainment expenses, admmistrative department costs, provisions for recervables and other operating
EXpenses

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction in revenues However, cooperative advertising at UMG
and Activision Blizzard 1s treated as a marketing expense and expensed when 1ts expected benefit 1s individualized and can be estimated

135 Assets

1351 Capitahzed financial interest

Until December 31, 2008, Vivendi did not capitalize financial interest incurred duning the construction and acquisition pened of intangible
assets, and property, plant and equipment Since January 1, 2009, according to amended IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs, this interest is included n

the cost of qualifying assets Vivend: applies this amendment to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalization of
costs 1s January 1, 2009 onwards

Financtal Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivend /60




Tuesday February 26, 2013
1352 Goodwill and business comhinations

Business combinations from January 1, 2009

Business combinations are recorded using the acquisition method Under this method, upen the initial consolidation of an entity over which
the group has acquired exclusive contro!
¢ the dentifrable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value en the acquisition date, and
¢ non-controlling interests are measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets This option 1s available on a transaction-by-transaction basis

On the acquisitron date, goodwill 1s initrally measured as the difference between
(1} the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus the amount of non-contralling interests in the acquiree and, 1n @ busingss
combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree, and
(1} the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date

The measurement of non-controlling interests at fair value results in an increase in goodwill up to the extent attributable to these interests,
thereby leading to the recognition of a “full goodwall” The purchase price allocation shall be performed within 12 months after the acquisition
date If goodwill 1s negative, 1t is recognized in the Statement of Earmings Subsequent to the acquisition date, goodwill 1s measured at its
inttial amount less recorded accumulated impairment losses (please refer to Note 13 5 7 below)

In additian, the following principles are apphed to business combinations

=  on the acquisition date, to the extent possible, goodwill 1s allocated to each cash-generating unt kikely ta benefit frem the business
combination,

s cont:ngent consideration 1n a business combination 's recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subsequent adjustment
occurning after the purchase price allocation period 1s recognized :n the Statements of Earnings,
acquisitron-related costs are recognized as expenses when incurred,
In the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidary, Vivend: recognizes the difference between the acquisition
price and the carrying vaiue of non-controlling interests acquired as a change in equrty attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners, and

s goodwill s not amortized

Business cambinations prier to Januvary 1, 2009

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vivend: elected not to restate business combinations that occurred pnier to January 1, 2004 {FRS 3, as published by the
IASB 1n March 2004, retained the acquisition method However, its provisions differed from those of the revised standard on the main
following 1tems
+  minanty interests were measured at their proporttionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets as there was no option of
measurement at fair value,
e contingent consideration was recognized 1n the cost of acquisition only f the payment was likely to occur and the amounts could be
reliably measuwred,
transaction costs that were directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of acquisiion costs, and
» i the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary the difference between the acquisition cost and the carrying
value of minority interests acquired was recognized as goodwill

1353 Contentassets

Activision Blizzard

Licensing activities and internally developed franchises are recogrized as content assets at thewr acquesition cost or development cost [please
refer to Note 135 4 below} and are amortized over their estimated useful ife on the basis of the rate at which the related economic benefits
are consumed Where appropniate, impairment loss 1s fully recognized agamst earnings for the penod dunng wivch the foss 1s identified This
generally [eads to an amortization period of 3 to 10 yvears for licenses, and 11 to 12 years for franchises

UMG

Music publishing nghts and catalogs include music catalogs, artists” contracts and publishing rights, acquired through business combinations,
are amortized over a peniod of 15 years in seliing, general and administrative expenses

Royalty advances to artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are capitalized as an asset when their current populanty and past performances
provide a reasonable basis to conciude that the probable future recoupment of such royalty advances against earmings otherwise payable to
them 1s reascnably assured Royalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalties are earned by the artist, songwriter or
co-publisher Any portion of capitahized royalty advances not deemed to be recoverable against future royalties 1s expensed during the period
in which the loss becomes evident These expenses are recorded n cost of revenues
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Royalties earned by artists, songwnters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense 1n the period during whch the sale of the product
occurs, less a provision for estimated returns

Canal+ Group
Film, television or sports broadcasting nghts

When entering into contracts for the acquisition of film, television or sports broadcasting nghts, the rnghts acquired are classified as
contractual commitments They are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and classified as content assets as follows
« film and televisron breadcasting rights are recognized at their acquisition cost, when the program 1s available for screening and are
expensed over their broadcasting period,
e sports broadcasting nghts are recognized at their acquisition cost, at the opening of the broadcasting peniod of the refated sports
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast, and
« expensing of film, television or sports broadcasting rights 1s included in cost of revenues

Theatrical film and tefevision nights produced or acquired tg be sold

Theatrical film and telewision rights produced or acquired before their initial exhibition, to be scld, are recorded as a content asset at
caprtalized cost {mainly direct production and overhead costs) or at their acquisttion cost Theatrical film and television nghts are amortized,
and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estimated revenue method (1e, based on the ratio of the current period's gross
revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an individual production basis) Vivend: considers that amortization pursuant to
the estimated revenue method reflects the rate at which the entity plans to consume the future economic benefits related to the asset
Accumulated amortization under this rate 15, for this activity, generally not lower than the charge that would be obtained under the straight-
line amortization method If, however, the accumulated amertization would be lower than this charge, a minimum straight-line amortization
would be calculated over a maximum 12-year period, which corresponds to the typical screening period of each film

Where appropriate, estimated losses in value are prowided (n full against earnings for the period in which the losses are estmated, on an
individual product basis

Film and television nights catalogs

Catalogs are comprised of film rights acquired for a second television extubition, or preduced or acquired film and tetevision nghts that are
sold after their first television screeming (1 & , after their first broadcast on a free terestnal channgl) They are recognized as an asset at theu
acquisition or transfer cost and amortized as groups of films, or individually, based respectively on the estimated revenue methad

1.35.4 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed when incusred Development expenses are capitalized when the feasibility and, in particular, profitability of the
project can reasonably be considered certain

Cost of software for rental, sale or commerciahzation

Capitalized software development costs comprise amounts paid to entitled benefic:anies for the use of their intellectual property content for
developing new games (e g . software development, graptics and editorial content), direct costs incurred dunng the intemal development of
products and the acqu:sition costs of developed software Software development costs are capitahized when, notably, the technical feasibility
of the software 1s estabhshed and they are deemed recoverable These costs are mainly generated by Activision Bhizzard as part of the games
development process and are amortized using the estimated revenue method {1 e, based on the ratio of the current period's gross revenues to
estimated total gross revenues) for a given product, which generally leads to the amortization of costs over a maximum peried of 6 months
commencing on a product’s release date Techmical feasibility 1s determined ¢n a product-by-product basis Non-capitalized software
development costs are immediately recorded as research and development costs The future recoverability of capitalized software
development costs and intellectual property license costs 1s assessed every quarter When their recoverable value 15 less than their carrying
value, an impairment loss 1s recegnized against earnings for the period

Cost of internai use software

Direct internal and external costs incurred for the development of computer software for internal use, including website development costs,
are capitalized duning the application development stage Application devefopment stage costs generally include software configuration,
coding, mnstallation and testing Costs of significant upgrades and enhancements resulting in additional functionality are also capitalized
These capitalized costs, mainly recognized at SFR, are amortized over 4 years Maintenance and minor upgrade and enhancement costs are
expensed as incurred
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1355 Otherintangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are recorded at cost, and intangible assets acquired In connection with a business combination are
recorded at their fair value at the acquisition date The historical cost model 1s applied to intangible assets after they have been recognized
Assets with an indefinite useful hife are not amortized but are all subject to an annual impairment test Amartization 1s accrued for assets with
a fimite useful hfe Useful Life 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting penod

Other intangible assets mnclude trade names, customer bases and hcenses Music catalogs, trade names, subscrbers™ bases and market
shares generated internally are not recognized as intangible assets

SFR, Maroc Telecom group and GVT

Licenses to operate telecom netwarks are recorded at histonical cost based upon the discounted value of deterred payments and amortized on
a straight-ine basis from thewr effective service start date over their estimated useful life unti! matunty Licenses to operate in France are
recogrized in the amount of the fixed, upfront fee paid upon the granting of the license The vanable fee, which cannot be reliably determined
{equal to 1% of the revenues generated by the actiwity in the case of the telecomrunication licenses in France), 1s recorded as an expense
when incurred

1.35.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carned at historical cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Histoncal cost includes
the acquisition cost or produchion cost, the costs directly atinbutable 1o transporuing an asset 10 1ts physical location and prepanng 1t for use
In operations, the estimated costs for the demolition and the collection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabilitation of the physical
location resulting from the incurred obligation

When property. plant and equipment include significant components with different useful lives, they are recorded and amortized separately
Amortization 1s computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of the assets Useful ife 1s reviewed at the end of
each reporting period

Property, plant and equipment mamnly consist of the network equipment of telecommunications actvities, each part of which 1s amortized
generally over 1to 50 years The useful lives of the main components are as follows
o  buiddings over 8 to 25 years,
fiber optic equipment 50 years
pylons over 15 to 20 years,
radio and transmission equipment over 3 to 10 years,
switch centers 8 years, and
servers and hardware over 1 to 8 years

Assets financed by finance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of future muimmum lease payments and of the market
value and the related debt 15 recorded as "Borrowings and other financial hiabilitries” In general, these assets are amortized on a straight-line
basis over therr estimated useful Iife, corresponding to the duration applicable to property, plant and equipment from the same category
Amortization expenses on assets acquired under such leases are included in amortization expenses

After imitial recognition, the cost model 1s applied to property, plant and equipment

Vivend has elected not to apply the aption available under IFRS 1, involving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equipment at
their fair value as of January 1, 2004

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivendi decided to apply IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an arrangement
contans a lease, which curently mamly applies to commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group and GVT satellite capacity and for
SFR. Marac Telecom group, and GVT telecommunications services
* Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU) agreements canfer an exclusive and revocable nght to use an asset during a defined peniod IRU
agreements are leases which convey a specific right of use for a defined portion of the underlying asset in the form of dedicated
fibers or wavelengths IRU agreements are capitalized if the agreement period covers the major part of the useful hfe of the
underlying asset IRU contract costs are capitalized and amortized over the contract term, and
+  Some IRU contracts are commercial service agreements that do not convey a right to use a specific asset, contract costs under these
agreements are conseguently expensed as operational costs for the perod
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1.357 Assetimpairment

Each time events or changes tn the economic environment indicate & current nsk of impairment of goodwill, other intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment, and assets n progress, Vivend: re-examines the value of these assets In addition, goodwill, other intangible assets with
an indefinite useful hife, and intangible assets in progress are all subject to an annual impairment test undertaken «n the fourth quarter of each
fiscal year, with some exceptions This test i1s performed to compare the recoverable amount of each Cash Generating Unit {CGU) or, of
necessary, groups of CGU to the carrying value of the corresponding assets {including goodwall} A Cash Generating Unit 1s the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets The Vivend: group operates through different communication businesses Each business offers different products and services that are
marketed through different channels CGUs are independently defined at each business level, corresponding to the group operating segments
Vivend! CGUs and groups of CGUs are presented in Note 9

The recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of either (1) the value in use, or {u} the fair value (less costs to sell) as descnbed
hereafter, for each individual asset If the asset does not generate cash mflows that are largely independent of other assets or groups of
assets, the recoverable amount 1s determined for the group of assets In particular, an impairment test of goodwill 1s performed by Vivend: for
each CGU or group of CGUs, depending on the level at which Vivend) Management measures return on operations

The value in use of each asset or group of assets 1s determined as the discounted value of future cash flows (discounted cash flow method
{DCF)} by using cash flow projections consistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating
segments

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to avallable external sources of information, usually based on financial institutions’
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivend) of the time value of money and nisks specific to each asset or group of assets

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or group of CGUs, and beyond the
period covered, are consistent with growth rates estimated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used n the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates

The fair value {less costs to sell) 1s the amount cbtainable from the sale of the asset or group of assets in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable and willing parties, less costs to sell These values are determined on the basis of market data (stock market prices or
comparison with similar isted companies, with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent transactions) or on discontinued
future cash flows in the absence of rehable data

If the recoverable amount 1s fower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an impairment loss equal to the difference is
recognized in EBIT In the case of a group of assets, this impairment loss 15 recorded first against goodwill

The impairment losses recagnized in respect of property, plant and equipment, and ntangible assets (other than goodwll) may be reversed in
a later period if the recoverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the limit of rmpairment losses previously recognized
Impairment losses recognized in respect of goodwill cannot be reversed at a later date

1358 Financial assets

Financial assets consist of financial assets measured at fair value and financial assets recognized at amortized cost Financial assets are
imtially recognized at the fair value corresponding, in general, to the consideration paid, for which the best evidence 1s the acquisition cost
(including associated acquisition costs, If any)

Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at far value include available-for-sale secunives, denwative financial instrements with a positive value (please refer to
Note 13 7) and other financial assets measured at fair vatue through profit or loss Most of these financial assets are actively traded in
orgamzed public markets, therr fair value being calculated by reference to the published market price at period end For financial assets for
which there exssts no published market price in an active market, fair value 1s then estimated As a last resort, the group values financial
assets at historical cost, less any impairment losses, when a rehiable estimate of fair value cannot be made using valuation technigues «n the
absence of an active market

Avaitable-for-sale secunities consist of unconsolidated interests and other secunties not qualifying for classification in the other financial
asset categortes descrnbed below Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are recogrized in charges and income directly
recognized 1n equity until the financial asset 1s sold, collected or removed from the Statement of Financial Position in another way, or until
there I1s objective evidence that the investment 1s impaired, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported in charges and
income directly recognized in equity 1s expensed in other financial charges and income
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Other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or ioss mainly consist of assets held for trading which Vivendi intends to sell in
the near future {pnmarily marketable securities) Unrealized gains and losses on these assets are recogrized in other financial charges and
Income

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost consist of loans and recevables {primartly loans to affiliates and associates, current account advances to
equity affiliates and unconsolfidated interests, cash deposits, secuntized loans and recewvables, and other {oans and receivables, and debtors)
and held-te-matunty investments {financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matunity) At the end of each peniod, these
assets are measured at amortrzed cost using the effective interest method If there s objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
mcurred, the amount of this loss, measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying value and its recoverable amount {equal
to the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s initial effective interest rate), 1s recognized in profit or
loss Impairment losses may be reversed If the recoverable amount of the asset subsequently increases in the future

1.359 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value Cost compnses purchase costs, production costs and other supply and
packaging costs They are usually computed at the weighted average cost method Net realizable value 1s the estimated selling price in the
normal course of business, less estmated completion costs and selling costs

13510 Trade account receivahles

Trade accounts receivable are initially recognized at fair value, which generally equals the nominal value Provisions for impairment of
receivables are specifically evaluated in each business unit, generally using a default percentage based on the unpaid amounts during one
reference period related to revenues for this same peniod Thus, for the group’s businesses which are based partly or fully on subscription
{Actwision Blizzard, Canal+ Group, SFR and GVT), the depreciation rate of trade account recevables 1s assessed on the basis of historical
account recevahles from former customers, pnmanly on a statistical basis In addition, account recewables fram customers subject to
insolvency proceedings or customers with whom Vivend is invelved in litigation or a dispute are generally impaired in full

13511 Cash and cash equivalents

The “cash and cash equivalents” category consists of cash in banks, monetary UCITS, which satisfy AMF position No 2011-13, and other
highly liquid investments with initral maturities of generally three months or fess Investments in securties, investments with initial matunties
of more than three months without the possibility of early termination and bank accounts subject to restrctions {blocked accounts), other than
restrictions due to regulations specific to a country or activity sector (e g, exchange controls), are not classified as cash equivalents but as
financial assets Moreover, the historical performance of the investments 1s monitored regularly to confirm their cash equivalents accounting
classification

13.6 Assets held for sale and discontinsed operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets and liabilittes 1s held for sale when its carrying value may be recovered prncipally through i1ts
divestiture and not by its continued utilization To meet this definition, the asset must be available for immediate sale and the divestituse must
be highly probable These assets and labilities are recognized as assets held for sale and liabilities associated with assets held for sale,
without offset The related assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the lowest value between the fair value {net of divestiure
fees} and the carrying value, or cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and are no longer depreciated

An operation 1s qualified as discentinued when it represents a separate major line of business and the criteria for classification as an asset
held for sale have been met or when Vivendi has sold the asset Discontinued operations are reported on a single hine of the Statement of
Carmings for the periods reported, comprising the earnings after tax of discontinued operations until divestiture and the gain or loss after tax
on sale or far value measurement, less costs to divest the assets and liabilines of the discontinued operations in addition, cash flows
generated by discontinued operations are reported on a separate line of the Statement of Consohdated Cash Flows for the relevant penods
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137 Financial habilities

Long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial iabilities include
« honds and facilities, as well as various other borrowings (including commercial paper and debt related to finance leases) and related
accrued interest,
obligations ansing in respect of commitments to purchase non-contralling interests,
bank overdrafts, and
the negative value of other denvative financial instruments Derivatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets in the
Statement of Financtal Position

Borrowings

All borrowings are initially accounted for at fair value net of transaction costs directly attnbutable to the borrowing Borrowings bearing
interest are subsequently valued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method The effective interest rate 1S the internal yield rate
that exactly discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing [n addition, where the borrowing comprises an embedded dervative
{e . an exchangeable bond) or an equity instrument (e g, a convertible bond), the amortized cost 1s calculated for the debt component only,
after separation of the embedded dervative or equity instrument In the event of a change in expected future cash flows (e g, redemption
earlier than wnitially expected), the amortized cost is adjusted against earnings to reflect the value of the new expected cash flows, discounted
at the inttial effective interest rate

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests

Vivend has granted commitments to purchase non-controthng interests to certain shareowners of 1ts fully consolidated subsidianes These
purchase commitments may be optional {e g , put aptions) or firm {e g, forward purchase contracts)

The following accounting treatment has been adopted for commitments granted on or after January 1, 2009

e upon imitial recogrition, the commitment to purchase non-contrelling interests (s recognized as a financial liability for the present
value of the purchase consideration under the put option or fosward purchase contract, mainly offset through book value of non-
controlling interests and the remaiming balance through equity attributable to Vivend SA shareawners,

o subsequent changes i the value of the commitment are recogmized as a financial liability by an adjustment to equity attnibutable to
Vivend SA shareowners, and

= on maturity of the commitment, if the non-controlling interests are not purchased, the entries previcusly recognized are reversed, if
the non-controlling interests are purchased, the amount recognized In financial liabilities 1s reversed, offset by the cash outfiow
relating to the purchase of the non-controlling Interests

Dernivative financial instruments

Vivendi uses denvative financral mstruments to manage and reduce its exposure to fluctuations i interest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates All instruments are either listed on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties These
instruments include interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange contracts All these denvative financial instruments are used for
hedging purposes

When these contracts qualify as hedges for accounting purposes, gains and losses ansing on these contracts are offset in earnings against
the gans and losses relating to the hedged item When the derivative financial instrument hedges exposures to fluctuations in the fair value
of an asset or a liability recognized in the Statement of Financial Position or of a firm commutment which 1s not recognized n the Statement of
Financial Position, it 15 a farr value hedge The instrument is remeasured at farr value in earnings, with the gans or losses ansing on
remeasurement of the hedged portion of the hedged item offset on the same line of the Statement of Earnings, or, as part of a forecasted
transaction relating to a non-financial asset or hability, at the initial cost of the asset or liability When the derwvative financial instrument
hedges cash flows, it 1s a cash flow hedge The hedging nstrument 1s remeasured at fair value and the portion of the gain or loss that 1s
determined to be an effective hedge 15 recognized through charges and income directly recognized in equity, whereas its ineffective portion 1s
recognized n earnings, cr, as part of a forecasted transaction on a non-financial asset or liability, they are recognized at the initial cost of the
asset or lability When the hedged item 1s realized, accumulated gains and losses recognized in equity are released to the Statement of
Earnings and recorded on the same line as the hedged item When the derivative financial instrument hedges a net svestment n a foreign
operation, It 1s recognized in the same way as a cash flow hedge Denvative financial instruments which do not qualify as a hedge for
accounting purposes are remeasured at fair value and resulting gains and losses are recognized directly 1n earnings, without remeasurement
of the underlying instrument

Furthermore, income and expenses relating to fareign currency instruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and firm
commitments contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editorial content nghts {including sparts, audiovisual and film rights) are recognized in
EBIT In all other cases, gains and losses ansing on the fair value remeasurement of instruments are recognized n other financial charges and
income
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138 Other liabihties

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, at the end of the reporting penod, Vivendi has a legal abligation flega), regulatory or contractual) or a
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and 1t 1s probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the obligation can be rehiably estmated Where the effect of the time value of money 1s matenal,
provisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of
money If no reliable estmate can be made of the amount of the obligation, no prowision 15 recorded and a disclosure 1s made in the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Employee benefit plans

in accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which it operates, Vivend: participates in, or maintams, employee benefit plans
providing retirement pensions, post-retirement health care, life insurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employees, former
employees, retirees and such of their beneficianes who meet the required canditions Retirement pensians are provided for substantially all
employees through defined contribution plans, which are integrated with local social security and mult-employer plans, or defined benefit
plans, which are generally managed wia group pension plans The plan funding policy implemented by the group is consistent with applicable
government funding requirements and regulations

Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contnbution and multi-emplayer plans are expensed during the year
Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by investments in various instruments such as insurance contracts or equity and debt investment
secunties, excluding Yivends shares or debt instruments

Pension expenses are calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method This method 1s based on annually updated
assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivend until retirement, expected changes in future compensation
and an appropniate discount rate for each country in which Vivends maintains a pension ptan The assumptions adopted n 2011 and 2012, and
the means of determining these assumptions, are presented in Note 20 As such, the group recognizes pension-related assets and liabilities
and the related net expense

A prowision 1s recorded n the Statement of Financiat Position equal to the difference between the actuanial value of the related benefits
(actuanal ab:lity) and the fair value of any associated plan assets, net of past service cost and unrecognized actuanal gains and losses which
remain unrecogrized n the Statement of Financial Position Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obligations, a financial asset is
recognized up to the maximum cumulative amount of net actuanal losses, unrecegnized past service cost, and the present value of future
refunds and the expected reduction in future contributions

Actuanal gains and losses are recognized through profit and less for the year using the “corndor method™ actuanal gains and losses in excess
of 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at the begianing of the fiscal year are divided by the expected
average working hfe of beneficiaries On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: decided to record unrecognized actuarial gains
and losses against consolidated equity

The cost of plans 1s included i selling, general and administrative expenses, except for the financial component which (s recarded 1n other
financial charges and income The financial component of this cost consists of the undiscounting of the actuanal hability and the expected
return on plan assets

Some other post-employment benefits, such as life insurance and medicai coverage (mainly in the United States) are subject to provisions
which are assessed through an actuarial computation comparable to the methed used for pension provisions
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1.39 Deferred taxes

Differences existing at closing between the tax base value of assets and liabilties and their carrying value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financia! Position give nise to temporary differences Pursuant to the liability method, these temporary differences result in the accounting of

« deferred tax assets, when the tax base value s greater than the carrying value {expected future tax saving), and

o deferred tax hatilities, when the tax base value 1 lower than the carrying value (expected future tax expense)

Deferred tax assets and habilihes are measured at the expected tax rates for the year duning which the asset will be realized or the habihty
settled, based on tax rates {and tax regulations} enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date They are rewewed at the end of each
year, in ine with any changes in applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, tax loss carry-farwards and unused tax credits, insofar as 1t 1
probable that a taxable profit will be available, or when a current tax hability exists te make use of those deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax asset associated with the deductible temporary difference 15
generated by imtial recogrition of an asset or liability n a transaction which is not @ business combination, and that, at the transaction date,
does not impact earnings, nor tax income or |oss

For deductible temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that it 15 probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized

The carrying value of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that it 15 more or less
probable that a taxable profit wil! be avarlable to allow the deferred tax asset to be utlized When assessing the probability of a taxable profit
being available, account 1s taken, primanly, of prior years' results, forecasted future results, non-recurring items unlikely to occur in the future
and the tax strategy As such, the assessment of the group’s ability to utilize tax losses camed forward 15 to a large extent judgment-based If
the future taxable results of the group proved to differ sigmificantly from those expected, the group would be required to increase or decrease
the carrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially material impact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Earmings
of the group

Deferred tax liabilities are recogruzed for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax liabilty results from goodwill or
imtial recognition of an asset or liabiity in a transaction which 1s not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date, does not
impact earnings, nor tax income or loss

For taxable temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidianes, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
Labilities are recorded except to the extent that both of the foflowing canditions are satisfied the parent, investor or venturer 15 able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not earnings, If the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged directly to equity

1.310 Share-based compensation

With the aim of aligning the tnterest of its executive management and employees with its shareholders’ interest by providing them with an
additional incentive to imprave the compary’s performance and increase its share price on a long-term basis, Vivend maintains several share-
based compensation plans {share purchase plans, performance share plans, and bonus share plans) or other equity instruments based on the
value of the Vivend) share price istock options), which are settled erther in equity nstruments or in cash Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board In addition, the defimtive grant of stock options and performance shares are
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives fixed by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board Moreover, all
granted plans are conditional upon active employment at the vesting date

In addition, Activision Blizzard maintains several share-based compensation plans {restricted shares) or other equity instruments based on the
value of the share price {stock options), which are settled in equity instruments Grants under these plans are approved by the Boarg of
Directors of Activision Blizzard The final grant of these rights is contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives set by
the Board of Directors

Lastly, Universal Music Group maintains Equity Long-Term Incentive Plans Under these plans, certain key executives are awarded equity
units, which are settled in cash These equity umits are phantom stock units whose value 1s intended to reflect the value of Universal Music
Group

Piease refer to Note 21 for details of the features of these plans
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Share-based campensation 1s recogmized as a personnel cost at the fair value of the equity instruments granted This expense 1s spread over
the vesting penod, 1e 3 years for stock option plans and 2 years for performance shares and bonus share plans at Vivendi, other than in
specific cases

Vivendi and Activision Blizzard use 2 binomial model to assess the fair value of such instruments This method relies on assumptions updated
at the valuation date such as the computed volatility of the relevant shares, the discount rate corresponding to the nsk-free interest rate, the
expected dividend yield, and the probabiiity of refevant managers and employees remaiming employed within the group until the exercise of
their nghts

However depending on whether the equity instruments granted are equity-settled or cash-settled, the valuation and recognition of the
expense will differ

Equity-settied mstruments
» the expected term of the option granted s deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual
term,
o the value of the instruments granted 1s estimated and fixed at grant date, and
s the expense 1s recognized with a corresponding increase in equity

Cash-settled mstruments

o the expected term of the instruments granted 1s deemed to be equal to one-half of the residual contractual term of the instrument
for vested rights, and to the average of the resideal vesting period at the remeasurement date and the residual contractual term of
the instrument for unvested rights,

s the value of instruments granted 15 imitially estimated at grant date and s then re-estimated at each reporting date until the
payment date and the expense s adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested nights at each such reporting date,

s the expense I1s recognized as a provision, and

* moreover, as plans settled in cash are primanly denominated in US dollars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate

Share-based compensation cost 15 allocated to each operating segment, pro rata the number of equity iInstruments or equivalent instruments
granted to their managers and employees

The dilutive effect of stock options and performance shares settled in equity through the issuance of Vivendi or Activision Blizzard shares
which are in the process of vesting 1s reflected in the calculation of diluted earnings per share

In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend) elected to retrospectively apply IFRS 2 as of January 1, 2004 Consequently, all share-based compensation
plans for which nghts remamed to be vested as of January 1, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2

1.4 Related parties

Group-related parties are those companies over which the group exercises an exclusive control, jomt control or significant influence,
shareholders exercising joint control over group jomt ventures, non-controlling interests exercising significant influence over group
subsidianies, corporate officers, group management and directors and compantes over which the latter exercise an exclusive control, joint
control, or significant influence

The transactions realized with subsidiaries over which the group exercises a control are eliminated in the intersegment operations {a list of
the pnncipal consolidated subsidianes 1s presented in Note 28} Moreover, commercial relationships among subsidiaries of the group,
aggregated 10 operating segments, are conducted on an arm’s length basis under terms and conditions similar to those which would be
offered by third parties The operating costs of Vivendl SA’s headquarters in Pans and of its New York City office, after the allocation of a
portion of these costs to each of the group’s businesses, are inciuded in the Holding and Corporate operating segment {Please refer to Note 3
for & detailed description of the transactions between the parent company and the subsidianes of the group, aggregated by operating
segments)
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1.5 Contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a year, Vivend: and 1ts subsidiaries prepare detalled reports on all matenal contractual obligations, commercial and financial
commitments and contingent obligattons, for which they are jointly and severally liable These detailed reports are updated by the relevant
departments and reviewed by senior management on a regular basis To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated internal contral pracedures are performed, including {but not imited to) the review of

e minutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and committees of the Supervisory Board In
respect of matters such as contracts, hitigation, and authorization of asset acquisitions or divestitures,

« pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions,

« pending itigation, claims {in dispute) and environmental matters as well as related assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
internal and/or external legal counsels,

= tax examiner's reports and, If applicable, notices of reassessments and tax expense analyses for prior years,

¢ Insurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the nisk management department and nsurance agents and brokers with
whom the group contracted,

« related-party transactions for guarantees and other given or received commitments, and more generally

* [Tajor contracts and agreements

1.6 New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published but are not yet effective

Among IFRS accounting standards and IFRIC interpretations 1ssued by IASB / IFRIC at the date of approval of these Consolidated Financial
Statements, hut which are not yet effective, and for which Vivend! has not elected for an earhier application, the main standards which may
have an impact on Vivendh are as follows

+ Standards adopted in the European Union
- Amendments to IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements Presentation of ftems of Other Comprehensive Income, on the
presentation of items of other comprehensive income, and their recyching or not in the Statement of Earnings, which applies to
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and with retrospective effect as of January 1, 2012,

- Amendments to |AS 19 — Employee Benefits, which applies to periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with retrospective
effect as of January 1, 2012, and for which the main impacts are presented below,

- New standards relating to the principles of consolidation  IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financal Statements, IFRS 11 — Jont
Arrangements, \FRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests i Other Entities, |AS 27 — Separate financial Statements, and IAS 28 -
Investments m Associates and Jont Ventures, which all apply to periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 Vivendi intends
to early apply these standards from January 1, 2013 and retrospectively from January 1, 2012, and

- New standard IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement, relating to the definition of the fair value notion in terms of measurement
and disclosures, which applies prospectively to peniods beginning on or after January 1, 2013

« Standards not yet adopted in the European Union
- Amendments to vaniaus IFRS ncluded sn the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2008-2011 Cycle, as published by the IASB on May
2012, which apply to perods beginning on or after January 1. 2013, retrospectively from January 1, 2012, but are stll subject to
adoption in the European Union

Vivend: 1s currently finalizing the assessment of the potential impact on the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial
Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, and the content of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in applying these standards and
amendments No significant smpact 1s expected for the time being, except for the amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 18, which main impact
identified by comparison with the current accounting treatments applied by Vivendi relates to the suppression of the “corndor method”, on the
recogmition through profit and loss for the year of the amortization of actuanal gams and losses on defined employee benefit plans Thus,
actuarial gains and losses not yet recognized will be recorded agawnst consolidated equity as of January 1, 2012 for an amount of -€119
million, and as from January 1, 2012, actuarial gains and losses will be smmediately recognized in other comprehensive income 1n the
Statement of Comprehensive Income and will no longer be recycled in profit and loss
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Note 2 Major changes in the scope of consolidation

2.1 Acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by Vivendi and Universal Music Group (UMG)

In accordance with the agreement entered into with Citigroup Inc {Citi) on November 11, 2011, and followng receipt of the regulatory approvals from
the European Comsmvssion and the Federal Trade Commussion w the United States on September 21, 2012, Vivendh and UMG completed the
acquisition of 100% of the recorded music business of EMI Group Globa! Limited (EMI Recorded Music) on September 28, 2012 EMI Recorded
Music has been fully consoldated since that date The transaction was also unconditionally cleared in New-Zealand (June 21, 2012), Japan
(July 8, 2012), and Canada {August 20, 2012)

The purchase price, in enterprise value, amounted to £1,130 miliion (approximately €1,404 million) and included €1,363 million paid in cash, of
which £991 million {approximately €1,230 mill:on) was paid in early September 2012, when conditions to payment were satisfied As part of this
transaction, Citi agreed to assume the full pensian obligations in the United Kingdom, and UMG recewed commitments customary for this
type of transaction in addition, Citr undertook to indemmify UMG against losses stemming from taxes and litigation claims, in partrcular those
related to pension obligations in the United Kingdom

The approval by the European Commss:on was conditional upon the divestment of EMI's Parlophone label and certain other music assets worldwide,
such as EMI France, EMI's classical music labels, Chrysahis, Mute and several ather local EMI entitigs In accordance with IFRS 5 - Nen-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations, Vivend reclassified these assets as assets held for sale at market value in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position as of December 31, 2012

The sale of Parlophone Label Group, part of EM| Recorded Music, for £487 million {approximately €500 million after taking into account the
EUR/GBP foreign currency hedge in place) to be paid in cash, was announced on February 7, 2013 Additional, less significant divestments
were also sold bringing the total amount of sales to exceed £530 millian, all of which are pending regulatory approvals

With these sales, Vivendi nears the finalization of its regulatory commitments following the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music, while
remforcing UMG's position as a worldwide leader in music The combmation of UMG's and EMI’s Recorded Music businesses /s expected to
generate annual synargies of more than £100 million as previcusly stated As a result of the sale of Parlophane Label Group., the acquisition of
EMI Recorded Music acquisition will be at less than SxEBITDA multiple, including disposals, restructuning charges and synergies

Purchase price allocation

In accordance with the accounting standards applicable to business combinations, UMG has performed a provisional allocation of the
purchase price using the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities incurred or assumed, based on analyses and appraisals prepared by UMG
with third-party appraisers, f any The major acquired assets were the music rights and catalog The allocation of the purchase price will be
finalized within the 12-month penod as required by atcounting standards and the final amount of goodwill may significantly differ from the
ampunt presented below

{in mithons of euros) September 28, 2012
Carrying value of EMI Recorded Music's assets and habilities acquired by Vivend (A} (100)
Fair value adjustments of EMI Recorded Music's acquired assets and incurred or assumed liabilittes {provisional)

Music rights and catalog 1038
Deferred income tax, net (332}
Other {34}
Tota! (B} 610
Fair value of EMI Recorded Music's acquired assets and incurred or assumed liabilities {C=A+8) 510
Fair value of EMI Recorded Music's assets and hahilities held for sale 593
Provisional goodwill 301
Purchasa price of 100% of EMI Recorded Music 1.404

Moreaver, the acquisition-related costs amounted to €56 rilhon in 2012 and to €6 million in 2011 They were recorded as other charges from
EBIT in the Consolidated Statement of Earmings and as mvesting activities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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22 Acquisition of Bolloré Group's channels by Vivendi and Canal+ Group

On December 2, 2011, Bolloré Group and Canal+ Group announced the entry into a defimtive agreement regarding the acquisition by Canal+
Group of Bolloré Group’s free-to-air channels, Direct 8 and Direct Star in February 2012, Canal+ Group exercised its option to acquire, n one
transaction, 8 100% interest in Bolloré Group's television business, in exchange for the issuance of Vivend: shares

On September 27, 2012, Vivend: cammed out a share capital increase of 22,356 thousand shares, which it paid n consideration for the
contribution made by Bolloré Media, representing an enterprise value of €336 millien After taking inte account a €16 million price adjustment
related to debt and changes in working capital, the far value of the transferred counterparty amounted to €320 mifion Bolloré Group
committed to retain the Vivend: shares recewed in connection with the completion of this transaction for a mnimum penod of six months after
September 27, 2012 Since that date, Vivend: and Canal+ Group have been granted guarantees capped at €120 milion These guaranties
expire 3 months after the expiration of the applicable statute of imitations for tax or social matters, and 18 months after September 27, 2012
for all ather matters D8 and D17 have been fully consolidated since September 27, 2012 and were renamed D8 and D17, in connection with
their launch on Qctober 7, 2012

As part of the French Competition Authonty's approval of the transaction on July 23, 2012, Vivend) and Canal+ Group undertook certain
commitments These commitments provide for restrictions on the acquisition of nghts for American movies and television senies from certain
Amencan studios and for French movies, the separate negotiation of certain nghts for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and television series,
limitations on the acquisition by DB and D17 of French catalog movies from StudioCanal, and the transfer of rights to broadcast major sports
events on free-to-air channels through a competitive brdding process These commetments are made for a 5-year period, renewable once if the
French Competition Authority, after having performed a competitive analysis, deems it necessary In addition, on September 18, 2012, the
French Broadcasting Authonty {Conseil Supéneur de I'Audiowisuel) approved the acquisition of these channels, subject to certain commitments
relating to broadcasting, investment obligations, transfer nghts, and the retention by Canal+ Group of the D8 shares for a minimum pertod of
two and a half years

Following the closing of this transaction, Bolloré Group reported having increased its interest in Vivendi SA to 4 41% Subseguently, on
October 16, 2012, 1t announced that 1t had crossed the 5% threshold in Vivend) SA's share caprtal

On December 13, 2012, Vivend:'s Supervisory Board co-opted Vincent Bolloré, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Bolloré Group, as a
member of the Supervisory Board This cooptation will be submitted for ratification at the General Shareholders Meeting to be held on
Apni 30, 2013

The purchase price allocation will be finalized within the 12-month period as required by accounting standards The frnal amount of goodwill
may differ significantly from the provisional goodwill of €310 million recorded as of December 31, 2012

2.3 Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN in Poland

In accordance with the agreement announced on December 19, 2011, and following the receipt on September 14, 2012 of unconditional
approval from the Polish Competition and Consumer Protection Authority, on November 30, 2012, Canal+ Group, (Tl, and TVN finalized the
combination of their Polish Pay-TV platforms, which remain controlled by Canal+ Group, and the acquisition by Canal+ Group of & 40% interest
in N-Vision, which has been accounted for under the equity method since that date

Following the merger of Canal+ Cyfrowy {Canal+ Group's Cyfra+ platform) with [Tl Neowision (TVN's "n” platform}, which created a new
satellite TV platform n Poland, with a base of 2 5 million customers, Canal+ Group owns a 51% interest in the new structure “nc+” (compared
to a previous 75% interest in Canal+ Cyfrowy), TVN and UPC own a 32% and 17% interest, respectively As Canal+ Group has the majority on
the Supervisory Beard and the power to govern the financial and operating policies of “ne+”, the latter has been fully consolidated by Canal+
Group since November 30, 2012

Liguidity nghts
The key hiquidity nghts under the agreements are as follows

» At the level of N-Vision

- ITI has a put option to sell an additional 9% of N-Vision to Canal+ Groups+, exercisable during a 90-day perod beginming on
December 18, 2013, on the basis of a value equal to Group Canal+' wutial investment in N-Vision, 1e for a cash price of
€61 mithon Since the option 1s based on an equity affiliate interest given to a third party it does not relate to a commitment to
purchase a non-controlling nterest, and thus follows the accounting treatment of a derwative instrument,
Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire ITI's remaining N-Vision shares, exercisable at any time during the two 3-month
periods beginning February 29, 2016 and February 28, 2017, at the then-prevailing market value,
conversely, in the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option on ITI's interest i N-Vision, ITl has a call option to
acquire Canal+ Group's interest in N-Vision, exercisable at any time during the two 3-month periods beginming May 30, 2016
and May 29, 2017, and between November 1, 2017 and December 31, 2017 and between May 1, 2018 and June 30, 2018, at
the then-prevailing market value, and
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- Canal+ Group and ITl each has the liquidity nght, follow:ng the above call option periods, to seli its entire interest in N-Vision

s At the level of "ne+”
- Canal+ Group has a call option to acquiee TVA's 32% interest n “nc+” at market value, which is exercisable duning the 3-
rnonth perods beginning Noverber 30, 2015 and November 30, 2016,
If Canal+ Group exercises its call option, Canal+ Group will be required to acquire ITI's remaintng interest in N-Vision, and
1n the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option, TVN has liguidity rights in the form of an Inital Public Offering
of 1ts interest in "nc+”

Purchase price allocatron of ITI Negvision “n”
The purchase price of 100% interest in “n” was valved at €268 million The allocation of the fair value of the acquired assets and incurred or
assumed liabilities will be finahzed within the 12-month period as required by accounting standards The final amount of goodwill may differ

significantly from the prowisional goodwill of €213 million recorded as of December 31, 2012 and valued according to the full goodwiil method

in addition, sn accordance with accounting standards, the dilution of Canal+ Group by 24% due 1o its mterest in Canals Cytrowy resutted in a
€114 miliion income directly recognized i equity Finally, "a” acquisition-related costs amounted to €15 million, of which €8 million were
incurred in 2011 These costs were recognized as other charges from EBIT in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and as investing
activities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Interest in N-Vision

The 40% interest in N-Vision was acquired by Canal+ Group for €277 mdlion, paid in cash Simultanecusly, the £120 mullion loan granted in
December 2011 by Canal+ Group to [Tl has been redeemed As of December 31, 2012, this interest was valued using the most recent cash
flow forecasts approved by the Management of TVN, resulting in a £119 million imparrment loss {including the additional put option of 9%
interest in N-Visign)

24 Other changes in the scope of consolidation

Acqusition by Canal+ Group of a non-controlling interest in Orange Cinema Seres

On Apnl 12, 2012, Muitithématiques, a subsidiary of Canal+ Group, and Qrange Cinema Series entered into a partnership via a joint company,
Orange Cinema Senes - OCS SNC, in which Multithématiques acquired an approximate 33% interest and to which Orange Cinema Sertes
contributed the publishing and broadcasting operations of 1ts pay cinema channels Since Apnl 5, 2012, Canal+ Distnbution has been
distributing the channels of the Orange Cinema Series’ package through CanalSat On July 23, 2012, as part of the decision authorizing the
merger of TPS group and CanalSatellite, the French Competition Authonty required that Canal+ Group sell its non-controlling interest in
Orange Cinema Series - 0CS SNC or, upon failure to sell such interest, to relinquish certain of its rghts contained 1n the shareholders’
agreemeny between Multithématiques and Orange Cinema Series {please refer to Note 27)

Gwen Orange’s decision not to approve any transferee, the French Competition Autharity confirmed that Group Canal+ was required to apply
the secand part of the injunctron {injunction 2{b)}, requinng Multithématiques to
- dismss the two members of Orange Cinema Series- OCS SNC' Board of Directors appointed by Multithématiques and replace them
with independent representatives having no affiliation to Canal+ Group, and
- renounce certain nghts provided in the shareholders’ agreement, in particular those relating to
o the transmission of information, notably regarding the company's performance,
o the clause which caps the expected costs of the acquisition and production of programs in the annual budget,
o the non-compete clause, and
o the framework services contract between Muluithématiques and Orange Cinema Senes whereby certain group entities
would have provided support services to Orange Cinema Seres

On February 4, 2013, at the request of Multithématiques and in order to comply with the mjunction 2{b) ordered by the French Competition
Authority on July 23, 2012, the members of Orange Cinema Series - OCS SNC' Board of Directors resigned from their positions As a result,
Multithématiques appointed, by letter with an effective date of February 4, 2013, two independent representatives with no affiliation to
Multithématiques within the Board of Directors of Orange Cinema Senes - 0CS SNC

Acquisition by StudioCanal of a 100% interest in Hoyts Distribution

On July 17, 2012 StudioCanal announced the acquisition of a 100% nterest in Hoyts Distribution, a company specializing 1n the distnbution of
feature films in Australia and New Zealand The company has been fully consolidated since that date
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Creation of Numergy by SFR

On September 5, 2012, SFR, Buli, and Caisse des Dépdts et Consignations announced the creation of Numergy, a company offenng cloud
computing services to all economic players As of December 31, 2012, SFR held a 47% terest iIn Numergy, which 1s accounted for under the
equity method As of December 31, 2012, SFR subscribed to the capital increase of this new company for €105 millien, of which €26 million
had been released

25 Acquisition of Vodafone's 44% interest in SFR in June 2011

In accordance with the agreement entered into on Apnl 3, 2011, Vivend: acquired on June 16, 2011, a 44% interast 1n SFR from Vodafone for a
totai amount of €7,950 million, which was paid entirely in cash This transaction valued the 44% interest in SFR at €7,750 mithon as of
January 1, 2011, to which was added a lump sum of €200 million related to the amount of cash generated by SFR between January 1 and
June 30, 2011, paid as an intenim dividend by SFR

In accordance with 1AS 27 revised standard, this transaction was accounted for as a purchase of non-controlling interests and accordingly the
consideration paid was fully recognized as a deduction from equity The difference between the consideration paid and the carrying value of
non-controlling Interests acquired as of June 16, 2011, 1e. a net amount of €6,049 million, was recorded as a deduction from equity
attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners

26 Changes in the group’s activities

As publicly announced to shareholders on several occasions in 2012, Vivendi's Management Board and 1ts Supervisory Board, have engaged in
a review of Vivendi's strategic development marked by a desire to strengthen its positions n media and content Given the stage of
completion of this strategic review and considering the uncertainty of the timing of potential disposals of certain telecom businesses, none of
the group’s business segments met the cnteria of IFRS 5 standard neither as of December 31, 2012, nor as of February 18, 2013, the date of
Vivend’'s Management Board meeting that approved the Consohdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
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Note 3 Segment data

31

Operating segment data

The Vivend: group comprises six businesses operating at the heart of the warlds of content, platforms and interactive networks Each business
offers different products and services that are marketed through different channels Given the unique customer hase, technology, marketing
and distribution requirements of each of these businesses, they are managed separately and represent the base of the internal reporting of
the group The Vivendi group has six businesses engaging in the aperations described below

Activision Blizzard: development, publishing and distribution of interactive entertainment software, onling or on other media (such
as console and PC),

Universal Music Group* sale of recorded music, including EMI Recorded Music since September 28, 2012, {physical and digital
media). exploitation of music pubhishing rights as well as artist services and merchandising,

SFR a telecommunication operator (mobile, broadband Internet and fixed telecommunications) in France,

Maroc Telecom group a telecommunication operator {mohile, fixed telecommunications and [ntermet) n Africa, predominantly in
Morocco as well as in Mauntania, Burkina Faso, Gabon, and Maly,

GVT: 3 Brazilian fixed telecernmunication and broadhand Intereet operator and, since October 2011, Brazhian pay-TV provider, and

Canal+ Group publishing and distribution of premium and thematic pay-TV channels as well as free-to-air channels in metropolitan
France, Poland, Africa, French overseas territones and Vietnam as well as cinema film production and distnbution in Europe

Vivendi Management evaluates the performance of these operating segments and allocates necessary resources to them based on certain
operating ndicators {segment earrings and cash fiow from operations} Segment earnings relate to the EBITA of each business segment

Additionally, segment data 15 prepared according to the following principles

the operating segment "Helding & Corporate” includes the cost of Vivendi SA's headquarters in Pans and of its New York City
office, after the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the businesses,

the operating segment “Non-core eperations and others” includes activities penpheral to the group, notably Vivendi Mobile
Entertainment (which operates a service selling digital content on the Internet and on mobile phones under the “za0za” brand),
Wengo (the French leader in expert advisory services by phone), Digitick (the French leader i web ticketing), and See Tickets (a
British ticketing company),

ntersegment commercial relations are conducted on an arm’s length basts on terms and conditions similar to those which would be
offered by third parties,

the operating segments presented hereunder 1s strictly identical to the information given to Vivendi's Management Board, and

in addition, the VTI/SFR merger had no impact on the Group’s internal reporting, SFR and Maroc Telecom group's operational
performance still reparts separately to Vivend's Management

Vivendi also presents data categorized according to six geographic regions, consisting of its five main geographic markets {France, Rest of
Europe, United States, Moracco, and Brazil), as well as the rest of the world
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Consolidated Statements of Earmings
Year ended Docember 31 2012

{in malhons of euros}

External révenues

Intersegment revenues

Revanuss

Operating expensas excluding amortzation and depreciation as well as
charges related to share-based compensation plans

Changes related tn share-based compensation plang

EBITDA

Restructuning tharges

GansAlosses) on sales of tangible and intangeble assets

Other non recuming items

Depreciation of tangible assats

Amortization of im2ng:ble assets excluding thase acquired through
business combinations

Adjusted azmings befote interest and income taxes (EBITA|
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through businass
combinations

Impairment lossas on intangible assets acquired through business
combnations

Reserva accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corparation litigabion in the
United States

Other sncome

Other chargas

Ewrisings balors imerest and Incoms taxes (EBIT}

Incarne from equity affiliates

Interest

Income from investments

Other financial ncome

Other financi2l charges

Provision for ncome taxey

Earnings from discontinued operations

Earnings

Of whech

Eamings attnibutable to Vivend: SA shareowners
Non-controlling interests
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Year ended December 31 2011

{m meltions of ewrns)

Extemal ravenues
Intersegment revenues

Qperating expenses excluding amortzation and depreciation as well as

charges relatad to share-based compensation plans
Charges related ta shara-based compensation plans.
EBITOA

Rastructunng charges

Gans/losses) on sales of 1ang:ble and ntangible assets
Other Aon recuming items
Depraciation of tangibie assets

A on bla assets

fuding those acquirsd thrugh
business combanations

Adjusted samings hefore intesest and income taxes (EBITA)
Amonzatien of imangible assets acquired through busmess
combinations

impaiment kosses on mtangtble 23461 acquired through business
combinations

Other incoma

Other charges

Exrnivgs bafors intersst and income taxes {(EBIT)

Incoma from equity affiliates

Interest

Income from imestments

Other financial income

Dther financial changes

Provision for income Laxes

Earnings from discontinued operations

Eaminga

O which

Eamings attnbutable t5 Vivendi SA sharsowmers
Non-controlling mterests
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

Nor-core
A;:;':E” M?:ZLZE::L SFR Mamng:Iecum GvT Canai+ Group gz'rdmrgai operations and  Tatal Vivends
{in miflions of euros) s b o —gthers
Dacembear 31 2012
Segment assets (a) 4199 B 867 0777 5008 5085 mn 192 35 52734
el mvestments i equity affdiates - 8 138 - 168 - 388
Unallocated assets {b} 6780
Total Assets 59514
Segment liabihties {c) 1691 3548 40N 1675 680 2925 4053 60 19003
Unatlocated habilites (d} 19075
Total Labihities 38078
Increase in tangible and intangible assets 59 2765 485 995 pax} 1 b 4608
Capital expenditures net (capex net)(e) 57 56 2736 457 947 20 i 6 4430
December 31, 2011
Segment assets (a) a7 7594 20085 6134 4759 7424 150 209 50 452
el investments w equity affdiates 85 45 5 - 135
Unallocated assets {b] 5267
Total Assets 55,719
Segment habilities (c) 1938 2764 40n 1630 618 2629 2980 50 17 008
Unallocated habilues (d} 16 643
Total Liahilites 213,649
Increase in tangible and intangible assets 32 55 1845 515 748 261 1 4 3481
Capital expenditures nat{capex net} {e} 52 52 1809 486 05 251 1 4 3340

Additional operating segment data 1s presented in Note 9 “Gondwall Note 10 “Content assets and commitmants™ and Note 13 “Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operatians”

a  Segment assets include goodwll content assets other intangible assets property plant and equipment investments in equity affiliates financial assets inventones and trage account receivables and
other

b Unallocated assets include deferred tax assets current tax recewvables cash and cash equivalents as well a5 assets held for sale
¢ Segment iabilities include provisions other non-current habihies and trade accounts payable
d  Unallocated abilities include borrowsngs and ather financial habilities deferred tax Irabiliies current tax payables as we!l as habilibes refated to assets held for sale

e Relates to cash used for capital expenditures net of proceeds from sales of property plant and equipment and intangible assets
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32 Geographic information

Revenues are broken down by the customers” location

{in mihons of suros)

Revenues
France
Rest of Europe
United States
Morocco
Brazil

Rest of the World

{in millions of euros)

Segment assets
France
Rest of Eurape
United States
Morocco
Brazl

Rest of the Warld

Year ended December 31,
02 2011

15,955 55% 16,800 58%
3393 12% 3,173 11%
3395 12% 3,085 1%
20729 7% 2,168 8%
1,797 6% 1,627 5%
2425 8% 2,062 7%
— B3 0% 28813 100%

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
27,539 52% 27,339 54%
2.692 5% 1,958 4%
10,815 21% 9,772 19%
4,347 8% 4,620 8%
5,127 10% 4,79 10%
2,214 4% 1,972 4%
52,734 100% 50,452 100%

Tuesday, February 26 2013

In 2012 and 2011, acquisitions of tangible and intangible assets were manly realized in France by SFR and Canal+ Group, in Morocco by
Maroc Telecom SA, and in Brazil by GVT

Note 4
Breakdown of revenues and cost of revenues

Year ended December 31,
{n milhions of euros) 012 2011
Product sales, net 8.262 7.598
Services revenues 20,648 21175
Other 84 A0
Revenues 28,994 28,813
Cost of products sold, net (4932) (4,811)
Cost of service revenues {9.444) {9.585)
Other 12 5
Cost of revenues {14.364) {14,391
Personnel costs and average employee numbers

Year ended December 31,

(i millions of euros except number of employees) Note 2012 2011
Annual average number of full-time equivalent employees (in thousands) 1 584
Salaries 2559 2,3%
Social secunty and other employment charges 723 654
Capitalized personne! costs {268) (211)
Wages and expenses 3,014 2839
Share-based compensation plans 211 170 129
Employee benefit plans 201 73 n
Other 275 266
Personne! costs 3,532 3305
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Additional information on operating expenses

Research and development expenditures amounted to €718 million 1n 2012 {compared to €722 millien in 2011) and comprised all internal or
external net costs brought to earnings for the perods reported

Advertising costs amounted to €900 million in 2012 {compared to €877 million 1n 2011)

Expenses recorded in the Statement of Earmings, with respect to service contracts related to satellite ransponders amounted to €116 million
in 2012 (compared to €112 millien 1n 2011)

Net expense recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to operating leases amounted to €580 million 1n 2012 (compared to
€576 million 1n 2011)

Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets

Year ended December 31,

{in mllions of euras} Note 2012 2011
Amartization {excluding intangible assets acquired through business combinations) 2,682 2,534
of winch praperty plant and equipment 1z 1,744 16862
content assets 0 122 117
other intangible assets n 816 755
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 487 510
of which cantent assets 10 324 320
other intangible assets [} 163 1580
Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations (a) 8-10 760 397
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets 3929 344

a  Mainly relates to the impairment of Canal+ France's goodwill (€665 million} and certain goodwill, and music catalogs of Universal
Music Group {€94 mullion) in 2012 and to the impairment of Canal+ France’s goodwill (E380 million) 1n 2011

Other income and other charges

Year ended December 31

{in mithons of euros) Note 2012 2014
Impact related to the settlement of the litigation over the share ownershup of FTC i Poland % - 1255
Capital gan on the divestiture of businesses 5 14
Capital gain on financial investments 8 93

of which the sale of UMG's interest n Beats Llectromcs 4 83
Other 9 23

Other income 2 1,385
Downside adjustment on the divestiture of businesses {3 {5}
Downside adjustment on financial Investments {153) {421)

of which 1mpairment of Canal+ Group’s N-Vision equity affiliate 2 {113} -
the caprtal loss on the sale of the remawung 12 34% interest m NBC Universal - {421)
Other {79) {230}
of which acquisition costs related to EMI Recorded Music and [T1 Neowisien “n” 2 {63} {14}
settiements with the Brazihan Authorities regarding ICMS 77 7} {165)
Other charges {235) (656)
Net total {213) 129
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Note5  Financial charges and income

Interest
Year ended December 31,

{in miilions of euros) 2012 2011
{Charge)/Income
Interest expense on borrowings {589} {529}
Interest iIncome from cash and cash equivalents N 48
interest {568) {481)
Fees and premiums on borrowings and credit faciiities 1ssued/redeemed and early unwinding
of hedging derivative instruments {15} {52}

(583} {533)

Other financial income and charges

Year ended December 31,

{in milhions of euros) Note 202 201
Expected retum on plan assets related 4o employee benefit plans 202 12 3
Change in value of denvative instruments 23 -
Other i 5
Other financial income 37 13
Effect of undiscounting hiabities {a) 31) (33}
Interest cost related to employee benefit plans 202 (38) (35)

Fees and premiums on borrowings and credrt facilities issued/redeemed and early unwinding of

[ hedging denvative instruments {15} {52)
Forergn exchange loss (105) (27)
of which GVT's eurg borrowing to Vivendi SA 23 (76) {24)
Change in value of denvative instruments . {10}
! Other {21} {10
Other financial charges {210} {167)
Net total (173) {153)

a  In accordance with accounting standards, when the effect of the time value of money 1s matenal, assets and habilities are initially
recorded on the Statement of Financial Position in an amount corresponding to the present value of the expected revenues and
expenses At the end of each subsequent period, the present value of such assets and liabiltties 1s adjusted to account for the passage
of ume As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, these adjustments only applied ta liabilibes (manly trade accounts payable and
provisions)
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Note 6 Income taxes

6.1

French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivend: benefits from the French Tax Group System and considers that it benefited, unul December 31, 2011 included, from the Consolidated
Globat Profit Tax System, as authorized under Article 209 guinquies of the French Tax Code

Under the French Tax Group System, Vivendi 1s entitled to consolidate its own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses
of subsidiaries that are at least 95% directly or indirectly owned by 1t, and that are located in France Universal Music 1n France,
SFR (as of January 1, 2011}, and Canal+ Group (excluding Canal+ France and its subsidianies, 1n which Vivend: directly or indirectly
owns at most 80% of the outstanding shares),

Until December 31, 2011, the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System entitied Vivend: to consolidate its own tax profits and losses
with the tax profits and losses of subsidianes that are at least 50% directly or ndirectly owned by 1t, and that are located in
France or abroad. 1 e, besides the French companies that are at least 95% directly or indirectly owned by Vivendi Activision
Blizzard, Universal Music Group, Maroc Telecom, GVT, Canal+ France and its subsidiaries, as well as Société d’Edition de Canal
Pius (SECP) As a reminder, as of May 19, 2008, Vivendi applied to the French Ministry of Finance for the renewal of its
authorization to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System and an authonzation was granted by an order dated
March 13, 2009, for a three-year peniod begiening with the taxable year 2009 and ending with the taxable year 2011

The changes n French Tax Law 1n 2011 capped the deduction for tax losses carred forward at 60% of taxable income and
terminated the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System as of September 6, 2011 Since 2012, the deduction for tax losses camed
forward is capped at 50% of taxable income and the deductibility of interest 1s imited to 85% of financial charges, net

The 1mpact of the French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems on the valuation of Vivend:'s tax attnbutes (tax losses and
tax credus carred forward) are as follows

As Vivend! considers that its entitlement to the Consohdated Global Profit Tax System was effective until the end of the
authorization granted by the French Ministry of Finance, and thereby included fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, it filed on
November 30, 2012, and asked for the refund of €366 million with respect to the tax saving for the hscal year ended
December 31, 2011 However, as this fiscal position may be challenged, Vivend: has accrued a €366 million provision for the
associated risk [please refer to Note 6 6, below),

Moreover, considenng that the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System tax credits can be carmed forward upon the matunty of the
authorization on December 31, 2011, Vivend: will request a refund of the taxes due, under the French Tax Group System for the
year ended December 31, 2012, excluding social contributions and exceptional contributions, or €208 milhon Similarly, this fiscal
position may be challenged and Vivend: has accrued a €208 million provision for the associated rsk (please refer to Note 6 6,
below),

Considerng the above, as of December 31, 2011, Vivend: recorded tax attributes amounting to a potential tax saving for a total of
£2,013 million On February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2012, the 2012 tax results of the subsidianies within the scope of Vivend SA's French Tax Group System
were determined as an estimate, and as a result, the amount of tax attributes at such date could not be determined with certainty,
After the impact of the estimated 2012 tax results and before the impact of the potential consequences of the ongoing tax audits
{please refer to Note 6 6 below) on the amount of tax attributes, Vivendi SA should achieve tax saving from tax attnbutes of
£1,567 million {undiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 36 10%}, and

As of December 31, 2012, Vivendh SA valued its tax attributes under the French Tax Group System based on one year's forecast
results, taken from the following year's budget On this basis, Vivendi would benefit from the French Tax Group System tax savings
in an amount of £324 million tundiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 36 10%)
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6.2 Provision for income taxes

{in mijhons of euros)
{Charge)/income
Current
Use of tax losses and tax credits
Tax savings related to Vivend SA’s French Tax Group System and to the
Consohdated Global Profit Tax System
Tax savings related to the US tax group
Adjustments to prior year's tax expense
Cangideration of risks related to previous years' income taxes
QOther income taxes 1tems

Defemrad
Impact of Vivendi SA's french Tax Group System and of the Consolidated Global
Profit Tax System
Impact of the US tax group
Other changes in deferred tax assets
Impact of the changels) in tax rates
Other deferred tax income/{expenses)

Provision for income taxes

6.3 Provision for income taxes and income tax paid by geographic region

(1 millrons of euros}
(Chargel/Income
Current
France
United States
Morocco
Brazil
Other junisdictions

Deferred
France
United States
Moroceo
Brazil
Other junsdictions

Provision for income taxes

Income tax {paid)/coilected
France
United States
Morocco
Brazil
Other yunsdictions
Income tax paid

Tuesday, February 26 2013

Year ended December 31

Note 2012 2011
61 381 565
70 40
{21) 1
(62) {253}
{1.471) {1,584)
{1,153) {1,221)
61 {48) (129)
2 43
(4 ]
44 {77
{6} {157)
{1,159) {1,378}
Year ended December 31
02 201
{510} (549)
{198) 1z
{257) {313)
87 {45)
(101} {202)
{1,153} {1.221)
{38) (217)
{22 (83)
3 3
{11} 90
62 50
{6} E?_l_
{1,159) 11,378)
{189) {322
{109} {207
{256) {338}
(74) {61)
{134) {162)
{762} {1,090}
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64 Effective tax rate

Year ended December 31

{in millions of euros, except %} Note 2012 2011
Earnings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes 2,108 5,105
Etmination
Income from equity affiiates 38 18
Earmings hefore provision for income taxes 2,146 5123
French statutory tax rate 3610% 3610%
Theoretical provision for ncome taxes based on French statutory tax rate {775} (1.849)
Regoncihation of the theoreucal and effective prowsion for income taxes
Permanent differences 42 133
of which  other differences from tax rates 66 88
impacts of the changes m fax rates {4) E
Vivendi SA's Fretich Tax Group System and Consolidated Global Profit Tax System 61 333 436
of which cuirent tax savings 381 565
changes i retated deferred tax assets {48) {129)
Other tax losses and tax credits 31 (1)
of which  use of current losses of the perrod 4 -
use of unrecogmized losses and tax credits 3t 56
unrecognized losses {38/ {67}
Other temporary differences {30} 19
of which reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation ltigation in the United States {341} -
Adjustments to prior year's tax expense (65) {248)
of which consideration of risks refated to previous years' income taxes {62) {253}
Capital gam or loss on the divestiture of or downside adjustments on tinanc:al
investments or businesses {313) {140
of which wnpairment of Canal+ france goodwil! {240) {137)
impairment of Canal+ Group’s N-Viston equity affiliate {43} -
Other 3 282
Effective provision for income taxes !15159! §1Q[
Effective tax rate 54 (P 269%

65 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in deferred tax assets/{liabilities), net

Year ended December 31,

{in milkons of euros) 2012 2011

Openmg balance of deferred tax assetsf{habilittes) 693 880
Prowsion far ncome taxes {6} (157)
Charges and income directly recorded i equity {a} {3 {25)
Business combinations {278) {1)
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other 3 (4}

Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{liabilities} 409 693

a Includes +&1 million fecognized mn other items of charges and income directly recognized in equity for the year ended
December 31, 2012 {compared to -€24 milhon as of December 31, 2011)
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Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities

{r millions of euros)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred taxes gross

Tuesday, February 26 2013

December 31 2012

December 31 2011

Tax attributes {a) 2639 3742
of which Vivendr SA {b) 1.567 2 653
Vivendr Hotding | Corp fc} 623 601
Temporary differences () 1,734 1,404
Netting {365} (414)
Deferred taxes, gross 4,007 4732
Deferred taxes, unrecagnized
Tax attnibutes (a) {2138) {3179)
of which Vivend: $A {b) {1,243 (2.281)
Vivend: Holding 1 Corp ft) {623} [601)
Temporary differences {d) {469) _{138)
Deferved taxes, unrecogmzed (2.607) {33n)
Recorded deferred tax assets 1,400 182
Deferrad tax habilities
Purchase accounting asset revaluations {e) 9m 742
Other 455 400
Netting {366) (414)
Recorded deferred tax habilities M 128
Deferred tax assets/{liabities), net 409 693

a

The amounts of tax attributes, as reported In this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years In jurisdictions which
are material to Vivendi, mainly France and the United States, tax returns are filed at the [atest on May 15 and September 15 of the
following year, respectively Thus, the amounts of tax attributes reported in this table and the amounts reported to the tax authorities
may differ significantly, and If necessary, may be adjusted at the end of the following year in the table above

Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attnbutes by Vivend) SA as head of the French Tax Group, representing
€2.013 milion as of December 31, 2011, of which €1,055 million related to tax losses {please refer to Note 6 1 above) and £958 million
related to tax credits, after taking into account the estimated impact (€446 million) of 2012 actvities (taxable income and use or
expiration of tax credits), but prior to taking into account the potential consequences of angoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6 6
below)

In France, tax losses can be carrted forward indefinitely and tax credits can be carned forward for a period of up to 5-years No tax
credit matured as of December 31, 2012

Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable 1n respect of tax attributes by Vivend Holding | Corp in the United States as head of the
US tax group, representing $848 million as of December 31, 2011, after taking nto account the estimated impact (-€22 million} of 2012
activities {taxable income, capital losses, and tax credits that expired, as well as capital losses and tax credits generated), but prior to
taking into account the potential consequences of ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6 6 below)

In the United States, tax losses can be carned forward for a period of up to 20-years and tax credits can be carnied forward for a period
of up to 10-years Na tax credit will mature pnor to December 31, 2022 and $6 million tax credits matured as of December 31, 2012

Mainly relates the deferred tax assets related to non-deducted provisions upon recognition, including provisions relating to employee
benefit plans, and share-based compensation plans

These tax liabiltties, generated by asset revaluatrons following the purchase price allocation of compantes are terminated upon the
amortization or divestiture of the underlying asset and generate no current tax charge
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6.6 Tax audits

The fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 and prior years are open to tax audits by the respective tax authonties in the wrisdichons in which
Vivend: has or had operations Various tax authorities have proposed or levied assessments for additional tax in respect of prior years Itis
not possible, at this stage of the current tax audits, to accurately assess the impact that could result from an unfavorable outcome of certain
of these audits Vivendi Management believes however, that it has sernous legal means to defend the positions it has chosen for the
determination of the taxable income of the fiscal years currently-under a tax audit Vivendi Management believes that these tax audits will
not have a matenial and unfavorable impact on the results of operations, financial position or liquidity of Vivend: Mareover, the impact of
the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System 1n 2011 was accrued (E366 million), as well as the impact refated to the use of tax credits in 2012
(€208 million)

In addition, 1 respect of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, the consolidated income reported for fiscal years 2008, 2007, and 2608
s under audit by the French tax authorities This tax audit started in January 2010 In addition, i January 2011, the French tax authorities
began a tax audit on the consolidated income reported for the fiscal year 2009 and in February 2013, the French tax authorities began a tax
audit on the consolidated ncome reported for the fiscal year 2010 Finally, the consequences of the tax audit for fiscal years 2004 and 2005 did
not materially impact the amount of tax attributes

Vivendr's US tax group had been under tax audit for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007 The consequences of this
tax audit did not materially impact the amount of tax attnbutes Vivend’'s US tax group 1s under tax audit for the fiscal years ending
December 31, 2008, 2009, and 2010 This tax audit started in February 2012

Finally, Maroc Telecom 1s under a tax audit for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005, 2006, 2007, and 2008 This tax audit 1s currently
In progress

Note 7 Earnings per share

Year ended December 31

2012 2011
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners (in millions
of euros} 164 181 (a} 2,681 2,678 {a}
Number of shares {(in millions)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding {b} (c) 12989 1,7989 1,2814 1,281 4
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensation (d) - 35 - 24
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 12989 1.3024 12814 1,2838
Earnings attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners per share (in
euros}) {b} 013 012 209 209

Earnings from discontinued operations are not applicable over the presented perods Therefore, the caption “earmings from continuing
operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners” relates to earnings attnibutable to Vivend SA shareowners

a Only includes the potential dilutive effect related to stock option plans and restricted stock nights of Activision Btizzard for a non-
material amount {please refer to Note 21 3)

b  The weighted-average number of shares and earmings attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners per share have been adjusted for all
penods previously pubhished in order to reflect the dilution ansing from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012 of one bonus
share for each 30 shares held, 1n accordance with 1AS 33 - Earnings per share {please refer to Note 18}

C Net of treasury shares {please refer to Note 18}

d Does not include accretive nstruments as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 which could potentially become dilutive The
balance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA's share-based compensation plans 1s presented in Note 2122
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Note 8 Charges and income directly recognized in equity

Year ended December 31, 2012

(i millions of euras}) Note Gross Tax Net
Foreign currency transiation adjustments {a) {605} {605)
Assets available for sale 15 63 63
Valuation gans/flosses) taken to equity 55 - 85
Transferred to profit or loss of the perod 8 - 8
Cash flow hedge instruments 23 22 1 23
Valuation gains/{losses) taken to equity 41 ! 427
Transferred to profit or loss of the penod {19} 19
Net investment hedge instruments 23 17 - 17
Valuation gams/llosses) taken to equity 17 17

Transferred to profit or loss of the period - -

Charges and income directly recognized in equity (503) 1 (502}

Year ended December 31, 2011

{in millions of euros) Note Gross Tax Net
Foreign currency translation adjustments (a) 182 182
Transferred to profit or loss as part of the sale of NBC Unwversal
wmterest (b} 477 - 477
Assets available for sate 1% 15 - 15
Valuation gams/(losses) taken to equity 5 - 15
Transferred to profit or loss of the period - - -
Cash flow hedge instruments 23 78 {24) 54
Valuation gains/(losses] taken to equity {5) 2z {3
Transferred to profit or loss of the penod 83 {26} 57
Net investment hedge instruments 23 21 - 21
Valuation gains/flosses) taken to equity -
Transferred to profit or loss of the penod 21 - 21
Other impacts 12 - 12
Charges and income directly recognized in equity 308 (2_]_4‘ 28=4

a  The change in foreign currency transtation adjustments pnmanly resulted from fluctuations n the euro/dollar exchange rate {(mainky at
Activision Blizzard and Universal Music Group) and in the euro/Brazilian Real exchange rate {at GVT)

b Includes a foreign exchange loss attnbutable to the decline of the US dollar since January 1, 2004, recognized upon the sale of the
remaining 12 34% interest in NBC Universal on January 25, 2011
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Note 9 Goodwill

(in milligns of euros)

Goodwill, gross
Impairment losses
Goodwill

Changes in goedwill

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

37.940 37,716
{13,284) {12,747)
24,656 25,029

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Divestitures changes In

Doomberdl  permeriisses  Bsressambiatons SO Aener - Derertar St
(in millions of euros)
Actvisian Blizzard 2,309 - (54} 2255
of which Actiision 2,265 - 53/ 2212
Biizzard 44 - 1 43
Universal Music Group 4114 {85} (a) 304 (h) {199) 4138
SFR 9152 - 1 - 9,153
Maroc Telecam Group 2413 {6) 2,407
of which Maroc Telecom SA 1795 . {5) 1,790
subsicharies 618 - 1 817
GVT 2,222 - - [216) 2,006
Canal+ Group 4648 {665) 537 (7 4513
of wiich Canal+ France 4,309 {665} - 9 3635
StudioCanal 192 - 14 ! 207
De/o7? - 319 o) am
nc+ 25 - 213 (d) 18) 230
Non-core operations and others 17 ] 7 7 184
Total 25.029 {751) 349 @ 74,65
Divestitures, changes I
December 31 Impairment losses Business foreign currency December 31
2010 combinations transiation adjustments am
{in mithons of euros)
Activision Blizzard 2257 4 2 54 2309
of which Activision 2209 - 2 54 2,265
Blizzard 44 - - 44
Distitbution 4 {4 . -
Universal Music Group 401 - 5 93 4114
SFR 9170 {18} 9152
Maroc Tetecom Group 2409 1 3 2,413
of which Maroc Telecom SA 1,797 . - 3 1795
subsidiaries 617 - 1 - 618
GVT 2,423 . - {201) 2222
Canal+ Group 4992 {386) 42 - 4548
of which Canaly France 4,689 {380} - - 4,309
StudioCanal 143 - 42 1 152
Non-core operations and others 83 - 88 (e} . 17
Total 25345 {390) 138 {64) 25,029

a Relates to impairment losses related to certain music catalogs of Universal Music Group

b Manly relates to provisional goodwill attributable to the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music on September 28, 2012 (please refer to

Note 2 1)

t Refates to provisional goodwaill attributable to the acquisition of D8 and D17 on September 27, 2012 (please refer to Note 22)

d  Relates to provisional goodwill attnibutable to the acquisition of “n”, which was finalized on November 30, 2012 (please refer to Note

23)

e Mainly related to goodwaill attributable to the acquisition of See Tickets in August 2011
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Goodwill impairment test

In 2012, Vivend tested the value of goodwill allocated to its cash-generating units {CGUs) or groups of CGU applying valuation methods
consistent with previpus years Vivendi ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU exceeded therr carrying value
(including goodwill) The recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of the value in use determined by the discounted value of future
cash flows {discounted cash flow method (DCF}) and the fair value {less costs to sell), determined on the basis of market data (stock market
prices, comparable histed companies, companson with the value attnbuted to similar assets or companies in recent transactions) For a
descniption of the methods used for the impairment test, please refertoNote 1357

Presentation of CGU or groups of CGUs tested

Operating Segments Cash Generating Unnis (CGU) CGY or groups of CGU tested
Actiwision Actwision
Actwision Bhizzard Blrzzard Bhzzard
Thstnbution Distnbution

Universal Music Group

Recorded music

Artist services and merchandising

Musie publishing

Universal Musi¢ Group

EMI Recorded music

{al

Mobile

F

St Broadband Internet and fixed SR b}
Moble Maroc Telecom
Fixed and Internet
Onatel Onatel

Maroc Tel

aroc Telecom Group Gabon Telecom Gabon Telecom
Maurrtel Mauntel
Sotelma Sotelma
GVT GVT GVT
Pay-TV in Metropalitan France
I y— Canal+ France
Canal+ Group D§/D17 Free-to-arr TV DB/017 Free-to-arr TV {a)

StudioCanal StydioCanal
(ther entities Other entities {a)

a  As of December 31, 2012, no goodwill impairment test regarding EMI Recorded Music, D8/D17 and “nc+" was undertaken given that the
purchase price allocation date was close to the closing date, and considering that no triggening event had occurred between those dates

b Due to the increased convergence of SFR's Mobile, and Broadband Internet and fixed services, Vivend: Management adjusted, In
2011, the level at which SFR's return on investments 1s monitored Consequently, Vivend: now performs a goodwill impairment test by
combining SFR's Mobile CGU and Broadband Internet and fixed CGU

As of June 30, 2012, Vivend: tested the value of goodwill allocated to GVT, on the basis of an internal valuation of the recoverable amount
of GVT As a result, Vivendt Management concluded that the recoverable amount of GVT exceeded its carrying value as of June 30, 2012 As
from June 30, 2012, no tnggenng event occurred that would require performing an impairment test regarding GVT as of December 31, 2012

During the fourth quarter of 2012, Vivendi performed such test on each cash generating umit (CGU) or groups of CGU, except for GVT, on the
basis of an internal valuation of recoverable amounts, except in the case of Activision Bhzzard, Universal Music Group [UMG), and SFR, for
which Vivend: required the assistance of third-party appraisers As a result, Vivendi Management concluded that, except in the case of
Canal+ France, the recoverable amount of each CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded their carrying value as of December 31, 2012

e Canal+ France as of December 31, 2011, Vivend: Management noted that Canal+ France’s recoverable amount was below ts
carrying value, and consequently recorded an impairment loss of €380 million As of December 31, 2012, as for the goodwill
impairment test performed as of December 31, 2011, Canal+ France’s recoverable amount was determined upon the basis of the
value in use based on the DCF method, using the most recent cash flow forecasts approved by the Management of the group, as
well as financial assumptions consistent with previous years a discount rate of 9% and a perpetual growth rate of 1 50%
{unchanged compared to December 31, 2011} - please refer to the table below As a result, considering prnimarily the expected
impact on revenues In Metropolitan France of the increase in the VAT rate from 7% to 10% as of January 1, 2014 and, to a lesser
extent, the adverse changes in the macro-economic and competitive environment since the second half of 2012, Vivend:
Management concluded that Canal+ France’s recoverable amount was below its carrying value as of December 31, 2012, and
consequently recorded an impairment loss of €665 millign

e SFR as of December 31, 2011, and June 30, 2012, Vivend: had re-examined the value of SFR's goodwill and cancluded that the
recoverable amount of SFR exceeded its carrying value at those dates As of December 31, 2012, Vivend) again examined the value
of SFR's goodwill At that date, and as of December 31, 2011 and June 30, 2012, SFR’s recoverable amount was determined upon
the basis of the usual valuation methods, tn particular the value in use, based upon the DCF method The most recent cash flow
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forecasts, and financial assumptions approved By the Management of the group were used and were updated in order to take into
account {1} the expected impact of the new tanff policies decided by SFR dunng the second half of 2012 and early 2013, following
the evolution of the competitive environment, {n) the downward adjustment in the perpetual growth rate assumption (0 50%,
compared to 1% at the end of June 2012 and end of 2011) and {in} the acceleration n very-high speed broadband nvestments As
a result, Vivend's Management concluded that SFR's recoverable amount, despite its decline, exceeded its carrying value as of
December 31, 2012 - please refer to tables below

Presemtation of key assumptions used for the determination of recoverable amounts

The value in use of each CGU or groups of CGU 15 determined as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flow projections consistent
with the 2013 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments These forecasts are prepared for each operating segment
on the basts of the financral targets as well as the following main key assumptrons discount rate, perpetual growth rate, and EBITA as defined in
Note 12 3, capital expenditures, competitive environment, regulatory environment, technological development and level of commercial expenses
Except for Maroc Telecom, for which the recoverable amount 1s determined based on its stock market price, the recoverable amount for each CGU or

groups of CGU was determined based on its value in use 1n accordance with the main key assumptions presented below

The Annual Report contains a detailed description of the 2013 aperating performance projections for each operating segment of the group

v Mathod Discount Rate {al Porpatusl Growth Rata
Op 9 CGU or groups of CGU testad M2 M4 2012 011 e 2t
DCF stock market price & | DCF stock market pnce &

1 4
Actmsion comparables model comparables model 050% 10.00% 400% oo
Actwision Blizzard Blizzard OCF stock masket prce & | DCF siock markgtnced 1050% 1000% 400% 400%

comparables model comparables model

Distrbution DCF & comparables model | DCF & bles model 131 50% 13 00% -4 00% -400%
Unwversal Music Group Unversal Music Group DCF & comparables model DCF & comparables model 9 25% 925% 1% 100%
SFR SFR DCF & comparables model OCF 730% 700% (50% 100%
Maroc Telecom Stock market pnee Stack market price na* na’ na* na*
Onatel OCF DCF 4 40% 1370% 300% 3I0%
Maroc Telecom Group Gabon Telecom OCF OCF 12 0% 170% 300% 300%
Maurste OCF DCF 17 40% 19 00% 300% 300%
Sotelma DCF OCF 14 60% 1350% 300% 300%
GVT {b) GVT OCF OCF & comparables model 1091% 1154% 400% 100%
Canal+ Group Canals France DCF DCf 200% 900% 150% 150%
SwiigCanal DCF OcF 300% 500% 000% 000%

na* not apphcable

DCF Discounted Cash Flows

a The determmnation of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-tax cash flows provides recoverable amounts

consistent with the ones that would have been obtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows

b  Regarding GVT, an annual impairment test on the value of goodwil was performed in the second quarter of each fiscal year
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December 31 2M2

(iscount rate

Perpeiral growth rate

Cash flows

Change in the thscount rate in order for

Change n the perpetual growth rate 1n

Change in cash flows in order for the

Apphed tha recoverable amount ta be agual 1o Applied order for the recoverable amount to be recoverzhle amount to be equal 10 the
rate the carrying amount rate equal to the carrying amount carmysng amount
(in %) (in number of peints) {tn %) {in number of points) {in %}

Activizion Blizzerd
Actwision 13 50% 978 pis 400% -2 15 pis 58%
Bizzard 10 50% +1019 pts 4 00% <2520 pts 68%
Umversal Musie Group 9 25% +2 98 pts 100% 491 pts 5%
SFR 730% +) 68 pt D 50% 121pt 10%
Maroc Telecom Group (a} {a) (a} (a) (a)
GVT (b} 1091% +2 51 pts 400% 625 pts 6%

Canal+ Group
Canak+ France lc) 900% ey 150% & e
StudioCanal 9 00% +] 23 pts 0 00% 555 pts -28%
December 31 2011
Discount rate Perpetual growth 1ate Cash flows

Change in the discount rate in order for Change i the perpetual growth rate In Change in cash flows n order for the
Applied the recoverable amount to be equal to Applied order for the recoverable amount to be recoverable amount o be equal to the
fate the carrying amount rate equal to the carrying amount carmying amount
fin %) {in number of paints} (1 %} {in number of points) {In %}

Activision Blizzerd
Actimsion 1000% +14 16 pts 4 00% -55 125 pts 68%
Blizzard 10 00% +12 77 pts 400% -41 25 pts T0%
Universal Music Group 925% +125pt 1 00% -186 pt 13%
SFR 700% +2 49 pts i 00% 474 pis -31%
Maroc Telecom Group {a) (a) fal (a) {al
GVT {b) 11 54% +164pt 4 00% -341 pis 5%

Canal+ Group

Canal+ France (c) 900% {c) 150% ic} {ch
StudipCanal 900% +1 99 pt 000% 331 pts 17%

a  Asof December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, Maroc Telecom was valued based on its stock market price

b The goodwili impairment tests on GVT were undertaken on June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011

c in relabion to the recogmtion of a goodwilll tmpairment loss on Canal+ France as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
ptease refer below for a sensitvity analyms , which presents {the increase)/decrease m imparment generated by a change of
25 potnts in the discount rate and the perpetual growth rate assumptions, and a 2% change in the cash flow assumption with each of

these assumptions being taken separately for the goodwill impairment test

Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Cash flows
Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by
{in millions of euros) 25pts 25 pts 25 pts 25pts 2% 2%
December 31, 2012 {133} 142 105 (98) 77 )
December 31, 2011 {149} 159 17 {109) 87 {87}
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Note 10

10.1 Content assets

{in mifions of euros)

Internally developed franchises and other games content assets
Games advances

Music catalogs and publishing nights

Advances to artists and reperioire gwners

Merchandising contracts and artists services

Film and telewision costs

Sports nghts [a)

Content assets

Deduction of current content assets

Non-cumrent content assets

{in milhions of evros)

Internally developed franchises and other games content assets
Games advances

Music ¢catalogs and publishing rights

Advances to artists and repertolre owners

Merchandising contracts and artists services

Film and television costs

Sports nghts (a)

Content assets

Deduction of current content assets

Non-current content assets

Content assets and commitments

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

December 31 2012

Content assets gross

Accumulated amortization

and impanment losses

Content assets

493 (331) 162
133 - 133
7222 (4871 2,351
618 - 618
25 (15} 10
5522 {4 756) 766
33 - 331
14,343 {9,973} 4,31
{1118 74 (1044)
13.226 {9,899) 3317
December 31, 201
\ Accumulated amorhization
Conient assets, gross Content assets
and impairment Josses
an (315) 156
9N - 91
6 420 (&743) 1677
5ib - 515
25 112) 13
519 {4 409) 720
379 - 379
13030 {9,479} 3551
{1,096} 30 {1,066}
11,934 {9,449) 2,485

a Primarily refates to the nghts to broadcast the French professional Soccer League 1 awarded in 2011 to Canal+ Group for four seasons
{2012-2013 to 2015-2016), which are recogmized as follows upan the start of the season or upon the initial payment, the nghts for the
2012-2013 season were recorded in content assets for €427 million on August 1, 2012 {compared to €465 million on August 1, 2011}
The remaining three seasons (2013-2014 to 2015-2016) were recogmzed as given off balance sheet commitments (please refer to Note
10 2 below)

Changes in main content assets

Year ended December 31,
{in miliions of euros) 2012 2011
Opening halance 3551 3816
Amortization of content assets excluding those acquired through business combinations {122} nmn
Amortization of cantent assets acquired through business combinations {324) (320)
Impairment osses on content assets acquired through business combinations (9] (a 7
Increase 2,585 2217
Decrease {2,252) {2 251)
Business combiauons 1077 (b 38
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other (135} 115
Closing balance 43N 3551

a Relates to the impairment of certain UMG music catalogs

b Primarily relates to the music catalogs acquired from EMI Recorded Music on September 28, 2012 {please refer to Note 2 1)
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10.2 Coatractual content commitments

Commitments given recorded 1n the Statement of Financial Position content lialmhties

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Content liabilities are mainly part of “Trade accounts payable and other” or part of “Other non-current liabilities” whether they are current or

non-current, as applicahle {please refer to Note 16}

Minimum future payments as of December 31 2012

Total minimurm future

Total Due in payments as of
{in milhons of euros) 2013 2014 2017 After 2017 December 31 2011
Games royalties /4 22 28
Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners 1579 1477 102 1398
Film and tefewision nghts (a) 189 189 - 235
Sparts nghts a4 374 - - 438
Creatve tafent employment agreements and others 119 4 72 B 49
Content iabilies 2203 2113 174 6 2148
Off balance sheet commitments given/(recewed)
Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2012 Total mimimum future
Total Due in payments as of

{in enillions of evros} 2013 2014 2017 After 2017 December 31, 2011
Film and television nghts (a) 2590 1,138 1411 41 2143
Sports nghts (b} 1,15 612 1103 - 2052
Creative talent, employment agreements and others (c) 959 478 445 36 1009
Biven commitments 5264 2228 2,959 7 5204
Film and television nights {a} (114) 72} (42} - 185}
Sports nights (121 7 (5} (15}
Creative talent, employment agreements and others (¢} not available

Other {199) |78) [121} 163}
Received commitments {325) [157) {168) - {163)
Total net 4,9=39‘ 2m 29 Fi 5,041

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Manly includes contracts valid over several years for the breadcast of film and TV praductions [mainly exclusmvity contracts with major
US studios) and pre-purchase contracts in the French movie industry, StudioCanal fitm production and co-production commitments
{grven and recewved) and broadeasting nghts of CanalSat and Cyfra+/“n” multichannel digital TV packages They are recorded as
content assets when the broadcast 1s available for initial release As of December 31, 2012, provisions recarded relating to these
commitments amounted to €85 million, compared to €153 million as of December 31, 2011

In addition, this amount does not include commitments given in refation to channel nght contracts for which Canal+ Group and GVT
{following the launch of 1ts pay-TV offer in October 2011} did not grant mimimum guarantees The vaniable amount of these
commitments cannot be reliably determened and 1s not reported in the Statement of Financial Position or in given commitments and 1s
instead recorded as an expense for the period 1n which 1t was incurred Based on the estimation of the future subscriber number at
Canal+ Group, commitments in relation to channel nght contracts would have increased by €288 million as of December 31, 2012,
compared to £143 millien as of December 31, 2011

Moreover, according to the agreement entered into with cinema professional organizations on December 18, 2009, Société d’Edition
de Canal Plus (SECP) is required to invest, every year for a five-year period (2010-2014), 12 5% of its annual revenues in the financing
of European films With respect to audiowisual, 1in accordance with the agreements with producers and authors’ orgamizations, Canal+
France i1s required to Invest a percentage of 1ts revenues in the financing of heritage work every year

Agreements with cinema organizations and with producers and authors’ organizations are not recorded as off balance sheet
commitments as the future estimate of these commitments cannot be reliably determined

Notably includes the nghts ta broadcast the French professional Soccer League 1 awarded to Canal+ Group in 2011 The price paid by
Canal+ Group represents €427 million per season, or a total of €1,281 million as of December 31, 2012 for the 2013-2014 to 2015-2016
seasons, compared to €1,708 million as of December 31, 2011 These commitments will be recognized in the Statement of Financial
Position either upon the start of every season or upon initial payment

Prtmanily relates to UMG which routinely commits to artists and other parties to pay agreed amounts upon delivery of content or other
products (“Creative talent and employment agreements”) Until the artist or the other party has delivered his or her content or the
repayrment of an advance, UMG discloses 1ts obligation as an off balance sheet given commitment While the artist or the other party
15 abligated to deliver a content or other product to UMG {these arangements are generally exclusive), this counterpart cannot be
reliably determined and, thus, 15 not reported 1n recewed commitments
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Note 11

{in millions of euros)

Other intangible assets

December 31, 2012

Other intangible assets

Accumulated amortization

Other mangible assets

gross and impairment losses
Software 5,447 {4 035} 1412
Telecom licenses 2960 {811} 2149
Customer bases 962 (725} 237
Trade names 452 {53 409
Other 2,110 (1,127 983
11,5941 {6,751} 5,190

{in millions of euros)

December 31, 2011

Other intangible assets,

Accurmnulated amortization

Other intangible assets

qross and impaiment losses
Software 5015 (3652) 1363
Telecom licenses 1.848 {705) 1143
Customer bases 986 {616} kY]
Trade names 481 (52) 429
Qther 1956 {932} 1,024
10,286 (5,957} 4329

Tuesday February 26 2013

Software includes acquired software, net for €592 million as of December 31, 2012 (€636 million as of Decernber 31, 2011), amortized over
4-years as well as SFR’s internally developed software

Trade names relate to trade names acquired from GVT in 2009 and Activision in 2008
Other intangible assets notably include indefeasible nghts of use (IRU} and other long-term occupattonal nghts, net for €296 million as of
December 31, 2012 (€328 million as of December 31, 2011)

Changes in other intangible assets

Year ended December 31,

{n millions of euros) 2012 201
Opening balance 4,329 4408
Depreciation (979} {945}
Acquisitions {a) 1,545 581
Increase related to internal developments 294 276
Divestitures/Decrease {4 (11}
Business combinations 38 14
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments (52) (11}
Other 19 17
Closing balance 5190 4329

a Includes the acquisition by SFR of 4G spectrum {very-high-speed Internet - LTE) for €1,065 million 1n 2012 and €150 million in 2011

Depreciation 1s recogruzed as cost of revenues and in selling, general and administrative expenses It mainly consists of SFR's telecom
licenses (-€73 mullion in 2012, compared to -€72 million 1n 2011}, internally developed software {-€221 millon in 2012, compared to
-€£199 million i 2011, and acquired software {-€244 million 1n 2012, compared to -€273 million 1n 2011}

Financial Report and Audited Consohdated financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2012
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Note 12  Property, plant and equipment

{in millions of euros)

Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Construction-in-progress
Other

{in mithons of euros)

Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Construction-in progress
Other

Tuesday February 26,2013

December 31, 2012

Property plant and
gguipment, gross

Accumulated

depreciation and Property plant and equipment

imparment losses

242 {2) 240
3,707 (2143) 1564
13,939 {8071 5 868
375 . ars
4637 (2 758) 1.879
2900 (12974) 9,92

December 31 2011

Property plant and
equipment, gross

Accumulated

depreciation and Property plant and equipmeant

impairment l0sses

77 12l 225
2,790 {1616) 1,174
13,443 (7.770) 5673
323 - 323
4,380 {2,774 1,606
n,163 {12,162) 9,001

As of December 31, 2012, other property, plant and squipment, net, notably included set-top boxes, for €974 million, compared to
€807 million as of December 31, 2011 In addition, property, plant and equipment financed pursuant to finance leases amounted to
€58 million, compared to €60 million as of December 31, 2011

Changes in property, plant and equipment

{in milfions of euros)

Opening balance
Deprecration
Acquisitions/Increase
Bivestitures/Decrease
Business combinations

Changes in foreign currengy translatton adjustments

Other
Closing balance

Year ended December 31

2012 2011
9,001 8217
1743) [t 6B2)
2,769 2.604
{39} (29)
170 7
{232} {140}
- 4
997 3001

The depreciation is recognized as cost of revenues and in selling, general and administrative expenses It mainly consists of the depreciation
of bulldings (-€15% million 10 2012, unchanged compared to 2011) and equipment and machinery (-€1,081 million 1n 2012, compared to

-£1,300 million (n 2011)
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Note 13  Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations

December 31 2012

Maroc Telecom

SFR Group GVT Total
{in millons of euros}
Other intangible assets, net
Software 1,112 182 56 1350
Telecom licenses 2002 (a) 147 - 2149
Customer bases 152 2 72 226
Trade names - 1 117 118
Other 816 50 13 879
4,082 382 258 412
Property, plant and squipment, net
Land 97 131 228
Buildings 1182 ns 16 1513
Equipment and machinery 217 1747 1,885 5,74%
Constructhon-in-progress 34 - - 4
Qther 758 97 334 1189
4,468 2290 2235 8913
Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations, net 8,550 2672 2453 13,7115
December 31, 2011
SFR Maroc Telecom VT Total
{in millions af euros} Group
Other intangible assets, net
Software 1052 206 o4 1312
Telecom hcenses 963 {a) 180 - 1,143
Customer bases 218 2 135 355
Trade names - 1 129 130
Other 885 39 16 940
3118 428 33 3890
Property, plant and equipment, nst
Land 83 k]| - 214
Buildings 855 264 15 1,134
Equipment and machinery 221 1,730 1532 5533
Construction-in-progress 285 - - 285
Other 750 115 167 1032
4244 2240 1,114 8,198
Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations, net 1362 2668 2,048 12,078

a  SFR holds licenses for its networks and for the supply of its telecommunications services in France, for a 15-year period for GSM
{between March 2006 and March 2021) and a 20-year period for both UMTS {between August 2001 and August 2021} and LTE {between
January 2012 and January 2032), with the following financial conditions

e for the GSM license, an annual payment over 15 years comprised of a (i} fixed partion in an amount of €25 million for each year
{capitalized over the perod based on a present value of €278 million in 2006) and {u) a vaniable portion equal to 1% of the yearly
revenues generated by this technology,

e for the UMTS license, the fixed amount paid in 2001 (€619 million) was recorded as an intangible asset and the vanable part of the
fee 1s equal to 1% of the yearly revenues generated by this technology Moreover, as part of this license, SFR acquired new
spectrum for €300 million in June 2010, over a 20-year penad, and

e for the LTE hcenses, the fixed amounts paid 1n October 2011 (€150 million) and January 2012 {€1,065 million), respectively, were
recorded as intangible assets at the acquisition date of the spectrum band, and the vanable portion of the fee 1s equal to 1% of
the yearly revenues generated by this technology

The variable portions of the fees that cannot be reliably determined are not recorded in the Statement of Financial Position They are
recorded as an expense, when incurred
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SFR’s network coverage commmtments related to telecommunication hcenses
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®  On November 30, 2008, the "Autorite de Régulation des Communications Electroniques et des Postes”™ or “Arcep” (the French
Telecommunications Regulatory Agency) addressed a notice to SFR regarding 1ts comphiance in the UMTS netwaork coverage of the
French metropolitan population 98% by December 31, 2011, and 99 3% by December 31, 2013 As of Decembar 31, 2011, with
984% of the French metropolitan population covered, SFR was in comphance with 1ts coverage commitments As of

December 31, 2012, the network coverage was 99 0%

e As part of the grant of the first band of LTE spectrum in Gctober 2011, SFR has committed itself to ensure a specific coverage rate
for the French metropalitan population 25% by October 11, 2015, 60% by October 11, 2019, and 75% by October 11, 2023

¢ Aspart of the grant of the second band of LTE spectrum wn January 2012, SFR has committed itself to comply with the followng

obligations

1} SFR 15 required to provide the following very high-speed mobile network coverage
- coverage of 98% of the French metropohtan population by January 2024 and 99 6% by January 2027,
- coverage In the prionty zone (approximately 18% of the French metropolitan population and 63% of the territory)
within this zone, SFR 1s required to cover 40% of the population by January 2017 and 90% of the populatien by

January 2022,

- coverage obligations at a departmental level SFR has to cover 90% of the population of each French department by
January 2024, and 95% of the population of each French department by January 2027,

n SFR and Bouygues Telecom have a mutual network sharing or spectrum pooling obligation m the priority zone,

(i) SFA has an obligation to offer national roaming to Free Mobile within the prionty zene upon building of 1ts own 2 6 GHz
network covering at least 25% of the French population provided that tt has not signed a national roaming agreement

with another operator, and

{iv) SFR has a jont coverage obligation with the other B00 MHz license holders to cover the hot-spots that have been
dentified by the French administration within the framework of the “white zones” program {beyond 98% of the

population) within 15 years

Note 14  Investments in equity affiliates
Voting interest Value of equity affliates
{in millions of euros) Note  December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 Dacember 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
N-Vision Z 40% - 162 -
Numergy 2 47% . 104 -
Other na* na* 122 135
388 135

na* not applicable
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Note 15 Financial assets

{in mithons of euros} Note

Cash management financial assets {a)

Other loans and recewvables {b}

Dervative financial instruments

Available-for-sale securities {c}

Cash deposits backing borrowings

Other financial assets

Financial assets 3
Deduction of current financial assets

Non-current financial assets

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Kill] 266
22 340
137 101
197 175
6 12
15 28
878 m
{364) (478}
514 ]
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Primanly relates to US treasuries and government agency securities with a matunty exceeding three months held by Activision
Blizzard for $387 million as of December 31, 2012 {compared to $344 million as of December 31, 2011)

b As of December 31, 2011, other loans and receivables notably included SFR's cash deposits refating to Qualified Technological
Equipment {QTE) operations for €53 million as well as a €120 milhon loan granted by Canak+ Group to IT) (n December 2011 in
connection with the strategic partnership involving Polish pay-TV This loan was redeemed at the closing of the transaction, on
November 30, 2012 {please refer to Note 2 3) Moreover, all of SFR's QTE contracts were early redeemed as of December 31, 2012

C As of December 31, 2012 and as of December 31, 2011, the available-for-sale securities did not include significant publicly quoted
securities and were not the subject of any significant impairment with respect to fiscal years 2012 and 2011

Note 16  Net working capital

Changes n net working caprtal

Changes In Changes n
December 31 operating working Business foreign currency Other (b} December 31
2011 combinations translation 012

{in millions of euros) capital {a) adjustments
Inventones 805 (80} i) (12} (4} 738
Trade accounts recevable and other 6,730 {291) 284 {84) i52) 6,587
Working capital assets 1535 (3n) n (96) (56} 1325
Trade accounts payable and other 13987 {307) 519 (125) 62 14 196
Other non-current liabilities 864 2% 55 {19) 75 1,002
Working capital habihities 14,851 {281} 635 (143} 137 15,198
Net working capital {7.316) (90) (32} 43 {193) {1873}

Changes in Changes in

December 31 operating working Business foretgn currency Other (b} December 31,
2010 combinations translation am

{in millions of euros) capital {3) adjusiments
Inventones 750 53 i 5 4 805
Trade accounts receivable and other 6711 95 24 {30) (70} 6,730
Workmg capital assets 7,461 148 5 {z5) {74) 7.535
Trade accounts payable and other 14 451 (101) n 6 {440} (c) 13 987
Other nan-current liabihties 1,074 {58} 7] {145} 864
Working capital habilities 15,525 {159) n ) “(585] 14,851
Net working capital {8,064) 307 (36} (29} 5H {1,316}

2 Excludes content investments made by Activision Blizzard, UMG, and Canal+ Group

b Mainly includes the change in net working capital relating to content investments, capital expenditures, and other investments

c Notably includes the intenim dwidend due as of December 31, 2010 by SFR to Vodafone, paid in January 2011 (€440 millicn)
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{in militons of euros) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Trade accounts recewnable 5458 5,684
Trade accounts recevable wiite-offs (1,315) (1,202
Trade accounts receivable, net 4143 4,482
COther 2444 2248
Trade accounts receivahle and other 6,587 6,730

Vivendi does not consider there to be a sigrificant nisk of non-recavery of non-impaired past due receivables Vivend!'s trade receivables do
not represent a significant concentration of credit nsk due to 1ts broad customer base, e broad vanety of customers and markets, as well
as the subscription-based business model of most of its business segments {Actiision Blizzard, SFR, GVT, and Canal+ Group) as well as the
geograptue diversity of its business operations [please refer to Note 3 2) Please also refer to Note t 3510 for a description of the method

used to evaluate trade account receivable provisions

Trade accounts payable and other

{in midhons of euros) Note  December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Trade accounts payable 6,578 6,684
Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners 102 1477 1,375
Game deferred revenues {a) 1,251 1,139
Prepaid telecommunication revenues (b} 817 900
Other 4073 3889
Trade accounts payable and other 13,19% 13,587

a Relates to the impact of the change in deferred net revenues at Activision Blizzard and related costs of sales associated with the sale

of boxes for certain games with significant online functionality {please refer to Note 134 1)

b Mainly includes subscriptions that are not past due and prepaid cards sold but not consumed, mobile phones held by distributars, roll-
over minutes of SFR’s mebile operations and the current portion of SFR’s deferred revenues of fixed operations

Other non-current liabihties

{in miflions of euros) ) Note  December 31 2012 December 31, 2011
Advance lease payments in respect of Qualified Technological Equipment aperations 15 53
Lizhiliues related to SFR GSM license (a) 13 154 172
Prepard revenues from indefeasible nghts of use {IRU) and other long-term

occupational nights {b) 340 385
Naon-current content liabilities 102 180 56
Other 328 {c} 218
Other non-current habilities 1,002 ]

a Relates to the discounted value of the liability The nominal value amounted to €206 million as of December 31, 2012, compared to

€231 mullion as of December 31, 2011

b Relates to deferred revenues associated with indefeasible nght of use (IRU} agreements, leases or services contracts

t  Notably mcludes the lang-term portron of capial (€63 mithon) subscnbed by Numergy, not yet released {please refer to Note 2 4)
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Note 17  Cash and cash equivalents

{in millions of euros) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Cash 920 667
Cash equivalents {a) 2974 2837
of which UCITS 2699 2265
certificates of deposit and term deposits 275 372
Cash and cash equivalents 3,894 3304

a Cash equivalents manly includes Activision Bhizzard's cash and cash equivalents for €2,983 million as of December 31, 2012
{compared to €2,448 million as of December 31, 2011}, nvested, If any, i money market funds with 1nitial matunty dates not
exceeding 90 days

Note 18  Equity

Share capital of Vivends SA

{in thousands) December 31, 2012 December 31 2011

Common shares outstanding (rominal value €55 per share) 1,323,962 1,247,263
Treasury shares {1 461) {1,329)
Voting nights 1322501 1,245,934

The Increase in the number of common shares outstanding i 2012 1s due to the grant of 416 million bonus shares to Vivendi SA
shareholders in May 2012 (please see below), the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels in exchange for 22 4 mition shares in
September 2012 (please refer to Note 2 2) as well as the employee stock purchase plan {12 3 million shares) of July 2012 {please refer to
Note 21)

As of December 31, 2012, Vivend: held 1,461 thousand treasury shares, or 0 11% of its share capital These shares are backed to the
hedging of performance share plans The carrying value of the portfolio amounted to €25 million as of December 31, 2012 and its market
value amounted to €25 million as of December 31, 2012

In addition, as of December 31, 2012, approximately 53 million stock options were outstanding, representing a maximum norminal share
capital increase of €294 milhan or 4 03% of the company’s share capital

Non-controlling interests

{in mithons of euros} December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Activision Blizzard 1,183 1,009
Maroc Telecom Group 1,073 1131
Canal+ Group 692 an
Other 23 i2
Total M 2,623

Distributions to shareowners of Vivendi SA and its subsidiaries

Dividend proposed by Vivendi SA with respect to fiscal year 2012

On February 18, 2013, the date of Vivendr's Management Board's meeting which approved its Consolidated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2012 and the appropriation of earnings for the fiscal year then ended, Vivendi's Management Board decided to propose to
shareowners a dividend distribution of €1 per share, which would represent a total distribution of approximately €1 3 billion to be paid in
cash on May 17, 2013, following the coupon detachment on May 14, 2013, by withdrawal from the reserves This proposal was presented
to, and approved by, Vivendi's Supervisory Board at its meeting held on February 22, 2013 The additional contribution of 3% on dividends
will be recorded as a tax charge upon the payment of the dwvidend on May 17, 2013

Dividend paid by Vivendi SA with respect to fiscal year 2011

At the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of April 19, 2012, Vivend's shareholders approved the Management Board's
recommendations relating to the allocation of distributable earnings for fiscal year 2011 As a result, the dividend payment was set at €1 per
share, representing a total distribution of €1,245 million, paid in cash on May 9, 2012, following the coupon detachment on May 4, 2012
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Bonus shares granted to Vivendi SA shareowners

At ts meeting held on February 29, 2012, following the Supervisary Board's recommendatron, Vivendi's Managerment Board decided to grant
to 115 shareowners one bonus share for each 30 shares held This transaction resulted in the issuance on May 9, 2012, by a €229 million
withdrawal from add:tional paid-in capital, of 41 6 million new shares with a nominal value of €55 each and entitlement as from
January 1, 2012

Dividend distributed by subsidiaries
On February 7, 2013, Activision Blizzard announced that rts Board of Directors had declared a dividend of $0 19 per common share to its
shareholders This dwvidend will be paid in cash on May 15, 2013

The Supervisory Board of Maroc Telecom group will prapose to the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting, to be held on Apnl 24, 2013, the payment
of an ordinary didend of MAD 7 4 per share, which corresponds to 100% of distnbutable earmings from 2012 This dividend will be paid in
cash on May 31,2013

In 2012, dwvidend payments to subsidianies’ non-controlling interests amounted to €481 million (€721 million 1n 2011) and mainly included
Marac Telecom SA for €345 million in 2012 {compared to €384 million in 2011} and Activision Blizzard for €62 million in 2012 {compared to
€55 mithen in 2011) Morecver, cn June 16, 2011, at the completion of the acquisition of its 44% interest in SFR, @ €200 mullion intenm
dividend was paid to Vodatone

Activision Bhizzard

Stock repurchase program of Activision Blizzard

On February 2, 2012, Activision Blizzard announced that its Board of Directors had authorized a stock repurchase program under which
Activision Blizzard can repurchase shares of its outstanding comman stock up to an amount of $1 billion This program will end at the earlier
of March 31, 2013 or on the date of the Board of Directors’ decision to discentinue 1t In 2012, Actvision Blizzard repurchased approximately
4 million shares of 1ts common stock in connection with this program, for a total amount of $54 million th addition, durng the first half of
2012, Activision Blizzard settled a $261 million purchase of 22 milhon shares of its common stock pursuant to the previous $1 5 billion stock
repurchase program In total, Activision Bhizzard repurchased approximately 26 million shares of its common stock in 2012, for a total amount
of $315 million, or £241 million {compared to $692 million or €502 millign n 2011)

Vivend:’s ownership mterest in Activision Blizzard

As a reminder, on November 15, 2011, Vivend! sold 35 million Activision Blizzard shares into the market for $422 million (€314 miliion)

As of December 31, 2012, Vivend: held 684 mifllion shares out of a total of 1,112 million Actvision Blizzard shares, or a 61 5% interest
{compared to approxmately 60% as of December 30, 2011} Moreover, as of December 31, 2012, the outstanding Activision Blizzard stock
wnstruments represented 77 million new shares to be 1ssued m favor of thewr beneficianes {52 milhon shares due 1o stock options and
25 million restricted shares, compared to 53 million and 17 mellion shares, respectively, as of December 31, 2011, please refer to Note
2132}, and the stock repurchase program authorized in February 2012 not consumed for up to $946 million, representing approximately
86 million potential treasury shares (under the assumption of a stock price of $11 per share)

As part of 1ts earnings release announced on February 7, 2013, the Board of Activision Blizzard 1s considenng, or may consider during 2013,
substantial stock repurchases, dividends, acquisitions, licensing or other non-ordinary course transactions These potential transactions
could be financed by debt
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Note 19 Provisions

Dwestitures changes in

December 31 Business foreign curmency December 31
Wate 2011 Addition Unlizatian Reversal combinations  translation adjustments 2Nz

{in millons of euros} and other

Employee benefits {a) 507 43 [E:) {19} [:1] k] 551
Restructunng costs 48 22 {154 52 {10 758
Litigations 27 479 1015 (g} {54) {6z} 4 {5) 1357
Lesses on onerous contracts 237 19 (104) {10} 1 143
Contengent hiabiities due to disposal {d} 264 41 {17) 24
Cost of dismanthng and restaning sites {e) 70 i (3 15 83
Other () 773 748 {o) (107) {63} 29 9 1389
Provisions g.1=55_ 2148 (500} {1749) 145 3 1505
Deduction of current provisions {586 @6 & N 112 [F} 1y
Non-currant provisions 1,569 16882 1408 &= 13 4 30

Devestitures changes in

December 31 Business foresgn currency December 31
Note 2010 Addiuon Uthzauon Reversal comhbinations translation adjustments 201
{sn millions of euros) and other
Employee benefits (a) 511 40 T} (3 37 507
Restructunng costs 42 81 (90} 16 1 14 43
Litigations 27 443 262 {198) (46} W2 6 479
Lasses on onerous contracts 394 72 [185) (61} 2 3] 237
Contingent liabilitves due to disposal (d) 64 50 {3 {6) a4
Cost of dismantling and restoring sites (e} 63 2 9 70
Qther (f} 526 351 {64} {65) - % 73
Provisions 2029 B12 [Sgl {182 15 B1 2155
Deduction of current provisions (552} (299) 290 48 — 73) {586
Non-current provisions 1477 513 [E1L0) {134) 15 8 1.569
a Includes employee deferred compensation as well as provisions for defined employee benefit plans (€439 million as of December
31, 2012 and €446 million as of December 31, 2011, please refer to Nate 20 2), but excludes employee termination reserves recorded
under restructuring costs
b Includes restructuring provisions SFR (€170 million), Maroc Telecom (€72 milhon), and UMG (€79 million)
c Notably includes the €945 million reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation litigation in the United States (please refer
to Note 27) p
d Certain commitments given In relation to divestitures are the subject of provisions These provisions are not significant and the
amount 1s not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivend
e SFR and GVT are required to dismantle and restore each telephony antenna site following termination of a site lease
f Notably ncludes provisions for fiscal and legal litigations for which the amount is not detailed because such disclosure could be
prejudicial to Vivends
g  Notably includes the reserve accruals related to the impacts of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System in 2011 (E366 mullien}, as

well as the impact related to the use of tax credits 1n 2012 (€208 million) {please refer to Note 6}

Note 20 Employee benefits

20.1 Analysis of expenses related to employee benefit plans

The following table provides information about the cost of employee benefit plans excluding ts financial component The total cost of
defined benefit plans 1s set forth in Note 20 2 2 below

Year ended December 31,

{in milhons of euros) Note 2012 20

Employee defined contribution plans 57 55
Employee defined benefit plans 2022 16 16
Employes benefit plans 713 n
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202 Employee defined benefit plans

2021 Assumptions used in the evaluation and sensitivity analysis
Discount rate, expected return on plan assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit plans were made in complance with accounting pohicies presented in
Note 1 38 and have been apphed consistently for several years Demographic assumptions (including notably the rate of compensation
increase) are company specrfic Financial assumptions {notably including the discount rate and the expected rate of return on investments)
are made as follows
« determination by independent actuaries and other independent adwisors of the discount rate for each country by reference to yields
on notes Issued by investment grade companies having a credit rating of AA and matunties dentical to that of the valued plans,
generally based on relevant rate indices, and as reviewed by Vivendi's Finance Department, representing, at year-end, the best
estimate of expected trends in future payments from the first benefit payments, and
o the expected retun on plan assets 1s determined for each plan according to the portfolio composition and the expected
performance of eath component

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits

2012 2041 2012 2011
Discount rate (3) 36% 46% 36% 43%
Expected return on plan assets {b) 36% 37% na* na*
Rate of compensatian increase 20% 19% 3% 0%
Expected average warking hfe {in years) 103 98 48 53
Weighted average duration of the benefit obligation {in years} 142 148 105 101

na* not applicable

a A bSO basis point increase {or a 50 basis point decrease, respectively) in the 2012 discount rate would have led to a decrease of
€1 mullign 1n pre-tax expense {or an increase of €2 million, respectively) and would have led to a decrease in the obligations of pension
and post-retirement benefits of €65 milhon {or an increase of €71 million, respectively}

b ADG0 basis point increase {or a 50 basis paint decrease, respectively) in the expected retern on plan assets for 2012 would have led to
a decrease of €1 million 1n pre-tax expense {or an increase of €1 million, respectively)

Assumptions used in accounting for the pension benefits, by country

United States United Kingdom Germany France
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Discount rate 350% 425% 425% 500% 325% 4 50% 325% 4 50%
Expected return on plan assets 350% 425% 4 25% 336% 325% na* 325% 455%
Rate of compensation increase na* na* 4 50% 500% 2 00% 200% IN% 347%

na* not apphcable

Assumptions used in accounting for post-retirement benefits, by country

United States Canada
2012 2011 2012 2011
Discount rate 350% 425% 400% 475%
Rate of compensation increase 350% 350% na® na*

na* not applicable

Pension plan assets

Weighted-average range of investment silocation by asset category for each major plan

Minimum Maximum
Equity securities 6% 6%
Real estate 1% 1%
Debt secunties 57% 57%
Diversified funds 16% 16%
Cash and other 20% 20%
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Allocation of pension plan assets

Equity secunties
Real estate
Debt secunties
Dwversified funds
Cash and other
Total

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011

6% 6%
1% 1%
57% 67%
16% 17%
20% 9%
100% 100%

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

Pension plan assets which were not transferred have a imited exposure to stock market fluctuations These assets do not include occupsed
buildings or assets used by Vivendi nor shares or debt instruments of Vivend

Cost evolution of post-retirement benefits

For the purpose of measuring post-retirement benefits, Vivend( assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from 7 3% for categones under 65 years old and 85 years old and over in 2012, to 45% 1n 2021 for these
categories 'n 2012, a one-percentage-point increase in the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased post-retirement benefit
obligations by €12 mullion and the pre-tax expense by €1 mvllion Conversely, a one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed cost evolution
rates would have decreased post-retirement benefit obligations by €10 million and the pre-tax expense by less than €1 million

2022 Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of benefits paid

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits Total

{in millions of euros) 2012 201 2012 2011 0z 201

Current service cost 19 16 19 16
Amartization of actuaral {gains)/losses 8 7 8 7
Amortization of past service cost 1 1] 1 {7
Effect of curtaliments/settlements (12) - (2 -
Adjustment related to asset celling - - - - - -
Impact on selling, sdmrmistrative and general expenses 16 16 - - 16 16
Interest cost k) 8 7 7 38 35
Expected return on plan assets {12) {8) . - N2 1]
Impact on other financial charges and sncome 19 19 7 ? 26 %
Net benefit cost 35 k] ? 7 12 42

In 2012, benefits paid amounted to {1} €29 million {compared to €27 million 1n 2011} with respect to pensions, of which €7 million (compared
t0 €5 mullion n 2011) was patd by pension funds, and {11) €12 milfion (unchanged compared to 2011) was paid with respect to post-retirement

henefits

2023  Analysis of net benefit obligations with respect to gensions and post-retirement benefits

Benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets and funded status over a five-year period

Pension benefits

Post-retirement benefits

December 31, December 31
{in millions of euros) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2012 2011 2010 2008 2008
Benefit obligation 857 668 625 539 482 163 158 159 142 1385
Fair value of plan assets 367 272 240 203 189 - - - - -
Underfunded obligation (490) (396) (385) (336) {293) {163) (158) {159) (142} {135}
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Changes in valus of benefit obligetions, fair value of plan assets, and funded status

{in emxllions of puros)

Opening balance
Cument service cost
Amoitization of acteanal [gamns)iosses
Armortrzation of past sarvice cost
Effect of curtailments
Effect af sattlaments
Adjustment selated to assat ceiling

tmpact on sefling, ad;

Nots

Interest cost
Expected return oq plan assats

fmpact on sthet financal charges and int oo

Mst benefit cost

Actuanal gainy/llosses} ansing from changes in demographic assumptions

Aciuanal gainsfliosses) ansng from thanges i financial assumptions

Expenence gamsAlosses) {a)

Banafits pad

Contnbeticns by plan paruicipants

Cantnbetions by employers

Plan amendmants

Business cormbirations (b)

Drvestitires of businesses

Transfers

Othes {forewgn currency transtation adjustments)

Cloging halance

of which  wholly or partly funded berelits
wholly unfundad benefits fc}

of wheh  assets ralated to smployee benefi plans
provisions for smpioyae benedit plans (o)

Empleyes dafined beneld plans
Year ended Docember 11 2012
Benefit Farr value of Undarfunded Unrwcognuzed Adjustmant Nat
obligation plan assaty obligaton actuanal related o asset  {provision)/asset
{gains)losses ceiling recorded in the
and past service staternant of
codt financial position
(A 1] {CHBHAY m 3] [CHOME)
-3 m {554} 126 - (428}
19 119 {19)
18} ]
n i
21} n {9) 12
(18}
8 (38) 138}
12 12 12
(25)
(42}
1 {n 1
106 (106} 106
{13) 3 25 (26
(43} 43)
1 ]
63 8 1]
1 (1) 1
m 51 160) {60}
{6 2 4 m 3
1,020 357 {653) 189 {464)
—
533
487
»
{489}
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Employes detined banefit plans
Yeas anded December 31 2011
Benefit Faer value ol [ i A Het
obhigation plan assats obirgatron actuanal related 1o o330t {provison]/asset
(gains}losses cething racorded in the
and past senace slatemeni of
ost firancial podition
(m rmlirorss of uros) Note A (B} {C=HBHAI L{1)] E) {CD}E)
Opaning baiance ™ L] 544) 17 am
Currert servca cost 16 e {16
Amoriization of actuanal [gansi/flosses 4] @
Amoruzation of past sernce tost 1] 8 m 7
Effact of curtaiiments
Effect 0! samdamants
Adgusument rolated (o 33361 carlmg
tmpact on selling, ive and generai oxp 18}
Interazt cost 5 1351 35}
Expectad rewm on plan s3saty 9 T q
Impact on other financial charges aad Income 126)
Net beasfit cost %]
—
Actusnal grsAlossash ansng from changas n damographec assumptons
Actuanal gamatlosses) ansmg from changes m fmancal assunptons 7 lul 7
Expaniance gans/Alossas) (at 1 ] 1
Benatits pard 29 9
Contnbuttons by plan particpants 1 1
Contnbutions by employsrs 49 49 49
Plan amendmants ] [} ]
Busmess combrrations
Dvostituras of busnessas
Transters
Other [foresgn cunency transtabon adpustments) <) 12 11 3 [8)
Closing bslance '1_‘ Fi7] [E=] 1% ()
of whieh  wholly or partly funded benalils 389
wholly unfunded benefits f¢} 437
of which  assars nelamd (o employes banefit plans 2
provistons for amployes benafit plans (d) 19 {445}

a  Includes the impact on the benefit obligation resulung from the difference between benefits estimated at the previous year-end and benefits paid during the year ard the difference between the
expected return on plan assets at the previous year end and the actua! return on plan assets duning the year As a reminder in 2010 2009 and 2008 {gainsiflosses that result from actual expenence
in respect of benefit ebhigations amounted to 64 million €1 mllion and €1 millian respectively and gains/losses) that resuit from actual expenence in respect of plan assets amounted to
£9 million €3 muliron and -€43 milhon respectively

b Relates to the impact of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music on the value of the abligations plan assets and underfunded obligation for €11% million €52 million and €59 milion

[ In accordance with lacal laws and practices certain plans arg not covered by pension funds As of December 31 2012 they prncipally comprise supplementary pension plans in the United States
pension plans in Germany and post reurement benefit plans in the United States

d  Includes a current habitty of €45 millian as of December 31 2012 (compared to €37 million as of Oecember 31 2011)
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Benefrt obligation, fair value of plan assets. and funded status detailed by country

Pension benefits Post tetrement benefits Tatal
{in mithons of euros) December 31 December 31 Detember 31
2012 2011 012 2011 202 2031

Benefit ohligatien
LS companies ig 124 i44 139 262 260
UK companies 225 W05 25 05
German companies 183 108 - 183 108
French compames 216 m - 216 17m
Oher 139 63 19 19 134 82

(] 568 163 158 100 %26
Fair valus of plan assets
US companees 53 56 - 53 56
UK companies 188 154 - - 184 154
German companies 3 3
French companies 67 51 &7 51
Dther 56 1 58 "

a7 bir] - - 367 m
Underfunded obligation
US compares {65) {65} {144} (139} {209) (204)
UK compantes (37) {51} (37) [51)
German companies (180) {108) {180} (108)
French companies {149) i)l {149} nam
Othes 188) 152} (g g (78 by

(490} (396) {163 {158) {653) 1554)

In 2011, Vivend) took into account the impact of the change in the legislation in relation to the ndexation of retirement plans in the United
Kingdom, which resulted in a non-significant decrease of its commitments

2024 Additional information on pension benefits in France

Vivendi maintains ten pension plans in France, of which four make investments through surance companies The allocation of assets by
category of the varous plans was as follows

Equity secunities Real estate Debt securities Cash Total
Corparate Supplementary Plan 121% 64% 775% 40% 100%
Comporate Management Supplementary Plan 150% 53% 754% 7% 100%
SFR Supplementary Plan 120% 60% 810% 10% 100%
Canat+ Group IDR® Plan 99% 81% 820% - 100%

IDR {Indemnités de départ en retraite}* indemnities payable on retirement

The asset allocation remains fairly stable over time Contributions to the four plans amounted to €17 million 1n 2012 {compared to €4 milhion
in 2011}, and are estimated to be £7 millton in 2013

Payments to all ten pension plans in France amounted to €17 miflion in 2012 {compared to €5 million in 2011}, and are estimated to be
€3 million1n 2013

2025 Benefits estimation and future payments

For 2013, hedge fund contributions and benefit payments to retirees by Vivend: are estimated at €45 mullion in respect of pensiors, of which
€23 milhon to pension funds and €12 million to post-retirement benefits

Estimates of future benefit payments to beneficianes by the relevant penston funds or by Viverd: (in norinal value) are as follows

Post-retirement

{in mitlions of euros) Pension benefits benefits

2013 3 12
M4 Ly} 1
2015 2% 1
2016 2 n
2017 » 1
2018-2022 190 51
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Note 21 Share-based compensation plans

21.1 Impact on the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

{(in millions of euros) Year ended December 31,
Charge/{income} Note 2012 20m
Stock optiens. performance shares and bonus shares 32 28
Employee stock purchase plans 33 25
*Stock appreciation rights” and “restricted stock umits” - {9)
Vivendi stock instruments 212 65 48
Activision Blizzard stock instruments 213 103 67
UMG employee equity unit plan 214 9 7
Subtotal {including Activision Blizzard's capitalized costs) 177 122
equity -settled instruments 168 120
cash-settled instruments 9 2
(-} Activision Blizzard's capitalized costs (a) ] 7
Charge/{Income) related to share-based compensation plans 3 170 129

a Share-based compensation costs directly attnbutable to games development are capitalized In compliance with the accounting
principles described in Note 1354 In 2012, €21 million were capitahized {compared to €19 million 1n 2011} and €14 million were
amortized (compared to €26 million in 2011), representing a net impact of +€7 million {compared to -€7 milhon in 2011)

21.2 Plans granted by Vivendi
21.2.1 Information on plans granted by Vivend:

Vivendi has granted several share-based compensation plans to its employees During 2012 and 2011, Vivend! granted stock option and
performance share plans, wherever the fiscal residence of the beneficianies, and bonus share plan for employees of all the group’s French
subsidianes, as well as stock purchase plans for its employees and retirees (employee stock purchase plan and leveraged plan}

The accounting methods applied to value and recognize these granted plans are descnbed in Note 13 10

More specifically, the volatility applied in valuing the plans granted by Vivend: 1n 2012 and 2011 1s calculated as the weighted average of (a)
75% of the historical volatility of Vivend: shares computed on a 6 5-year penod and (b) 25% of the implied volatlity based on Vivendi put
and call options traded on a hquid market with a matunity of 6 months ar more

The nsk-free interest rate used 15 the rate of French “Obligations Assimilables du Trésor” {OAT) with a matunity corresponding to the
expected term of the instrument at the valuation date

The expected dividend yield at grant date 1s based on Vivendr's dividend distribution policy, which 1s an expected dividend representing
appraximately 43% to 55% of adjusted net income

Equity-settled instruments

The definitive grant of equity-settled instruments, excluding bonus share plan, 1s subject to the satisfaction of performance conditions Such
performance conditions include an external indicator, thus following AFEP and MEDEF recommendations The obiectives underlying the
performance condibions are determined by the Supervisory Board upon proposal by the Human Resources Committee

The value of the granted equity-settled instruments 15 estimated and set at grant date For the main stack option plans, performance share
plans and bonus share plans of 2012 and 2011, the apphied assumptions were as follows

2012 m

Grant date July 16, {a) April 17, Apnl 13
Data at grant date

Option strike price (in euros} {b) na* 1383 1993

Share price (in evros) 1575 1253 2056

Expected volatility na* 27% 25%

Expected dividend yizld 635% 798% 7 30%
Performance conditions achievement rate {c) na* 100% 100%

na* not applicable
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a  Vivend's Management Board decided to grant 50 bonus shares to the employees of all the group’s French subsidiaries

b Inaccordance with legal requirements, the number and strike price of stock options, as well as the number of performance shares m
connection with outstanding plans, were adjusted to take into account the impact, for the beneficiaries of the grant, of one bonus
share on May 9, 2012 to each shareowner per 30 shares held by a withdrawal from additional paid in capital This adjustment had no
impact on share-based compensation expense related to the relevant stock option and performance share plans

¢ Beginning in 2012, for both perfarmance shares and stock options, the objectives underlying the performance conditions are assessed

once on a cumulative basis at the expiry of a two-year period {each year during two years for plans granted n 2011} Therr definitive

grant wilf be effective upon the satisfaction of the following new performance conditions

e nternal indicator (70%) EBITA margin rate which will be recorded as of December 31, 2013 on the basis of cumulative 2012 and
2013 fiscal years {compared to adjusted net income {45%) and cash flow from operations {25%) for plans granted in 2011), and

e external indicators {30%) the performance of Vivend share between January 1, 2012 and December 31, 2013, compared to two
stock indices Europe Stoxx 600 Telecommunications (70%, compared to 60% for plans granted i 2011} and a range of Med:ia
values {30%. compared to 40% far plans granted in 2011)

As the performance conditions related to the 2011 plan were satisfied at year-end 2012, the defintive grant of stock optiens and
performance shares from Apnl 13, 2011 betame effective as of December 31, 2012 The acquisition of these instruments 1s conditionat upon
active employment at the vesting date

Stock optron plans

Stock options granted n 2012 and 2011 vest at the end of a three-year penod and expire at the end of a ten-year perod (with a 6 5 year
expected term) and the compansation cost determined at grant date 1s recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period

On Apnl 17, 2012, 2,514 thousand stock options were granted, compared to 2,527 thousand granted on April 13, 2011 After taking into
account a 2 35% nisk-free interest rate {3 21% in 2011}, the fair value of each optron granted was €0 96, compared to €2 16 per option on
April 13, 2011, corresponding to a global fair value of €2 million {compared to €5 million in 2011)

Performance share plans

Performance shares granted in 2012 and 2011 vest at the end of a two-year period The compensation cost 1s therefore recognized on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period Performance shares are avallable at the end of a four-year penod from the date of grant
However, as the shares granted are ordinary shares of the same class as existing shargs composing the share capital of Vivend: SA,
employee shareholders are entitled to dividends and voting rights attached to these shares at the end of the two-year vesting period The
compensation cost corresponds to the value of the equity instruments receved by the beneficiary, and s equal to the difference between
the fair value of the shares to be received and the discounted value of dividends that were not received over the vesting penod

On Apnl 17, 2012, 1,818 thousand performance shares were granted, compared to 1,679 thousand granted on Apnl 13, 2011 After taking
into account a discount for non-transferabihty of 7 10% of the share price on Apnl 17, 2012 {4 50% on Apn! 13, 2011}, the fair value of each
granted performance share was €9 80, compared to €16 84 per share on Apnl 13, 2011 corresponding 10 a global fair value of €18 millon
{compared to €28 million in 2011)

50 bonus share plan

On July 16, 2012, Vivend adopted a 50 bonus share plan per employee of ali the group’s French subsidiaries These shares will be 1ssued at
the end of a two-year period, 1e, July 17, 2014, subject to the employee being in active employment at this date and without any
performance conditions The compensation cost was recognized on a straight-kne basis over this period The shares will only be available
after another two-year period However, as the shares granted are ordinary shares of the same class as exsting shares making up the share
capital of Vivendi SA, employee shareholders will be entitled to dividend and voting nghts relating to all their shares from the end of the two
year vesting period

On July 16, 2012, 729 thousand bonus shares were granted After taking Into account a discount foi non-transferability of 9 30% of the
share price on July 16, 2012, the fair value of each granted bonus share was €12 40, a total of €9 million

Employee stock purchase and leveraged plans

Vivend: also maintains share purchase plans (stock purchase and leveraged plans) that allow substantially a of 1ts employees and retirees
to purchase Vivend shares through capital increases reserved to them These shares, which are subject o certain sale or transfer
restrictions, may be purchased by employees with a maximum discount of 20% on the average opening market price for Vivendi shares
during the 20 trading days preceding the date of approval of the share capital increase by the Management Board {purchase date} The
difference between the subscription price of the shares and the share prce on the date of grant {corraspanding to the subsenption penod
closing date) represents the benefit granted to the beneficianes Furthermore, Vivend apphes a discount for non-transferability in respect of
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the restrictions on the sale or transfer of the shares during a five-year period, which is deducted from the benefit granted to the employees
The value of the stock purchase plans granted (s estimated and fixed at grant date

For the employee stock purchase and leveraged plans subscribed in 2012 and 2011, the applied assumptions were as follows

2012 2011
Grant date June 25 June 23
Subscriptian price {in euros) 1A 1527
Data at grant date
Share price {in euros) 1357 1839
Discount to face value 24 02% 1697%
Expected dividend yield 7371% 816%
Risk-free interest rate 137% 244%
5-year interest rate 651% 515%
Repo rate 036% 0 36%

Under the employee stock purchase plans, 2,108 thousand shares were subscribed in 2012 (1,841 thousand shares subscribed in 2011
After taking into account a 15 3% discount for non-transferabiiity to the share price on the grant date {10 0% n 2011}, the fair value per
subscribed share was €1 2 on June 25, 2012, compared to €1 3 per subscribed share on July 23, 2011

Under the leveraged plans implemented in 2012 and 2011, virtually all employees and retirees of Vivendi and its French and foreign
subsidiaries were entitled to subscribe for Vivend: shares through a reserved share capital increase, while obtaining a discounted
subscription price, and to ultimately receive the capital gain (calculated pursuant to the terms and conditions of the plan) comresponding to
10 shares for one subscribed share A financial institution mandated by Vivend: hedges this transaction

[n 2012, 9,845 thousand shares were subscribed under the leveraged plans (compared to 7,320 subscribed shares in 2011} After taking into
account a 1 5% discount for non-transferability measured after the leveraged impact {1 0% in 2011}, the fair value per subscribed share on
June 25, 2012 was €3 1, compared to €2 9 per subscribed share on June 23, 2011

Therefore, stock purchase and leveraged plans resulted in a capital increase totaling €127 million on July 19, 2012 (including 155ue
premium, compared to €143 million on July 21, 201

Cash-settled instruments

In 2006 and 2007, Vivend: granted specific instruments to its US resident managers and employees, with economic features similar to those
granted to non-US resident managers and employees, except that these equity instruments are settled 1n cash only The value of the cash-
settled instruments granted is initially estimated as of the grant date and s then re-estimated at each reporting date until the payment date
and the expense 1s adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reporting date All the nghts for these plans were
definitively vested as of Apri 2010

Stock appreciation right plans

When the instruments entitle the beneficiaries thereof to receive the appreciation in the value of Vivend: share, they are known as “stock
appreciation nghts” (SAR) which are the economic equivalent of stock options Under a SAR plan, the beneficianes will receve a cash
payment upon exercise of their nghts based on the Vivend! share price equal to the difference between the Vivend: share price upan
exercise of the SAR and therr strike price as set at the grant date SAR expire at the end of a ten-year period The following table presents
the value of outstanding stock appreciation right plan measured as of December 31, 2012

2007 2006
Grant date Apnl 23 September 22,  Apnl 13
Data at grant date
Strike price (in US dallars) 4134 3458 3458
Number of instruments granted (in thousands) 1,281 24 1250
Data at the valuation date { December 31, 2012)
Expected term {in years} 21 18 16
Share pnce {in US dotlars) 2248 2249 2249
Expected valatility 29% 29% 29%
Risk-free interest rate 007% 006% 005%
Expected dividend yield 587% 587% 587%
Fair value of the granted option as of December 31, 2012(in US doltars) 0.20 040 034
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Restricted stock unit plans

Under an RSU plan, the beneficiaries received, at the end of a four-year period following the grant date, a cash payment based on the
Vivend share price equal to the Vivend: share price at that date, plus the value of dividends paid on Vivend shares in respect of the two
fiscal periods subsequent to the two-year vesting period, and converted into the Jocal currency at the prevailing exchange rate In 2011, the
beneficiaries of the RSU plan granted in 2007 recerved a cash payment for an aggregate consideration of €2 million Consequently, there are
no more RSU plans at Vivend:

2122  Information on outstanding Vivend: plans since January 1, 2011

Equity-settied instruments

Stock optrons Performance shares
Number of stock options Weighted average strke Number of performance
outstanding price of stock options shares outstanding
outstanding
(in thousands) {tn euros) {in thousands)
Balance as of December 31, 2010 48.922 24 1,827
Granted 2,565 199 1,768
Exercised {554) 139 (509)
Cancelfed {1026) 197 (1259)
Balance as of December 31, 2011 49,907 215 2,961
Granted 2650 137 1,918
Exercised {479) (a) 130 (981}
Cancelled 411) 184 138)
Adjusted 1739 04 124
Baiance as of December 31, 2012 53406 (i 205 3884 (c]
Exercisable as of December 31, 2012 mﬁ 214 -
Acquired as of December 31, 2012 42,857 214 231

a  The weighted average share price for Vivendi shares at the dates of exercise tor the options was £16 70 {compared to €19 99 for stock
options exercised in 2011)

b The total intrinsic value of outstanding stock options was €22 million
¢ The weighted-average remaiming peniod before 1ssuing shares under performance shares was 1 2 years

Regarding the grant of 50 bonus shares, the remaining number of bonus shares was 697 thousand as of December 31, 2012 Duning 2012,
32 thousand shares were cancelled

Please refer to Note 18 for the potential impact on the share capital of Vivendi SA of the outstanding stock aptions, the performance shares
and bonus shares

Information on stock optrons as of December 31, 2012 15 as follows

Qutstanding stock options Vested stock options
Werghted average

Range of strike prices Number Weighted average remaining Number Weighted average

strke price strike pnce

contractual hfe

{in thousands) {in euras) {in years) {in thousands) {n eurgs)
linder €18 nm 154 59 3160 133
E18 €20 17019 85 43 14421 183
€20-€22 73%9% 23 23 7395 213
£22-€24 6,296 226 53 6296 26
E24 €26 5714 257 13 5714 57
£26-€28 5871 277 43 5871 7
€28 and more - - - -
53.406 2% [T 42857 ng

Cash-settled instruments

As of December 31, 2012, the remaining outstanding SAR amounted to 5064 thousand (compared to 5,057 thousand as of
December 31, 2011} In 2012, 35 thousand SAR were exercised and 123 thousand were forfeited All rights related to SAR were vested and
therr total intrinstc value amounted to $2 million As of December 31, 2012, the amount accrued for these instruments was €2 million
{compared to €2 milhion as of December 31, 2011}
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21.3 Plans granted by Activision Blizzard
2131 Information on plans granted by Activision Blizzard

As part of the creation of Activision Blizzard on July 10, 2008, Vivend: assumed the outstanding plans of Activision

The accounting methods applied to value these granted plans are described in Note 1310 More precisely, the volatility apptied in valuing
the plans granted by Activision Blizzard consists of the historical volatility of Activision Blizzard shares and the implied volatility based on
traded put and call options The nisk-free interest rate used was a forward rate and the expected dividend yield assumption was based on
the company's historical and expected future amount of dividend payouts

On July 28, 2008, the Board of Directors of Activision Blizzard adopted the Activision Blizzard Inc 2008 Incentive Plan, further amended and
restated by the Board of Directors and the Compensation Committee of this Board with stockholder approval (as so amended and restated,
the "2008 Plan”} The 2008 Plan authonzes the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors to provide Actwision Blizzard's stock-
based compensation in the form of stock options, share appreciation nghts, restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares,
performance units and other performance or value-based awards The stock-based compensation program of Activision Bhizzard for the most
part currently utilizes a combination of options and restricted stock units Under the terms of the 2008 Plan, the exercise price for the
options, must be equal to or greater than the closing price per share of the common stock of Activision Blizzard on the date the award 1s
granted, as reported on NASDAQ

For the main stock option plans, performance share plans and bonus share plans of 2012 and 2011, the applied assumptions were as follows

202 20m
Weighted-average data at grant date (a)
Option strike price (in US dollars) 1095 1254
Share price {in US dollars) 1095 12 54
Expected volatility 41% 4%
Expected dvidend yield 165% 134%
Performance condrtions achievement rate na* na®

na* not apphcable

a Relates to the we:ghted-average by number of instruments for each grant per fiscal year

Stock option plans

Stock options have time-based vesting schedules, generally vesting annually over a period of three to five years and the options expire at
the end of a ten-year period

In 2012, 4,296 thousand stock options were granted, compared to 4,052 thousand stack options n 2011 The weighted-average fair values of
the granted options were $3 47 per option (with a 1 12% nisk-free interest rate) compared to $4 17 in 2011 {with a 1 91% nisk-free nterest
rate}

For stack options granted in 2012, the expected term was 7 05 years, compared to 6 58 years for the options granted in 2011

Restricted stock plans

Restricted stocks either have time-based vesting schedules, generally vesting in their entirety on the third anniversary of the date of grant or
vesting annually over a peniod of three to five years, or vest only If certain performance measures are met Concerming the restricted stocks
granted 1n 2012 and 2011, the shares are vested at the end of a three-year penod

In 2012, 15,498 thousand restricted stocks were granted, compared to 4,918 thousand restncted stocks in 2011 The weighted-average fair
values of the granted restricted stocks were $11 81 per instrument compared to $12 30 2011

In addition, 1n connection with the consummation of the Activision and Vivend: Games business combination on July 9, 2008, the Chief
Executive Officer of Activision Bhzzard received a grant of 2,500,000 market performance-based restricted shares, which vested in 20%
increments on each of the first, second, thid, and fourth annversares of the date of grant, with another 20% vesting on
December 31, 2012, the expiration date of the Chief Executive Officer's employment agreement with Activision Blizzard As of December 31,
7012, the market performance measure was not achieved and all of the market performance-based restnicted shares granted to the Chiet
Executive Officer were forfeited
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2132 Information on outstanding Activision Blizzard plans smce January 1, 2011
Stack options Restricted stocks
Number of stock options Weighted average stke Number of restnicted stocks
outstanding price of stock options outstanding
outstanding
{in thousands}) {in US dallars) {in thousands}
Balance as of December 31, 2010 61,175 10.5 16,572
Granted 4,052 125 4918
Exgreised (9,605) 72 (3 125)
Forferted {1,718) 1M1 (1,226}
Expired 1741 151 -
Balance as of December 31, 2011 53,162 11 17,139
Granted 4,296 1Q 15498
Exercised {4790) (a) 69 {3 554)
Forferted {423} 124 {3,478}
Expired {497) 149 -
Balance &s of Dacember 31, 2012 51,748 [b) 15 255605 ic)
Exercisable as of December 31, 2012 39,473 14 -
Acquired as of December 31, 2012 39,4713 114 -

a  The weighted average share price for the shares of Actvision Blizzard on the date on which the options were exercised was $12 15

(compared to $12 06 1n 2011}

b The total intrinsic value of outstanding stock options was $37 million

¢ Forrestricted stocks, the weighted average remaining perod before 1ssuing shares was 17 years

Please refer to Note 18 for the potential impact on Vivendi's ownership interest in Actwision Blizzard of the outstanding stock options and

the restricted stock plans

information on stock options as of December 31, 2012 15 as follows

QOutstanding stock options Vested stock opticns
Weighted average Werghted average Weighted average
Range of stnke prices Number remaining Number
strike price strike price
contractual fe
{in thousands) {in US dollars) {in years} {in thousands} {in US dolkars)

Under $2 i1 18 02 1M 18
$2-%4 488 28 09 488 28
$4-35 1,607 55 22 1,607 55
$6-38 4373 70 30 4373 70
$8-310 5714 93 45 5,680 93
$10-$12 22602 n3 75 13,150 113
$12-814 8,663 130 66 6,394 131
$14-818 3540 150 5% 3127 150
$16-817 4590 165 54 4483 165
$17 and more &0 184 585 60 184
51,748 1% 61 319473 14

214 UMG long-term incentive plan

Effective Januery 1, 2010, UMG implemented long-term incentive armangements under which certain key executives of UMG are awarded
phantom equity units and phantom stock appreciation nghts whose value 1s intended to reflect the value of UMG These umits are simply
unts of account and do not represent an actual ownership interest in either UMG or Vivendi The equity units are notional grants of equity
that will be payable in cash upon settlernent no later than 2015 or earlier under certain circumstances The stock appreciation rights are
essentially options on those notional shares that provide additional compensation tied to any increase in value of UMG oves the term The
SAR's are also settled in cash only no later than 2015 or garlier under certain circumstances There 1s a guaranteed minimum payout of
$25 million

Payouts undes the plan genesally comeide with terms of employment, but tan be accelerated of reduced undes certan ciicumstances The
values for both payouts are based upon third party valuations While the participants’ nghts vest at the end of a fixed vesting perod,
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compensation expense IS recognized aver the vesting period as services are rendered At each closing date, the expense 1s recognized based
an the portion of the vesting period that has elapsed and the fair value of the units calculated using an appropriate grant date madel in

accordance with IFRS 2

As of December 31, 2012, the amount accrued under these arrangements was €22 mullion (€14 million as of December 31, 2011) There have

been no payments made to date

Note 22 Borrowings and other financial liabilities

(in millions of euros)

Bonds

Bank credit facilities {drawn confirmec

Commercial paper 1ssued
Bank overdrafts

Accrued interest to be paid
Other

Nominal value of borrowings
Cumulative effect of amortized cost and reevaluation due 1o

hedge accounting

Commitments to purchase nan-controlling interests

Dernwative financial instruments

Borrowings and other financial hiabilities

221 Bonds

{in mulhions of euros}

€700 mulhon {December 2012}
$550 mullion {Apni 2012}
$650 mallion {Apni 2012)

$800 million {Apnl 2012}

€1 250 milhon {January 2012)
€500 million {November 2011}
€500 mullion (Novernber 2011)
€1 000 rulton (July 2011}

€1 050 million {July 2011}
€750 million (March 2010)
€700 millson {December 2009}
€500 mitlion {December 2009)
£300 mulhan - SFR [July 2009}
£1,120 multton (January 2009)
$700 muhion {April 2008)
€700 mullion {October 2006}
€1 000 rmullion - SFR (Juty 2005)
$700 mullion (Apnil 2008)
€600 millton {February 2005}

Nominal value of bonds

Note December 31 2012 December 31 2011
Total long-term  Short term Total Long-term Short-term
221 10,888 10188 700 9276 1676 1,600
222 2423 2,326 97 4917 4558 359
222 3,255 3,255 529 - 529
192 i92 163 163
205 205 200 - 200
751 120 631 621 173 448
17,14 12634 5,080 15,706 12 407 3,299
) 4 {5) (12) 8t 4
8 8 - " 10 1
23 36 21 15 5 5
17,151 12,667 5,090 15710 12,408 3.301
Interest rate {%) December Matuning dunng the following periods December
nominal  effective Maturity 31, After 3
2012 2013 204 2015 2016 w7 2017 2011
2500%  265% Jan-20 700 - - - 700
2400%  250% Apr-15 420 {al - 420 - - -
3450%  356% Jan-18 M1 - - 491
4750% 491% Apr-22 604 - 604
4125% 431% Jul-17 1,250 - - 1250 - -
3187% 404% Nov-15 500 500 - - 500
4875%%  500% Nov-18 500 - - - 500 500
3500% 368% Jul-15 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000
4750%  467% Jul-21 1,050 b} - 1,050 750
4000% 415% Mar-17 750 - - 750 750
4879%  495% Dec 19 700 - - 700 700
4250%  439% Dec-16 500 - 500 - - 500
5000%  505% Jul-14 300 300 - - - 300
7750%  769% Jan-14 894 . 894 - 894
6625%  685% Apr-18 ° 529 - - 529 541
4500% 547% Oct-13 700 700 700
3375% 414% Jul 12 - - 1,000
5750%  606% Apr-13 - {c) - - 54
3879%  3U% Feb-12 - 600
10.888 700 1,194 1920 500 2000 4574 9,276

a A USD/EUR foreign currency hedge (cross-currency swap) was set up to hedge this tranche denominated in US dollar and issued in
April 2012 wath a 1 3082 EUR/USD rate, or a €420 mullion counter value at matunty As of December 31, 2012, the counter value of this
bond converted at the closing rate amounted to €415 million

b InApnl 2012, this bond was increased by €300 million

¢ InApnl/May 2012, this bond was early redeemed through a tender offer

The bonds denominated 1n euro are histed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

The bonds denominated n US dollar were converted into euro based on the closing rate, 1 € . 1 3244 EUR/USD as of December 31, 2012 {compared

to 129290 EUR/USD as of December 31, 2011)
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Bonds 1ssued by the group contain customary provisions related to events of default, negative pledge and, nghts of payment (pan-passu ranking} In

addimon, bonds sssued by Vivendi SA contain an early redemption clause in case of a change in control trigger if, as a result of any such event, the
long-term rating of Vivendi SA 1s downgraded below investment grade status {Baa3/BBB-)

222 Bank credit facilities

Gecember Hatunng dunng the followang perods UOgcembar
Maxmum 3 After 3

{in mllion of euras) Matunty amount 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 2041
€1 5 ithon revohang facility (May 2012) May 17 1500 {a)
€1 1 bullion revolving faciity {Jaruary 2012} Jan-17 1100 (b - -
€40 million revolving facility January 2012) Jan 15 40 -
€5 0 billion revobving facility (May 2011)

wanche B €1 5billion May 14 1500 725 25 - 725

tranche C €2 0 bullion May 16 2000 819 - 819 - - 410
€1 0 billion revolving facility {September 2010) Sep-15 1000 350 - kil -
£1 Z alhon revohang facility  SFR {June 2010} Jun 15 1,200 - - -
£2 billion revobving facility (February 2008) - {a) - B30
€2 billion revolving facility (August 2006) - (a) - - 2000
Securrizatien program - SFR (March 2011) ic} - - 477
GVT BNDES 570 406 30 45 76 76 57 122 293
Maroe Telecom - MAD 3 bellion loan Jul 14 94 i) 54 a0 - 149
Canal+Group VSTV Feb-14 33 29 13 16 - - 22
Drawn confirmed bank credit facalities 2473 9 8% 2% 835 57 122 LL
Undrawn confirmed bank credit f2ciliies 6616 B 784 1918 1209 2628 il 7164
Tatal of group’s bank credit facilthes 9,039 103 1,610 234 2104 2,685 193 12081
Commercral paper issued {d) 3255 3255 529

a InMay 2012, Vivend: set up a €1 5 bullion syndicated bank credit facility matuning in May 2017, which permitted the early refinancing of
two credit facilities for a total amount of €3 tillion {the €2 bilhion credit facility of August 2006 matuning in August 2013 for €1 7 brllion
and m August 2012 for €0 3 billion as well as the €1 billion credit facility of February 2008, maturing in February 2013}

b In January 2012, Vivendi set up a €1 1 billion bank credit facility with a 5-year matunty, which permitted the early refinancing of the
€1 5 billion credit facility inrtially matuning 1n December 2012 and SFR's €0 5 billion syndicated loan initially maturing in March 2012

¢ SFR's securitization program was terminated in June 2012

d  The commercial paper 1s backed to confumed bank credit facilities It 1s recorded as short-term borrowing on the Consolidated
Staternent of Financial Position Moreover, in June 2012, Vivendi increased the maximum amount authorized by the Bangue de France
regarding Vivendh SA’s commercial paper program from €3 biliron to €4 titlion

Vivend: SA and SFR bank credit facilities, when drawn, bear interest at floating rates

Moreover, in connection with its appeal of the verd:ct rendered in the Liberty Media Corporation hitigation, Vivend: will shortly deliver a
letter of credit 1ssued by Bank of Amenca for the benefit of Liberty Media Corporation, for €975 milhen {damages and interest, as well as
legal costs) This off-halance sheet financial commitrent wall have no impact on Vivendi's net debt (please refer to Note 23 2 3}

Vivend SA’s syndicated bank credit facilities (€7 1 billron as of December 31, 2012) contain customary provisions related to events of default
and covenants relating to negative pledge, divestiture and merger transactions In addition, at the end of each half year, Vivendi SA 15
required to comply with a financial covenant of Proportronate Financial Net Debt' to Proportionate EBITDA? over a twelve-month rolling
peiied not exceeding 3 for the duration of the loans Non-comphance with this covenant could result in the early redemption of the facilities
if they were drawn, or theur cancellation As of December 31, 2012, Vivend: SA was in compliance with these financial covenants

SFR's bank credit facility {€1 2 billion as of December 31, 2012} contains customary default, negative pledge. and merger and divestiture
covenants In addition, the facility 1s subject to a change in SFR's control provision Moreover, at the end of each half year, SFR must comply
with the following two financial covenants () a ratio of Financial Net Debt to consolidated EBITDA over a twelve-month rolling penod not
exceeding 3 5, and {11) a ratio of consolidated earnings from operations (consolidated EFO) to consofidated net financing costs {interest) equal
to or greater than 3 Non-comphiance with these financial covenants tould result m the early redemption of the loan As of
December 31, 2012, SFR was 0 compliance with these financial covenants

! Defined as the difference between Vivends s Financral Net Debt and the share of Financral Net Debt attnbutable to non-controfing iterests of Actrvision Blizzard and Maroe
Teiacom group

? Defingd as the difference between Vivend: s modified EBITDA and modified EBITDA attributable to nan-controfiing interests of Actmsion Blrzard and Maroc Telecom group
plus dividends received from entitigs that are not consolidated
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The renewal of Vivend: SA's and SFR's confirmed bank credit facilities when they are drawn 1s contingent upon the issuer reiterating certain
representations regarding its ability to comply with its financial obligations with respect fo loan contracts

The credit facilities granted to GVT by the BNDES {approximately BRL 1 5 tullion as of December 31, 2012) contain a change n control trigger
and are subject to certain financial covenants pursuant to which GVT is required to comply at the end of each half year with at least three of
the following financial covenants {1} a ratio of equity to total asset equal to or higher than 0 40 {0 35 for the credit faciities granted in
Navember 2011), (1) a ratio of Financial Net Debt to EBITDA not exceeding 2 50, (i} a ratio of current financial labilities to EBITDA not
exceeding 0 45, and {iv) a ratio of EBITDA to net financial expenses of at least 4 00 (350 for the credit facilitees granted in November 2011)
As of December 31, 2012, GVT was in compliance with 1ts covenants

223 Breakdown of the nominal value of borrowings by maturity, nature of the interest rate, and

currency
Breakdown by maturity
{tn mithons of euros) December 31 2012 December 31, 2011
Matunity
<1 year(a) 5,080 29% 3299 21%
Between 1 and 2 years 2,057 12% 407 26%
Between 2 and 3 years 2,380 13% 2037 13%
Between 3 and 4 years 1 406 8% 1,603 10%
Between 4 and b years 2,073 7% 1391 9%
> 5 years 4718 6% 3353 21%
Nominal vatue of berrowings 17,14 100% 15,706 100%

a  Shortterm borrowings (with a matunty of less than one year) included i paricular the commercial paper for €3.255 miflion as of
December 31, 2012 (compared to €529 million as of December 31, 2011), with a 30-day weighted-average remaining perod at year-end 2012
In addition, they included the €700 million bond issued n October 2006 and matuning in October 2013

|
|
As of December 31, 2012, the average “economic” term of the group’s financial debt, pursuant to which all undrawn amounts on ava:lable medium-
term credit lines may be used to redeem group borrowings with the shortest term was of 44 years (compared to 4 0 years at year-end 2011)

Breakdown by nature of interest rate

{in millions of eurgs) Note December 31 2012 December 31 2011
Fixed interest rate 11 666 66% 9933 64%
Floating interest rate 6048 34% 5713 36%

Nominal value of borrowings before hedging 17,114 100% 15,706 100%

Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 450 1000

Pay-floating interest rate swaps {1 450) {1 750)

Nat position at fixed interest rate 232 {1,000) {750}

Fixed interest rate 10 666 60% 9243 59%
Floating interest rate 7048 40% 6,463 41%
Nomnal value of borrowings after hedging 17,14 100% 15,706 100%

Please refer to Note 23 2 1 for a description of the group’s interest rate nsk management instruments

Breakdown by currency

{in mithons of euros} Note December31 2012 December 31 2011
Euro- EUR 14 420 81% 13,751 88%
US dollar - USD 2,046 12% 1084 7%
Qther {of which MAT BRL PLN and FCFA) 1248 7% 8N 5%
Nominal value of borrowings hefore hedging 17,14 100% 15,706 160% !
— —_—— I
Cumency swaps USD 1,303 563
Other currency swaps {813} tal {78
Net total of hedging instruments 232 490 435
Eurp - EUR 14910 84% 14 236 91%
US doltar - USD 743 4% 521 3%
Osher (of which MAD BRL PLN and FCFA} 2061 12% 949 6%
Nominal value of borrowsngs after hedging 1,14 100% 15,706 100%
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a  Notably icfuded a forward GBP/EUR cantract for a nominal amount of £430 miflion, put into place in order to cover the proceeds from the

farthcoming sale of certain assets of EMI Recorded Music Please refer to Note 232 2 for a descnption of the group’s foreign currency nsk
management

224 Credit ratings

As of February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the year ended December
31, 2012, the credit ratings of Vivendi were as follows

Rating agency Rat:ng date Type of debt Ratings Qutlock
Standard & Poor's July 27, 2005{a) Long-term corporate debt BEB
Short-term corporate debt A2 Negative (a}
Senior unsecured debt BEB
Moady's September 13, 2005 Long-term senior unsecured debt BaaZ Stable
Fitch Ratings December 10, 2004 Long-term senior unsecured debt BB8 Stable

a  On October 26, 2012, Standard & Poor's removed the credit watch negative that 1t had placed in Vivendr's debt on July 4, 2012 and confirmed
Vivendi's rating, with a negative outlook, of the BBB long-term debt and the A-2 short-term debt rating

Note 23  Financial instruments and management of financial risks
23.1 Fair value of financial instruments

Financial mstruments classified as lrabilities under Vivend's Statement of Financial Position include bonds and bank credit facilities, other
financial hiatnhities (including commitments to purchase non-controlling interests), as well as trade accounts payable and other non-current
hatnlities As assets under Vivend's Statement of Financial Posttion, they include financial assets measured at faw value and at historical
cost, trade accounts receivable and other, as well as cash and cash equivalents In addition, financial instruments include derivative
nstruments {assets or habilities) and assets available for sale

Accounting category and fair value of financial mstruments

December 31, 2012 December 31 2011
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair valug

{in milliens of euros) Note value value
Assets

Cash managemeant financial assets 301 301 266 266

Available-for-sale secuntigs 187 197 125 125

Derivative financial mstruments 137 137 o1 o1

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 5 28 28

Financia! assets at amortized cost 228 278 352 352
financial assets 15 878 878 872 872
Trade accounts recevable and other at amortized cost 16 6,587 6,587 6730 6730
Cash and cash egunalents 17 3894 3894 3304 3304
Liabilities

Borrowngs, at amortized cost 17.713 18637 15694 16079

Denvative finangial mstruments 36 36 5 5

Commutments to purchase non-controling interests, at fair value

through profit or loss 8 8 i1 1
Bomowings and other financial habilities 22 17,757 18 681 15,710 16 095
Other non-current habiities at amoriized cost 1% 1002 1,002 864 Bo4
Trade accounts payable and other at amortized cost 16 14,196 14 196 13,987 13987

The carrying value of trade accounts receivable and other, cash and cash equivalents, and trade accounts payable is a reasonable
approximation of fair value, due to the short matunty of these nstruments
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Valuation method for financial instruments at faw value

The following tables present the fair value method of financial instruments according to the three following levels
- Level 1 fair value measurement based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or lrabilities,
- Level 2 fair value measurement based on observable market data {other than quoted prices included within Level 1), and
- {evel 3 fair value measurement based on valuation techniques that use nputs for the asset or ability that ave not based on
observable market data

As a reminder, the other financial Instruments at amortized cost are not included in the following tables
December 31,2012

{in millions of euros) Note Total Level 1 tevel 2 Level 3
Assets

Cash management financial assets 19 m 301 - -
Available-for-sale secunties 15 197 - 154 43
Dervative financial mstruments 232 137 - 137

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 9 - 6
Cash and cash equivalents 17 3,894 3894 - -

Liahilities
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 8 - - 8
Dertvative financial instruments 2312 36 - 36

December 31, 2011

{in millions of euros} Note Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets

Cash management financial assets 15 266 266 - -
Avallable-for-sale securrties 15 125 1 7 47
Derivative financial instruments 232 10 - 10

Other financtal assets at fair value through profit or loss 28 15 - 13
Cash and cash equivalents 17 3,304 3.304 - -
Liabilities

Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests n - 2 9
Derwvative financial instruments 232 5 - 5 -

In 2012 and 2011, there was no transfer of financial instruments measured at fair value between level 1 and level 2 In addition, as of
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, financial nstruments measured at level 3 fair value did not inciude any significant amount

232 Management of financial risks and derivative financial instruments

As part of sts business, Vivendi is exposed to several types of financial risks market nsk, credit (or counterparty) risk, as well as liquidity nisk
Market risks are defined as the nisks of fluctuation in future cash flows of financial mstruments (receivables and payables, as described i
Note 23 1 above) that depend on the evolution of financial markets For Vivendi, market risks may therefore primanly impact interest rates
and forergn currency exchange positions, in the absence of significant investments in the markets for stocks and bonds Vivend’s Financing
and Treasury Department centrally manages significant market risks, as well as ts liquidity risk within the group, reporting directly to
Vivendi's chief financiat officer, 3 member of the Management Board The Depariment has the necessary expertise, resources (notably
technical resources), and information systems for this purpose However, the cash and exposure to financial risks of Maroc Telecom group
and Activision Bhzzard are managed independently The Finance Committee monitors the hiquidity positions In all business units and the
exposure to interest rate nsk and foreign currency exchange rate risk on a bi-monthly basis Short- and long-term fmancing activities are
mainly performed at the group’s headquarters and are subject to the prior agreement of the Management and Supervisory Board, in
accordance with the Internal Regulations However, in terms of optimizing financing operations within the group's debt management
framewark within the limits already approved by the Supervisory Board, a simple notfication 1s required

Vivend: uses various derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce 1ts exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates All instruments are either listed on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties Al
derivative financial instruments are used for hedging purposes and speculative hedging 1s forbidden
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Derivative financial instrument values on the Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

{in millions of euros) Note  Assets Liabilities Assets Liabthties
Interest rate nsk management 2321 104 {10} -

Pay-fised intemest rate swaps - {10} - -

Pay-floating interest rate swaps 104 - 80 -
Foreign currency risk management 2322 13 {26} L] {5)
Other 2314 2 - - -
Dervative financiel instruments 137 {36) 101 {5}
Deduction of current denvative financial mstruments {12} 5 {39) 5
Non-current derivative financial instruments 125 21 62 -

2321  Interest rate risk management

interest rate nisk management instruments are used by Vivendi to reduce net exposure to interest rate fluctuations, to adjust the respective
proportion of fixed or floating Interest rates n the total debt and t0 optimize average net financing costs In addition, Vivendi's internal
procedures prohrbit all speculative transactions

Average gross borrowings and average cost of borrowings

In 2012, average gross borrowings amounted to €17 1 tullron {compared to €13 7 billion 1n 2011}, of which €10 2 billion was at fixed-rates
and €6 9 billion at floating rates {compared to €7 2 and €6 5 billion 1n 2011, respectively) After management, the average cost of borrowings
was 3 50%, with a fixed rate ratio of 60% {compared to 3 87%, with a fixed-rate ratro of 53% 1n 2011}

Interest rate hedges

Interest rate nisk management instruments used by Vivendi include pay-floating and pay-fixed interest rate swaps Pay-floating swaps
effectively convert fixed rate borrowings to LIBOR and EURIBOR indexed ones Pay-fixed interest rate swaps convert floating rate borrowings
nto fixed rate borrowings These instruments enable the group to manage and reduce volatility i future cash flows required for interest
payments on borrowings

In 2012, Vivend: SA early terminated swaps (national amaount of €300 million] belonging to the pay-floating interest rate swap portfolio
{aggregate notional amount of €750 million), maturing i 2017, thus generating an unreabzed gan of €19 million Simultaneously, the
balance of this portfolio (notional amount of €450 mdlon) was reclassified as an economic hedge and Vivend: set up a pay-fixed interest
rate swaps for a notional amount of €450 million, genersting an unrealized gain of €37 million These unrealized gains were recorded in
charges and income, drrectly recognized in equity, and recycled in financial income over the remaining term of the borrowing hedged

The tables below show the notional amounts of interest rate nsk management instruments used by Vivendi
December 31 2012

Notonal amounts Fair value
After

lm milons of EUI’US] Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 m7 Assets Liabilities
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 450 450 - 10
Pay floating interest rate swaps {1,450} {1 000} {450} 104 -
Net position at fixed interest rate 1,000 1,000 - fa 104 {10
Breakdown unting ¢a of rate hedaing instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - - -

Fau Valua Hedge {10004 {1,000} 95 -

Economic Hedging (b} - - {a) 49 {10
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December 31, 2011

Notronal amounts Fair value
After

{in mullions of euros) Total 2012 03 2014 2015 2016 2016 Assets Lialities
Pay-fixed interest rate swaps 1000 1000 -
Pay-floating interest rate swaps {1,750} {1,000) {750} 60 -
Net position at fixed interest rate (750) 1,000 {1,000} {750} 60 -
Breakdown by accounting cateqory of rate hedging instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - - .

Fair Value Hedge {1,750} {1,000} {750} {c} 60 -

Economic Hedging (b} 1,000 1,000 -

a Includes pay-floating interest rate swaps for a notional amount of €450 million as well as pay-fixed swaps for a notional amount of
€450 million, matunng n 2017, both of which qualified as economic hedges

b The economic hedging instruments relate to dernvative financial instruments which are not ehgible for hedge accounting pursuant to
IAS 39

C In 2012, Vivendi SA early redeemed €300 million swaps from the €750 million pay-floating interest rate swap portfolio maturing n
2017

Outstanding and average income from investments

In 2012, average cash and cash equivalents amounted to €3 4 billion (cempared to €4 1tullion in 2011), bearing interest at floating rates The
average interest Income rate amounted to 0 91% in 2012 (compared to 1 16% In 2011) They mainly included Activision Blizzard's cash and
cash equivalents, invested in money market funds with initial matunity dates not exceeding 90 days

Sensitivity to changes n interest rates

As of December 31, 2012, gwven the relative weighting of the group’s fixed-rate and floating-rate positions, an (ncrease of 100 basis points
In short-term interest rates (or a decrease of 100 basis pomts) would have resulted in a €29 million increase n interest expense lor a
decrease of €29 milhon), unchanged compared to 2011

232.2 Foreign currency rnisk management

Excluding Maroc Telecom group and Actwision Blizzard, the group’s foreign currency risk management Is centralized by Vivendi SA's
Financing Department and prmanly seeks to hedge budget exposures (80%} resulting from monetary flows generated by actwmibes
performed 1n currencies other than the euro as well as from external firm commitments {100%), pnmarily relating to the acquisition of
editonial content (including sports, audiovisual and film rights) and certain capital expenditures (set-top boxes for example), reahzed
currencies other than the euro Most of the hedging instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that have a maturity of less
than one year Considering the foreign currency hedge put into place, an unfavorable and uniform euro change of 1% against all foreign
currencies in position as of December 31, 2012, would have 8 non-significant cumulative impact on net eamings {below €1 million as of
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011} in additton, the group may also hedge foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-
currency denominated financial assets and liabilities Nevertheless, due to their non-significant nature, net exposures to subsidianes net
working capital (internal flows of royalties as well as external purchases) are generally not hedged The relevant nisks are realized at the end
of each month by translating the sum into the functional currency of the relevant operating entities

The pnincipal currency hedged by the group 1s the US dollar In particular, Vivendi converted in euros the $550 mellion bond 1ssued in April
2012, by setting up a USD-EUR foreign currency hedge {cross-currency swap) with a 13082 EUR/USD rate, or a £420 million counter value
matunng in Aprl 2015

in addition, as part of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music for £1,130 million, which was completed on September 28, 2012 (please refer
to Note 2 1}

» Vivend had partally hedged the acquisition price through forward purchase contracts denominated i GBP for a notional amount
of £600 mullion, with a 0 8144 EUR/GBP rate From an accounting perspective, these GBP purchases were considered as cash flow
hedges On October 1, 2012, this hedge was unwound for €737 million at the completion in the acquisition

e  Simultaneously Vivend: partially hedged the expected ncome from the sale of certain EMI Recorded Music assets, n accordance
with commitments made by Vivend) to the European Commission, through forward sale contracts denominated in GBP for a
notional amount of £430 million, with an average rate of 0 7965 EUR/GBP From an accounting perspective, these GBP sales were
considered as net investment hedges and will be unwound once the effective sale of Parlophone to Warner Music group {please
refer to Note 2 1)
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Finally, the intercompany loan granted by Vivend to GVT under market terms for a total amount of €1,001 mullion {drawn for €811 million as
of December 31, 2012) 1s not subject to any foreign currency hedging n GVT's Statement of Financial Position Incurred foreign exchange
Yosses amounted to €76 million 1n 2012 and £24 million tn 2011 This intescompany loan 1s mainly aimed at financing the significant increase
In GVT's capita! expenditures program related to the geographic expansion of its telecommuntcation network

As a reminder, from December 2009 to January 2011, following the agreement to sell the 20% interest in NBC Universal to GE for a total
amount of $5,800 milion, Vivend gradually hedged 1ts investment in NBC Umiversal using currency forward sales contracts denominated in
US dolier, at an average exchange rate of 133 EUR/USD From an accounting perspective, these forward contracts were quahfied as net
investment hedges i NBC Universal

The following tables present the notional amount of foreign currency risk management instruments used by the group, the positive amounts
relate to currencies o be received, the negative amounts relate to currencies to be delivered

December 31 2012

Notional amounts Fair value
{in milhons of ewos) Tatal Usnh PLN GBP Other Asgsets Liabaligies
Sales against the euro 1931} {59) (162) {586) (124) 12 (3)
Purchases against the eura 1421 1257 37 15 112 1 {20}
QOther - 105 {97} (8 - - (3}
490 1.303 {222} {529) {12} 13 (26)
Bregkdown ccounting cats, f foreign currency hedging instrumen
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales aganst the euro {87) (6) {58} 8 {15} 1 n
Purchases against the euro 445 446 (a} - - - 1 Ny
Qther - g2 {92) - - - (3]
359 532 {180} (8 {15) 2 (15)
Fair Value Hedge
Sales against the euro {154} {53} {98} {3 - 1 (2)
Purchases against the eure 458 441 - 15 - - 16}
Other - 20 {12} (8) - - -
302 408 {110} 4 - 1 {8
Net Investment Hedge
Sales against the euro {575) - - (575} () - 10 -
Purchases against the euro - - - - - -
QOther - - - - -
{575) - - {575) - i0
Economic Hedging (¢}
Sales against the euro (115} - 13 - {109) - -
Purchases against the euro 519 370 37 - 112 (3}
Other - _n 7 - - .
a04 363 38 - 3 3
December 31 2011
Notional amounts Fair valug
{in mtllions of euros) Total usD PLN GBP Qther Assets  Liabilties
Sales agawnst the euro (338} {531 na {80y {831 5 ]
Purchases against the euro 823 606 4D 7 170 36 -
Other - 10 - {10} - _ _
485 563 72} &) 77 [0 E]
Breakdown by accounting cateqory of foreign currency hedging instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the euro 197} - {55} (9) {23) - {2)
Purchases agamst the ewo 70 69 - 1 - 5 -
Other - - - - - . :
zn §9 {65} {8 {23) 8 {2)
Fair Value Hedge
Sates against the euro (54 6] {47 i . 5 -
Purchases against the eurn 476 476 - - - el -
Other - 21 {11} {10} - - -
22 a1 {58} {11} - R’ -
Economic Hedging (c)
Sales agamnst the euro {187 an - (701 {70} - (3)
Purchases agamst the euro 277 61 40 6 170 3 -
Other - 1) 1 - - - -
9% 3 51 {64} 100 3 (3)
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a Notably inctudes the hedge associated with the $550 million bond 1ssued in Apnl 2012, with a 1 3082 EUR/USD rate, or a counter-
value of €420 million at maturity 1n April 2015

b Mainly includes the hedge associated with the forthcoming sale of EMI Recarded Music assets as of December 31, 2012 {please refer

to Note 2 1}, with an average rate of 0 7965 EUR/GBP, for a notional amount of £430 million, or a counter value at maturity of
€533 million

c The economic hedging instruments relate to dervative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to
[AS 39

23.2.3 Liquidity risk management

Contractual maturity of the group’s Financial Net Debt future cash flows

The table below presents the carrying value and the future undiscounted cash flows, as defined (n the contractual matunty schedules, of
assets and liabilities that constitute Vivendi’s Financial Net Debt

December 31 2012

Carrying Contractual matunty of cash outflows / hinflows)

(in milhons af euros) value Total 2013 N4 2015 016 2017 After 20017
Nommal value of borrowings (a) 17714 174 5080 2.057 2,380 1406 2,073 4718
Cumulative effact of amortized cost and regvaluation due to
heage accounting f1) -

Interest to be paid {b) - 2586 534 502 402 331 307 515
Borrowings 1713 20300 5614 2,559 2,182 1737 7375 5233
Commutments to purchase non-contralling interests B 8 4 4
Dervative financial instruments 36 30 18 3 3 3 3
Borrowings and other financial lisbilities 11,157 20,338 5,632 2562 2,785 1,140 2382 5237
Cash management financial assets {301} (301} (301)

Denvative financial instruments 1137 {156} {40) 29) {28} (28} {11} {20}

Cash deposits backing borrowings (6) {6) {61

Cash and cash equivalents [c} (3 894) 13 894) (3 894)

Financial Net Debt 13419 15,981 1391 2533 2,757 1,12 2m 5211

Undrawn confirmed bank eredit facilities (d) 6,616 [ 784 1918 1209 2528 n

December 31 2011
Carrying Contractual matunity of cash outflows / {inflows)

{in millions of euras} value Total 202 2013 2014 2015 2016 After 2016
Nomimal value of borrowings fa) 15706 15708 3299 4017 2037 1603 1391 3359
Cumulative effect of amortized cost and reevaluation due to
hedga accounting (12} -

Interast to be pard {b) - 2,230 54 436 360 266 196 428
Borrowings 15698 17,936 1883 4453 2,397 1,869 1587 3767
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 1 " 1 4 b
Denvative financial Instruments 5 5 5
Borrowmngs and other financial habilihes 15.10 17,952 3849 4,453 2397 1,869 1,591 3793
Cash management financial assets {266) (266) (266)

Dervative financial instruments {101} {142} {54) {16} {16} {15) {16 {25}

Cash deposits backing borrowings (12} na (12)

Cash and cash equivalents (c} {3,304) {3 304) {3304)

Financial Net Debt 12021 14,228 3 4437 2,381 1,854 15715 3,768

Undrawn confirtned bank credit facilities 1164 204 110 s 2261 1730 20

a Future contractual undiscounted cash flows related to the nominal value of currency borrowings are estimated based on the applicable
exchange rate as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively

b Interest to be paid on floating rate borrowings 1s estimated based on floating rates as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively

¢ Cash and cash equivalents include cash held outside the United States by the Activision Blizzard's non-American subsidiaries for
£1,936 miltion (compared to €1,266 million as of December 31, 2011} If these funds are needed in the future to finance American
transactions, Activision Blizzard would accrue and pay the required US taxes to repatriate these funds However, Activision Bhzzard's
intent 1s to permanently reinvest these funds outside of the United States and their current business plans do not demonstrate a need
1o repatriate them to fund their actvities in the United States
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In connection with its appeal of the verdict rendered i the Liberty Media Corporation htigation, Vivend will shortly deliver a letier of
credit 1ssued by Bank of Amenca for the benefit of Liberty Media Corporation, for €975 million (damages and interest, as well as legal
costs) This off-balance sheet financial commitment will have no impact on Vivendi's net debt {please refer below)

Group financing policy

Vivendi's financing policy consists of incurring long-term debt, mamly in bond and banking markets, at a variable or fixed rate, th euros or in
US dollars, depending on general corporate needs and market conditions

Non-turrent financial debts are pnmanly raised by Vivench SA, which centralizes the group’s financing management, except for Actvision
Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group In this context, in 2012, Vivendi pursued its policy of disintermediation, having recourse n
priority to the bond market Vivend: also sought to diversify its investor base by tssuing on the Amerncan bond market and pursued
s policy of maintaining the “economic” average term of the group's debt above 4 years In addition, Vivend: has a Euro Medium
Term Notes program on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, which 1s renewed each year, in order to take advantage of every euro
bond market opportunity Vivendr's bank counterparties must meet certain cntena of financial soundness, refiected in their credit rating
with Standard & Poor's and Moody's Moreover, to comply with the rating agencies’ prudential regulations regarding hquidity
management, Vivendr arranges to the extent possible, the retinancing of all expiring bank credit facthibes or bonds one year in
advance As a result, in 2012, Vivend: made three bond 1ssuances in euro for a total amount of £2,250 million {January, Apnl and
December 2012}, and one 1ssuance n US dollars for $2,000 million {Apnl 2012)

Contractual agreements for credit facihties granted to Vivend SA do not include provisions that tie the condruons of the loan to its
financial ratings from rating agencies They contain customary provisions related to events of default and at the end of each half-
year, Vivendi SA 15 notably required to comply with a financial covenant {please refer to Note 22 2) The credit facilities granted to
group companies other than Vivend: SA are intended to finance either the general needs of the borrawing subsidiary or specific projects

In 2012, investments, working capital, debt service {including the redemption of borrowings), and the payment of income taxes and
the dwidend distribution, were financed by cash flow from operations, net, asset disposals, and borrowing or share issuances
{Derect 8 and Direct Star} For the foreseeable future and based on the current financial conditions on the financial market, subject
to potential transactions which may be implemented in connection with the group’s change in scope, Vivendi intends to maintain
this financing policy for its investments and operations

As of December 31, 2012

The group’s bond debt amounted to £10,888 million {compared to €9,276 million as of December 31, 2011} In 2012, Vivend: 1ssued
bonds :n euros and in US dollars for a total amount of €3,758 million and redeemed bonds for a total amount of €2,048 million {of
which $700 mullion {or £448 million) were early redeemed 1n Aprii/May 2012} The group’s bond debt represented 61% of the
borrowngs (n the Statement of Financial Position (compared to 59% as of December 31, 2011}

The total amount of the group’s confirmed credit facihties amounted te €9,039 mihon (compared to €12,083 million as of
December 31, 2011) The group’s aggregate amount of credit facilities neither drawn nor backed by commercial paper amounted to
£3,361 milhon {compared to €6,635 million as of December 31, 2011) The decrease in the amount of credit facilities nerther drawn
nor backed by commercial paper was notably due to the disintermediation policy, the increase in the outstanding amount of
commercial paper, and the financing of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by drawing on credit facilities

Vivendi SA’s and SFR’s total confirmed credit facilities amounted to £8,340 million as of December 31, 2012 (including €2 bilhon in
avallable swinglnes), compared to €11,242 million as of December 31, 2011 Ail these credit facilities have a matunity greater than
one year These credit facilities were drawn for €1,894 milion as of December 31, 2012 Considenng the £€3,255 million
commercial paper 1ssued at that date and backed to bank credit facihities, these facilities were available up to a maximum amount
of €3,191 mrllion

In connection wath rts appea! of the verdict rendered m the Liberty Media Corporation htigation, Vivend: will shortly delver a letter
of credit tssued by Bank of Amenca for the benefit of Liberty Media Corporation, for €975 miflion {damages and interest, as well as
legal costs) The latter was guaranteed by a syndicate of fifteen international banks with which Vivend: has signed a
fleimbursement Agreement which mncludes an undertaking by Vivend: to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out under the
letter of credit The Reimbursement Agreement notably contains events of default and acceleration clauses similar to those
contained i Vivendr's credit faciliies In certain circumstances, these provisions could cause Vivend: to have to post cash
collateral for the benefit of the banks In the same way, if one of the 15 banks defaults i respect of its obligatians and was not
able to issue a guarantee sufficient enough to provide comfort to Bank of America, Vivendi could be caused to substitute such
bank with another bank or, as a fast resort, be obhgated to post cash collateral in the amount of such bank’s participation (n the
letter of credit

The short-term borrowings mainly included 1ssued commercial paper The “economic” average term of the group's debt was
4 4 years (compared to 4 0 years as of December 31, 2011}
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o Finally, there is no restriction on the use of the financtal resources which the group’s companies benefit including Vivendi SA) that
may matenally affect, directly or indirectly, the group’s activities

On October 26, 2012, Standard & Poor’s removed the credit watch negative that it had placed on Vivend's debt on July 4, 2012 and
confirmed the rating, with a negative outlook, of the BBB long-term debt and the A-2 short-term debt rating, which is used as a reference for
the 1ssuance program of commercial paper Vivend: reaffirmed its commitment to maimtaiving such credit rating

As of February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivendi's Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012, Vivendr SA and SFR had available confirmed credit faciliies amounting to €8,340 mullion, of which €500 milion were
drawn Considering the amount of commercial paper 1ssued at that date, and backed on bank credit facilities for £3,991 mullion, these
facilities were available for an aggregate amount of £€3,849 milon Moreover, the sale of Parlophone, announced on February 7, 2013, for
£487 million {please refer to Note 2 1), should be finalized during the second half of 2013

Group financing organization

Excluding primanly Activision Bhzzard and Marac Telecom, Vivendi SA centralizes dally cash surpluses {cash poaling) of ali controlled
entities (a) that are not subject to local regulations restricting the transfer of financial assets or (b) that are not subject to other contractual
agreements In particular, the increase to a 100% ownership interest n SFR on June 16, 2011, has enabled Vivendi SA to centralize all of
SFR's cash surpluses on a daily basis from July 1, 2011 through a cash pooling account

Alternatively, in particular at Activision Bhizzard and Maroc Telecom, cash surpluses are not pooled by Vivendi SA but rather, as the case
may be, distributed as dividends when they are not used to finance investments of the relevant subsidianes, as common stack repurchases
or to redeem borrowings used to finance their investments Regarding Activision Biizzard, up until July 9, 2013, the distnibution of any
dividend by Activision Blizzard requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the independent directors if Activision Blizzard's Financial Net
Debt, after giving effect to such dividend, exceeds $400 million

Taking into account the foregoing, Vivend: considers that the cash flows generated by its operating activities, Its cash and cash equivalents,
as well as the amounts available through its current bank credit faciliies will be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and capital
expenditures, service its debt (including the redemption of borrowings), pay its income taxes and dividends, as well as to fund its financial
investment projects, If any, for the next twelve months, subject to potential transactions which may be implemented in connection with the
group’s change 1n scope In addition, Vivend: considers that the bank commitments received on September 28, 2012 to cover the letter of
credit to be soon put in place in connection with its appeal of the Liberty Media Corporation libgation will be sufficient to suspend
enforcement of the judgment by Liberty Media Corporation until the appeal is resolved

233 Credit and investment concentration risk and counterparty risk management

Vivendr's risk management policy aims at minimizing the concentration of its credit (bank credit facilities, bonds, derwvatives) and investment
nisks as well as counterparty risk, as regards the setting-up of bank credit facilities, denvatives or iInvestments, by entering into transactions
with highly rated commercial banks only Moreover, regarding bond issues, Vivend: distributes 1ts transactions among selected financial
nvestors

In addition, Vivend!'s trade receivables da not represent a significant concentration of credit nisk due to 1ts broad customer base, the broad
variety of customers and markets, and the geographic diversity of its business operations

23.4 Equity market risk management

As of December 31, 2012 and as of December 31, 2011, Vivendi's exposure to equity market nisk was non-significant

In addition, as of December 31, 2012, Vivend holds call options and has granted put aptions on hsted or unhsted shares Vivendi 1s thus
exposed to the nisk of fluctuation in their values As of December 31, 2012, Vivendi’s net exposure was not significant, given that the
unrealized losses on the put granted to [Tl group on a 9% nterest in N-Vision {-€19 million, please refer to Note 2 3) were offset by the
unrealized gain on Deezer warrants (€20 million)
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Note 24 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

24.1 Adjustments

Year ended December 31
{in militons of euros) Note 2012 2011
ltems related to operating activities with no cash impact
Amortizatian and depreciation af intanguhle and tangible assets 4 3829 344
Change in provision, net 102 (130)
Other non-cash items from EBIT 1 -
Other
Reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corparation [ingation in the United States 27 945 -
QOther income from EBIT 4 {22} {1.385)
Other charges from EBIT 4 235 656
Praceeds from sales of property plant, equipment and intangible assets 3 9 8
Adjustments 5.199 2,590

242 Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

in 2012, investing and fimancing activibies with no cash impact amounted 1o €596 mitlion (of which €336 million due to the share capital
increase and €260 million due to the group’s retained earnings increase) and were mainly related to

- the grant of bonus shares to Vivend: SA shareowners by @ €229 million withdrawal from addiional pawd-in capital [please refer to
Note 18],

- Vivendi 5A’s share capital increase of 22,356 thousand shares, which it paid in consideration for the contribution made by Bolloré
Media, {the free-to-air channels Direct 8 and Direct Star}, representing an enterprise value of £336 milhion {please refer to Note 2 2),
and

- The strategic partnership in Poland, finalized on November 30, 2012 This transaction, descr:bed in Note 2 3, generated an increase
in consohdated retained earings from equity of €260 million (€114 million related to the gain on the dilution of Cyfra+ and
€131 rmlhon related to the recognition of ITI Neovision nan-controlling interests at fair value)

In 2011, there were no significant investing and financing activities wrth no cash impact

Note 25 Transactions with related parties

251 Carporate officers

Sitwation of corporate officers

At a meeting held on June 28, 2012, the Supervisory Board terminated Mr Jean-Bemard Lévy's term of office as Chawman of the
Management Board The Supervisory Board also terminated the terms of office of the following members of the Management Board Mr
Abdeslam Ahizoune, Mr Amos Genish, Mr Lucian Grainge, and Mr Bertrand Meheut It alse appeinted Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos as Chairman
of the Management Board The Management Board is currently composed of Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos and Mr Philippe Capron

In addition, as a reminder, on Maich 26, 2012, Mr Frank Esser resigned from his offices as member of Vivendr's Management Board and as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of SFR

Caompensation of corporate officers

The total gross compensation, including benefits in kind, that the group paid to the members of the Management Board, amounted to
€25 mulhon in 2012 {compared to €18 milltan in 2011} This amount maily included the fixed compensation component of the members of
the Management Board for the duratien of their mandate (€5 mullion in 2012, compared to €3 mullton i 2011), the vanable compensation
component with respect to the previous year (€32 million paid in 2012 with respect to 2011, compared to €8 million paid 1n 2011 with
respect to 2010}, as well as Mr Jean-Bernard Levy and Mr Frank Esser’s severance payments (€6 milhon}

After having considered the recommendation of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee and the Charman of the Human
Rescurces Commuttee, the Supervisory Board determined on June 28, 2012, that m accordance with the provisions approved by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting of Apnl 30, 2009, the conditions for Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy t0 recewe severance pay had been satisfred This
severance pay amounts to sixteen months of fixed and vanable compensation {based on six menths’ payment plus one additional menth's
payment for each year of senice within the group after 2002, which totals €3 9 mitien Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy, n accordance with the
provisions approved by the General Shareholders” Meeting of Apnil 30, 2009, retains the nghts to all of his stock options and performance
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shares, subject to the satisfaction of the relevant performance conditions attached thereto Moreover, i March 2013, he will receve the
vanable compensation component with respect to 2012 prorated, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February 22, 2013

In accordance with his employment contract, Mr Frank Esser’s severance pay amounted to €3 9 mitlion {of which €23 miflion was pad in
2012 and the balance in January 2013), corresponding to his contractual severance payments {twenty-four months of fixed compensation +
target bonus) and conventional compensation

The members of the Management Board in office as of December 31, 2012 are entitied to receive severance payments upon termination,
corresponding to a contractual termination payment As of December 31, 2012, the total estimated amount of these severance payments to
be paid to Management Board members was approximately €0 8 miflion At the General Shareholders” Meeting to be held on April 30, 2013,
it will be proposed that Mr Philippe Capron be entitled to receive a contractual severance payment of a gross amount of eighteen months’
compensation {fixed compensation + target bonus)

The total charge recorded by the group with respect to share-based compensation plans (stock options, performance shares, and employee
stack purchase) granted to members of the Management Board, n office or no longer in office, amounted to €6 million in 2012

The total amount of net pension plan obligations to members of the Management Board in office as of December 31, 2012, amounted to
€5 milon as of that date (compared to €30 million and €13 mullion of provisions for members of the Management Board in office as of
December 31, 2011) Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy and Mr Franck Esser lost their pension rights, which were under the supplemental pension
plan

The fixed compensation paid to the Chairman of the Supervisory Board amounted to €700,000 1n 2012 {unchanged compared to 2011) and
the total amount of fees paid to the other members of the Supervisory Board amounted to €1 2 million with respect to 2012 {unchanged
compared to 2011}

A detailed description of the compensation and benefits of corporate officers of the group 1s presented in the Annual Report
252 Other related parties

As a reminder, duning 2011, Vivendi acquired Vodafone's 44% interest in SFR and completed the sale of its 20% interest in NBC Universal
as from January 1, 2011, Vodafone and NBC Unwversal are no longer considered as related parties

Therefore, excluding corporate officers, Vivendi's main related parties were those companies over which the group exercises an exclusive or
jomnt control, and companies over which Vivend: exercises a significant influence {please refer to Note 28 far a list of its mamn subsidianes,
fully consolidated or accounted for under the equity method), and non-controlling interests that exercise significant influence on group
affiliates 1 e, the Kingdom of Moracco, which owns 30% of Maroc Telecom group, Lagardere, which owns 20% of Canal+ France, and since
November 30, 2012, TVN, which owns 32% of Canal+ Cyfrowy (a subsidiary of Canal+ Group)

Agreements entered into 1n 2006 with Lagardgre that give Canal+ France the nght to broadcast their theme channels on its multi-channel
offer for a penod of five years have been extended through June 30, 2013
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Note 26  Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivendi's matenal contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities include

contracts entered into, which relate to the group’s business operations, such as content commitments {please refer to Note 10 2},

contractual obligations and commercial commitments recorded 1n the Statement of Financial Position, including finance leases
{please refer to Note 12), off-balance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-balance sheet commercial commitments, such as

long-term service contracts and purchase or investment commitments,
commitments related to the group’s scope contracted through acquisitions or divestitures such as share purchase or sale

commiiments, contingent assets and hatihties subsequent to given or received commitments related to the divestiture or acquisiien
of shares, commitments resuiting from shareholders’ agreements and coliateral and pledges granted to third parties over Vivend's

assets,

commitments related to the group’s fmancing borrowings 1ssued and undrawn confirmed bank credit facilities as well as
management of interest rate, foreign currency and hguidity nsks (please refer to Motes 22 and 23), and

contingent assets and labiities related to Iitigations in which Vivendi and/or its subsidiaries are either plaintiff or defendant (please

refer to Note 27}
26.1 Contractual obligations and commercial commitments
As of Dacember 31 2012 Total as of
Tota! Payments due in December 31

{in mullions of euros) Mot 2013 2014 2017 After 2017 2011

Borrowings and other financial inbilies 313 0338 56321 9489 5137 17952

Centent habiliies 102 2283 21303 174 8 2148

Future mintmum payments related to the consohidated statement of financiat position items 22,6 7,135 9,643 5293 20,100

Contractual content commitments 102 49339 20n 2791 77 5041

Commercial commitments 2611 2911 1417 947 552 3568

Operating leases and subleases 5112 2735 495 11387 853 2589

Items not recorded in the consolrdated statement of financin! position 10,585 3,983 5120 lam 11,198

Contractual chligations and commercial commitments 33,206 1,18 14,763 6,725 N,298
2611 Off balance sheet commercial commitments

Minimum future payments as of December 31, 2012 Total mimmum future
Total Payments due in payments as of

fin milions of euros) 2013 2014 2007 After 2017 December 31 2011

Satellite trangpanders 846 19 382 145 877

Investment commitments (a) 1487 1093 237 157 25722

Other 786 294 442 50 614

Given commitments 3119 1,506 1,061 552 3813

Satellite transponders (20%) (82) (119} - {144}

Other [b) {7} {7} - - {101}

Received commitments (208) {89) {119) - (245) ‘

Net total 291 147 942 552 3,568 |
a8 Mawly relates to SFR and Marac Telecom group

SFR the total amount included €262 million as of December 31, 2012 {compared to €337 milion as of December 31, 2011)
related tc public service delegations Businesses related to these delegations of public service consist of setting up and
operating telecommunecation facilities in certain areas of France for local ar regional authorities, as delegates As of December
31, 2011, investment commitments also included €1,065 million related to the 4G license (very-high-speed internet - LTE) which
was granted by the Arcep on December 22, 2011, and paid tn January 2012 {please refer to Note 13)

Maroc Telecom SA and its capital expenditure program at the end of 2011, the third capital expenditure agreement entered
into, between Maroc Telecom and the Moroccan State m 2009, pursuant to which Maroc Telecom had committed to carrying
out a capital expenditure program for a total amount of MAD 105 billion {approximately €930 milkon) expired On January 16,
2013, Maroc Telecom and the Moroccan State entered into a fourth capital expenditure agreement pursuant to which Maros
Telecom has committed to carrying out a capital expenditure program for a total amount of more than MAD 10 billion
{approximately €308 million} between 2013 and 2015, which moreover shauld create 500 drect jobs This program aims to
modernize and expand the infrastructure to meet the growing needs of mohile traffic and broadband Internet as well as the
deployment of a fiber optic network for very-high speed broadband access

Financial Report and Audited Consolrdated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivend) /127




Tuesday, February 26, 2013

b Mainly related, as of December 31, 2011, to commiments received from Bouygues Telecom to SFR in connection with the agreement

to share their investments and fiber-optic horizontal networks in very high density areas

26.1.2 DOff balance sheet operating leases and subleases

Miimum future leases as of December 31 2012 Total - mimmum future

Total Duen leases as of December

(in muithigns of euros) 2013 2014- 2017 After 2017 31 2011

Buildings (a) 2633 470 1329 834 2,409
Other 212 64 103 45 221
Leasas 2845 534 1,432 879 2630
Buildings (a} {110} {39) (45} (26) 141}
Subleases {110} {39) {45) (26} {41)
Net total 2,735 495 1,387 853 2589

a Mainly relates to offices and technical premises

As of December 31, 2012, provisions of €15 mithon were recorded in the Statement of Financial Position with respect to operating leases
{compared to €17 million as of December 31, 2011} These provisions mainly related to unoccupied buildings

26.2 Other commitments given or received relating to operations

Rei |Context ICharactensucs (nature and amount) Exp
L Given commtments . s iR e~ B RN
{a)  iObligations related 10 the permassion to use the Consohidated Global Profit |Balance of €3 million to be paid
System
Indwidual rights to traiming for French employees Approximately 4 6 millon hours [approximately 1 5 millton hours as of December 31,
2011)
SFR s network coverage commitments related to telecom licenses Please refer to Note 13
(b} |GSM R commiiments Bank guarantee jount and several guarantees with Synérad for a total ameunt of €92
emillion {compared to £66 millian as of December 31, 2011)
Obligations in connection with pension plans and post-retirement benefuts  {Please refer to Note 20
Commitment ta contnbute to the VUPS pension fund Guarantee expired in January 2011 20m
{c} iOther guarantees gven Cumulated amount of £180 mallion (€216 million as of December 31, 2041} -
il Received commitments NG TR R SN V-
(d)  |Agreements an the digital distribution of music nghts Minimum guarantees
1Other guarantees received Cumulated amount of €191 million (241 million as of December 31, 2011} -

By an order dated March 13, 2009, an authorization to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System under Article 209 quinquies of
the French Tax Code was renewed far the period beginning an January 1, 2009 and ending on December 31, 2011 Under the terms of
the permission to use the Consohidated Global Profit Tax System, Vivend: undertock to continue to perform its previous years’
commitments, (n particular with regard to job creation

On February 18, 2010, a group compnised of SFR, Vinci and AXA (30% each) and TDF {10%) entered into a contract with Réseau Ferré
de France regarding the public-private partnership GSM-R This 15-year contract, valued at approxsmately €1 billion, covers the
financing, bulding, operation and maintenance of the digital telecommunications network that enables conference mode
communications {voice and data) between train drivers and teams on the ground It will be rolled out gradually until 2015 over
14,000 km of conventional and high-speed railway lines in France

Vivend: grants quarantees in vanous forms to financral institutions on behalf of its subsidianies in the course of their operations

Mainly relates to commitments receved by UMG from third parties in connection with agreements subject to mimmum guarantees on
the digital distribution of music rights

26.3 Share purchase and sale commitments

In connection with the purchase or sale of operations and financial assets, Vivend: has granted or received commitments to purchase or sell
securittes Vivendr has notably commtted to sell certain EMI Recorded Music assets [please refer to Note 21)

In addition, the liguidity nights regarding the strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, [T, and TVN are detailed m Note 23 and the
hquidity nght regarding Lagardére’s 20% interest in Canal+ France 1s detailed in Note 26 5 below

Furthermore, Vivendi and 1ts subsidianies have granted or recewed purchase or sale options related to shares in equity affiliates and
unconsolidated imvestments, which include Numergy, Vevo, Beats, and Spotfy
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264 Contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the
divestiture or acquisition of shares

} and subst amendments (2005 | Breaches of tax renesemau )
2010} Dbkagatron 1o cover the Most Favored Nation provisins and
Reemedial actions 2014
Creation of Activision Blizzard {July 2009) Tax sharing and indemnity agreements
Drvestiture of UMG manufacturing and distnibution operations (May 2005) Various commitments for manufactuning and distnbution services 2015
[b}  {Takeover of Neuf Cegetel {April 2008] Commitments undertaken in connectzon wath the authonzaton of the take over by the French Mimister of 03
the Economy Industry and Employment
Acquisitron of Bolloré Group s channels [September 2012) Commitments underzaken in connection wath the authorzarion of the acguisition (please refer 1o Note
22) with
the French Competition Authonty 2017
the French Broadcasting Authority 2015
Merger of Cyfrat and n platforms (November 2012) Retiprocal guarantees in favar of TVN
PLN 1 bilhon i the: event of a breach of any representation or wamanty or covenants and 2015
PLN 300 malhon m the evert of a breach of spesfic representation or warranty
£}  JCanak+ Groups pay TV acuwities in France jJanuary 2007 July 2012) New appraval o e acquisiion of TPS and CanalSatellite subject o comphiance with injunctions w17
ardered by the french Competiton Authonty
Tax and social guarantees with a €162 million cap expured on Jahuary 4 2011 2013
(d)  |Dvesuture of Canal+ Nordic {October 2003) Distributton guarantees given in faver of Canal Digital and Telenor Broadcast Holding by & former
{subsiduary

e} |Dnestture of NC Numéncable {March 2005) Specific guarantees capped at £241 million [including tax and social risks) 2014
Drvestiture of PSG (June 2006) Unlirsted specific guarantees w18

(% |Dwestiture of Sithe {December 2000} Specific guarantees capped at $480 million

{gt  }Sale of real estate asseis {June 2002) Autonomaous first dernand guaraniees tappes at €150 mithon in 1otz ilax and decennial guaramees) 017

(h)  [Early settlement of rental guarantees refated 1o the last three bulidings in Cancellation in October 2012 of guarantees of rental payments obligations following the sale of the 012
Germany {November 2007) companies (€277 mithon as of December 31 2011)

[ B e of PTC shares [December 2010} Commitments undertaken in order to end htigation aver the share ownership of PTC in Patand
Other continpent hailines Cumuizied sencurt of €30 makion (30 mithon as of December 31 2011)

Acquisition of EMI Recorded Music {September 2012} Comemitments receved in connection with the acqusition [please refer to Nota 2 1)

()} jAcquisition of Tele2 France by SFR (July 2007) Cemmitments on the handling and distribution of autho wisual content expired in July 2012 2012
Azguisiion of Botloré Group s thennels {September 2012) Guarantees capped at €120 mihon fplease refer 1o Note 2 2} 7
Acqusition of 40% of N Vision [November 2012) Guarantees mode by |T) capped at approximately

€28 mllion for generat guarantees and a4
€277 evullvon for specsh guarantees fincluding tax matters free and full ewnership of shares seld
authonzations / approvals for the exercise of the actmity)
tMerger of Cyfra+ and TVN s n platform {November 2012} Reviprocal guarantees in favor of TVN
PLN 1 billion 1n the event of a breach of any representation or warranty or covenants 2015
PLN 300 milhon in the event of & breach of specific representation or warranty ang
PLN 145 mullion related to Neovisian s unutihzed tax losses carmed forward
Arquisition of KXmowelt {Apni 2008) General and specilic guarantees regarding mawe nghts property gven by the seflers 10 EuroMedien 201
Babetsherg GmbH expuzed and
Specific guarantees notably on film nghts were granted by the seflers

ie)  jDwvestiture of NC Numéncable (March 2005) €151 milhan counter-guaranteed by France Tefecom ma

{k}  [Early settlement of rental guarantees related to the last three buildings Commudments expired in October 2012 2012
Germany [November 2007) Pledge aver she cash of the divested companies soki (€40 million as of Decernber 31 2041), and

Counter-guarantes provided by the purchaser i the amount of €200 million cancetted i October 2012

{ky  iOrestiture of Xera (2003) Guaantees amount 10 €71 mdlign

Othes contingent assets Comulated amount of £58 mition (€47 mution as of Cecember 31 2001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and hiabilities descrnbed above

a  As part of the NBC Unwversal transaction which accurred in May 2004, Vivendi and General Electric (GE} gave certain reciprocal
commitments customary for this type of transaction, and Vivend retained certain habihities relating to taxes and excluded assets
Vivendi and GE undertook to indemnify each other against losses resulting from, among other things, any breach of their respective
representations, warranties and covenants
Neither party will have any indemnification obligations for losses ansing as a result of any breach of representations and warranties
{1} for any indwidual item where the loss is less than $10 million and {11} in respect of each tndividual item where the loss 15 equal to or
greater than $10 million except where the aggregate amount of il losses exceeds $325 million In that event, the hable party will be
required to pay the amount of losses which exceeds $325 milhion, but in no event will the aggregate indemmification payable exceed
$2,088 millon
In addition, Yivendi will have indemnifrcation obligations for 50% of every US dollar of foss up to 350 million and fer all losses m
excess of $50 mithon refating to habihties ansing out of the Most Favored Nation provisions set forth in certain contracts As part of
the unwinding of IACI's interest in VUE on June 7, 2005, Vivend's commitments with regard to environmental matters were amended
and Vivend:'s liability 1s now subject to a de mmimis exception of $10 million and a payment basket of $325 million
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The representations and warranties gwen as part of the NBC Universal transaction other than those regarding authorization,
capitalization and tax representations terminated on August 11, 2005 Notices of environmental claims related to remediation must be
brought by May 11, 2014 Other claims, including those related to taxes, will be subject to applicable statutes of limitations

The sale of Vivend:'s interest 1n NBC Universal to GE completed on January 25, 2011 did not modify these commitments

As part of the takeover of Neuf Cegetel, the approval from the Ministry of Economy, Industry and Employment, dated April 15, 2008,
resulted 1 additional commitments from Vivends and its subsidianes They address competitor access and new market entrants to
wholesale markets on SFR's fixed and mobile networks, acceptance on the fixed netwark of an independent television distributor 1f
such a player appears, as well as the availability, on a non-exclusive basis, of ADSL an eight new channels which are leaders in theur
particular fietd (Panis Premigre, Teva, Jmmy, Ciné Cinéma Famiz, three M6 Music channels and Fun TV) Most of these commitments
have expired, excluding those related to pay-TV, which will expire in April 2013

On August 30, 2006, the TPS/Canal+ Group merger was authorized, in accordance with the merger contral regulations, pursuant to a
decision of the French Minister of Economy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivend: and Canal+ Group complying with certain
undertakings for a maximum period of six years, with the exception of those commitments concerning the availability of channels and
V0D, which could not exceed five years
On October 28, 2008, the French Competition Authority opened an enquiry regarding the implementation of certain undertakings given
by Canal+ Group 1n connection with the merger of CanalSatellite and TPS
For more information on the enquiry into compliance with certain undertakings given in connection with the merger of Canal Satellite
and TPS, please refer to Note 27, below
On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State rejected Vivend and Canal + Group’s filed motions requesting the annulment of
the French Competition Authority's decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 Under the first motion, the €30 million fine
imposed on Canal+ Group was reduced to €27 milion Under the second motion, the transaction was cleared once agan, subject to
compliance with 33 injunctions
Canal+ Group has 1mplemented a number of these injunctions, which have been by, for some since July 23, 2012 and others since
October 23, 2012, mainly focusing on
¢ Acqguisition of movie nghts
by imiting the duration of output deals to three years, requining separate agreements for different types of nghts (1% pay-TV
window, 2™ pay-TV window, series, etc) and prohibiting output deals for French films, and
- by divesting its interest in Orange Cinema Series - OCS SNC or by adopting measures limiting its influence on Orange Cinema
Series — 0CS SNC
o {Distribution of pay-TV channels
- by the distribution of a minimum number of 1ndependent channels, the distribution of any channel holding premium nghts, and
by drafting a model drstribution deal refating to independent channels included 1n the CanaiSat offer,
by the obligation to promete, in a transparent and separate manner, the distribution of exclusive independent channels on
each owned platform serving more than 500,000 subscribers, and
- by making all its own movie channels distributed by Canal+ Group (Cine+ channels} avallable to third-party distributors
{unbundling}
e Video on demand {VOD) and subscription video on demand (SYOD)
by separating contracts entered into for the purchase of VOD and SVOD nights on a non-exclusive basis, and not combining
them with rights purchased for near distribution on pay-TV,
- by offering StudioCanal's VOD and SVOD rights to any interested operator, and
- by forbidding exclusive distnbution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group's VOD and SVOD offers on Internet Service Providers
platforms
These injunctions are imposed for a period of five years, renewable once At the end of the five-year perod, the French Competition
Authority will review the competition situation in order to determine whether the njunctions should be kept in place If market
conditions have changed significantly, Canal+ Group will be able to request that these injunctions be walived or partially or totally
rewised An independent trustee, proposed by Canal+ Group and approved by the French Competition Authority on September 25, 2012,
will be responsible for monitoning the inyunctions implementation

In addition, as part of the sale of a 20% wnterest in Canal+ France to Lagardere Active on January 4, 2007, Canal+ Group made tax and
social representations and warranties to Lagardére Active with a €162 million cap on the entities held by Canal+ France, excluding
CanalSatellite, Multithématiques and the TPS entities The tax and soctal guarantees expired on January 4, 2011

Moreover, Vivend: granted a counter-guarantee, 1n favor of TF1 and ME to assume commitments and guarantees made by TF1 and M6
In connection with some of the contractual content commitments and other long term obligations of TPS and other obligations
recognized in the Statement of Financial Position of TPS As of December 31, 2012, the remaining amount of these commitments was
not significant and the counter-guarantee expired on January 4, 2013
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d  Inconnection with the divestiture of Canal+ Nordic in October 2003, Canal+ Group has retained distribution guarantees given (n faver
of Canal Digrtal and Telenor Broadcast Holding by a former subsidiary, which guarantees are covered by a counter-quarantee given by
the buyers

e As part of the divestiture of NC Numéncable on March 31, 2005, the Canal+ Group granted specific guarantees with a €241 million
cap {including tax and social nsks) Specfic nsks relating 1o cable networks used by NC Nurnéricble are included in this maximum
amount and are counter-guaranteed by France Telecom up to €151 million

f In connection with the sale of its 49 9% interest 1n Sithe to Exelon i December 2000, Vivend) granted customary representations and
guarantees Claims, other than those made in relation to foreign subsidiary commitments, are capped at $480 milion In addition,
claims must exceed $15 million, except if they relate to foreign subsidiaries or the divestiture of certain electrical stations to Reliant in
February 2000 Some of these guarantees expred on December 18, 2005 Some environmental commitments still exist and any
potential liabilities related to contamnation risks will survive for an indefinite penod of time

g  Inconnection with the sale of real estate assets in June 2002 to Nexty, Vivendi granted two autonomous first demand guarantees,
one for €40 millvon and one for €110 mithon, to several subsidianes of Nexity {iNexim 1 1o 6) The guarantees are effective until June
30, 2017

h  After having sold the companies carrying credit lease commitments in relation to the Berlin bulldings Lindencorso, Anthropohs and
Dianapark {the "Companies”), in November 2007, Vivend continued to guarantee certain lease payment obligations As a result of the
early exercise by the Companies of their call options on the buildings, Vivend's guarantees were terminated on October 5, 2012, for
an amount of €277 million as of December 31, 2011 In return, the counter-guarantee provided by the acquirors of the Companies to
Vivend (€200 mullion) was cancelled, as well as the pledge over the cash of the divested companies to the benefit of Vivend: (E40
millon as of December 31, 2011) Vivend: has retaned tax guarantees given at the time of the disposal of the Companies

! On December 14, 2010, Vivend, Deutsche Telekom, Mr Solorz-Zak {Elektnm's main shaieholder) and Elekinm's creditors, meluding
the Polish State and Elektnim’s bondholders, entered into vanous agreements to put an end to the litigation surrounding the share
capital ownership of Polska Telefonia Cyfrowa (PTC), @ mobile telecommunication operator With respect to these agreements, Vivendi
notably entered into the following commitments

= Vivend: granted to Deutsche Telekom a guarantee over Carcom that capped at €600 million and matunng in August 2013,

+ Vivend committed to compensate Elektrim SA {Eiektnm} for the tax consequences of the transaction, with a cap at
£20 million This commitment expired in July 2011 and the claims have been settled in June 2012,

s Vivend committed to compensate Law Debenture Trust Company (LDTC) aganst any recourse for damages that could be
brought against LDTC in connection with the completed transaction, for an amount up to 18 4% for the first £125 mullion,
46% between €125 million and €288 million, and 50% thereafter, and

e Vivend committed to compensate Elektrim’s administrator for the consequences of any action for damages that may be
taken against 1t, n connection with the decisions that were taken to end certain procedures

) The Share Purchase Agreement dated as of October 2, 2006 between Tele2 Europe SA and SFR contains representatrons and
warranties which expired on January 20, 2009 and warranties relating to clarms anising with respect to tax and social matters, which
expired end of March 2012 On July 18, 2007, by way of implementation of the Curopean Usion antitrust regulation, the European
Commussion approved the purchase of the fixed and internet activities of Tele2 France by SFR, subject to commitments on the handiing
and distributron of audig-visual content for a five-year period All these commitments expired on July 18, 2012

k Vivend! received guarantees in respect of the repayment of amounts paid in July 2607 (€71 million), in the event of a favourable
decision of the Spamish Courts concerning Xfera's tax litigation seeking to cancel the 2001, 2002 and 2003 radio spectrum fees These
guarantees include a first demand bank guarantee relating to 2001 fees for an amount of €57 million

Several guarantees given in 2012 and during prior years in connection with asset acquisitions or disposals have expired However, the time
periods or statute of hmitations of certan guarantees relating, among other things, to employees, environment and tax liabilities, n
congideration of share ownership, or given in connection with the dissolution or winding-up of certain businesses are still in effect To the
best of Vivendi's knowledge, no material claims for indemnification against such liabilities have been made to date

in addition, Vivendi regularly delivers, at the settlement of disputes and litigations, commitments for damages to third parties, which are
tymeal 1n such transactions
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26.5 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders’ or investors™ agreements (pnimarily those relating to Activision Blizzard, Maroc Telecom group, Canal+ France,
as welt as “nc+"), Vivend: holds certain nights (such as pre-emptive nights, prionty nghts} which give 1t contrel over the capital structure of
consolidated companies partially owned by minanty shareholders Conversely, Vivend has granted similar nghts to these other sharehalders
in the event that it sells its interests to third parties

in addition, pursuant to other shareholders’ agreements or the bylaws of consolidated entities, equity affiliates or unconsolidated interests, Vivendh
and Its subsidianies have given or received certain nghts {pre-emptive and other nghts) entitling them to maintain their shareholder's nghts

Strategic agreements among Vivendi, Canal+ Group, Lagardare, and Lagardére Holding TV

Pursuant to the Canal+ France strategic agreements entered snto on January 4, 2007, Lagardere was granted nghts to maintain its economic
interest 1n Canal+ France, with varying nghts according to the. level of its participation n Canal+ France Under no circumstances will
Lagardére have any joint control of Canal+ France The main provisions of these strategic agreements are as follows

e The Chairman and all the members of the Management Board of Canal+ France are appainted by Canal+ Group lagardére is
represented by two members out of the ten members of the supervisory board

e lagardare has certain veto rights over Canal+ France and, in certain cases, over its major subsidiaries including In the event of a
change in the by-laws, a major permanent change In the business, its transformation into a company in which the partners would
have untimited hability, a single investment representing more than a third of consolidated revenues, a tender offer for the
company’s shares, 1n certain circumstances the entry of a third party as a shareholder, and certain other nghts (including a tag-
atong right, an anti-dilution nght, and certain bidding nghts in the event of the sale of Canal+ France intended to protect its
economic interest Vivendi has a pre-emptive nght in the event of a sale of Lagardere’s equity interest

e  Between 2008 and 2014, Lagardére will have a liquidity nght exercisable between March 15 and Aprif 15 of each calendar year,
provided, however, that Lagardare owns at least 10% but no more than 20% of the share capital and voting nghts of Canal+
France, {and taking into account the fact that Lagardére did not exercise 1ts nght to exercise 1ts call option enabling 1t to own 34%
of the capital of Canal+ France} Pursuant to this iquidity nght, Lagardere 1s entitled to request a public offening of Canal+ France
shares Similarly, as wn 2010 and 2011, on March, 26, 2012, Lagardere exercised its liquidity nght for 2012 On May 30, 2012,
Lagardere confirmed the exercise of its hquidity nght On June 27, 2012, Vivend) notified Lagardére of 1ts intention not to acquire
its 20% interest at the proposed price A new Initial Public Offering {IPO) process was launched on Juty 12, 2012, which has not
been successful to date

s The financing of Canal+ France has been structured through a mechanism which includes shareholders’ loans and the delivery of
guarantees with respect to Canal+ France’s obligations Pursuant to this mechanism, Lagardére has the option to participate in
such financing and guarantee arrangements pro rata its level of ownership in the share capital of the company

Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN

For a detailed description of the key liquidity rights under the strategic partnership regarding pay-TV in Poland, please refer to Note 2 3

In addition, in comphance with Article L 225-100-3 of the French Commercial Code, it 1s stated that some nghts and obligations of Vivend
resulting from shareholders’ agreements (Maroc Telecom group, and Canal+ Cyfrowy) may be amended or terminated n the event of a
change n control of Vivend or a tender offer beng made for Vivendi These shareholders’ agresments are subject to confidentiality
provisions

26.6 Collaterals and pledges

As of December 31, 2012, the amount of the group's assets that were pledged or mortgaged for the benefit of third parties was €209 million
{compared to €203 million as of December 31, 2011) This amount pnmanly includes GVT's pledged assets with respect to judicial
guarantees for vantous itigations

{in millions of euros) December 31, 2012 December 31 2011

On tntangible assets 8 12
(On tangible assets 47 52
On financial assets 146 n
On cash 8 8
Total 209 203

Moreover, Vivend: does not hold any third-party guarantees in respect of any of 1ts receivables outstanding as of December 31, 2012 nor did
it have any as of December 31, 2011
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Note 27 Litigation

'n the normal course of Its business, Vivend: 1s subject to vanious lawsuits, arbitrations and govemmental, administrative or other
proceedings (collectively referred to herern as “Legal Proceedings”)

The costs which may result from these proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are fikely o be incurred and when the
obligation can reasonably be quantified or estimated, in which case, the amount of the provision represents Vivendi's best estimate of the
nsk, provided that Vivendi may, at any time, reassess such nsk if events occur during such proceedings As of December 31, 2012, provisions
recarded by Vivend, for all clauns and Litrgations amounted to €1,357 mulion, compared to €479 million at December 31, 2011 {please refer
to Note 19}

To the company’s knowledge, there are no Legal Proceedings or any facts of an exceptional nature, including, to the company's knowledge,
any pending or threatened proceedings in which it 1s a defendant, which may have or have had in the previous twelve months a significant
impact on the company's and on 1ts group’s financial position, profit, business and property, other than those described herein

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder 1s described as of February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting held to
approve Vivendi's financral statements for the year ended December 31, 2012

Tral of Vivendi's former officers in Panis

In October 2002, the financial department of the Panis Public Prosecutor's office {Parguet de Pants) launched an investigation into the
publication of allegedly false or misleading information regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or inaccurate financial statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 2001 Additional charges were brought in this investigation
relating to purchases by the company of 1ts own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivend: joined the proceedings
asacivil party

The tial took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11" Chamber of the Pans Tribunal of First Instance {Tnbunal de Grande
Instance de Pars), followng which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants

On January 21, 2011, the Court rendered its judgment, in which 1t confirmed the previous recognition of Vivendi as a civil party Messrs
Jean Marie Messier, Guitlaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enic Licoys received suspended sentences and fines Messrs Messier and
Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages to shareholders who are entitled to reparation as civii parties The former Vivend: officers as
well as some civil parties appealed the decision The trial before the Court of appeals i1s scheduled to take place from Dctober 28 to
November 26, 2013

Cn Janvary 7, 2010, Philippe Forret summoned Vivend: and Veolia to appear befere a Cnminal Court 1n an attempt to hold them liable for the
offences commutted by their former managers On January 27, 2012, the Criminal Court dismussed Mr Foiret's application

Secunties Class Action in the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have heen filed against Vivend:, Messrs Messier and Hanneza in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York and in the United States District Court for the Central District of California On September 30, 2002, the New York
court decided to consolidate these claims under its junsdiction into a single action entitled /n re Vivendr Unversal S A Securities Litigation

The plawntiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants violated certan provisions of the US Secunties
Act of 1933 and US Secunties Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financial communicatrons On January 7, 2003, the plaintiffs
filed a consohdated class action suit that may benefit potential groups of shareholders

On March 22, 2007, the Court decided, concerning the procedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class (“class certification”),
that persons from the United States. France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or American Depositary
Receipts {ADRs} of Vivend: {formerly Vivend: Universal SA)} between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be included tn the class

Following the class certification decision of March 22, 2007, a number of individual cases were filed against Vivend: on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge 1ssued an order consolidating the individual actions with the secunties class action for
purposes of discovery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Media action from the class action On August 12, 2009, the
Court 1ssued an order deconsolidating the individual actions from the class action

On January 29, 2010, the jury returned its verdict It found that 57 statements made by Vivendi between October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were matenally false or musleading and were made i violation of Section 10b) of the Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 Plantiffs had
alleged that those statements were false and misleading because they failed to disclose the existence of an alleged “hquidity nsk” which
reached its peak in December 2001 However, the jury concluded that neither Mr Jean-Mane Messier nor Mr Guillaume Hannezo were
hable for the alleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the price of Vivend:'s shares was artificially inflated on each
day of the ctass period in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordinary share and $0 13 and $10 00 per ADR, depending on the date of
purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the plaintiffs in the class action

Financsal Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Vivendr /133




Tuesday, February 26 2013

The jury also concluded that the inflation of the Vivendi share price fell to zero i the three weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays on the Pans or New York markets (12 days) during the class period

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, in a very ciear statement, ruled, in the Momson v Natienal Australia Bank case, that Amencan
securities law only apphes to “the purchase or sale of a security isted on an American stock exchange”, and to “the purchase or sale of any
other security in the United States ”

tn a decision dated February 17, 2011 and 1ssued on February 22, 2011, the Court, n applying the “Momson™ decision, confirmed Vivend's
posttion by dismissing the claims of all purchasers of Vivend:'s ordinary shares on the Panis stock exchange and limited the case to claims of
French, Amencan, British and Outch purchasers of Vivendi’s ADRs on the New Yark Stack Exchange The Court denied Vivendr's post-trial
motions challenging the jury's verdict The Court also declined to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintffs, saying that
to do so would be premature and that the process of examining individual sharehelder claims must take place before a final judgment could
be 1ssued On March 8, 2011, the plantiffs filed a petition before the Second Cwcwit Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 2011, the Court of Appeals dented the petition and dismissed the claim of purchasers who
acquired their shares on the Paris stock exchange

In a decision dated January 27, 2012 and issued on February 1, 2012, the Court, in applying the Morrison decision, also dismussed the claims
of the Individual plaintiffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Paris stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plaintiffs to expand the class to natonalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of & notice to shareholders who may be part of the class
Recipients of the notice have 150 days from that date to provide information and documentation evidencing the validity of their claim
Vivendi will then have the nght to challenge the ments of these claims At the end of this process, which should be completed during the
second quarter of 2013, the judge will be able to determine the total amount of damages and enter a final judgment, thereby enabling
Vivend) to commenge its appeal

Vivend: believes that it has solid grounds for an appeal at the appropriate times Vivend: intends to challenge, among other 1ssues, the
plaintiffs theories of causatton and damages and, more generally, certain decisions made by the judge dunng the conduct of the trial
Several aspects of the verdict will also be challenged

On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companies specializing in the calculation of class action damages and in accordance with the accounting
principles described in Notes 13 1 {Use of Estimates} and 1 3 8 (Provisions) Vivendi made a provision on December 31, 2009, 1n an amount
of €550 million in respect of the damages that Vivend: might have to pay to plaintiffs Vivendi re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Secunties class action liigation n the United States, given the decision of the District Court for the Southern District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which followed the US Supreme Court’s decision on June 24, 2010 in the Mormsan case Using the same methodology
and the same valuation experts as in 2009, Vivendi re-examined the amount of the reserve and set it at €100 million as of December 31,
2010, in respect of the damages, If any, that Vivendi might have to pay solely to shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivendi recogmzed a €450 million reversal of reserve, compared to an accrual of
£550 mullion as of December 31, 2008

Vivend! considers that this provision and the assumptions on which it 1s based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivendi might have to pay to the plaintiffs could differ from the current estimate As 15
permitted by current accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on which this estimate 15 based, because their disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivend

Complaint of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Media Corparation and certain of its affiliates filed suit against Vivendi and Jean-Marie Messier and Guillaume
Hannezo i the District Court for the Southern District of New York for claims ansing out of the agreement entered Into by Vivend: and
Liberty Media relating to the formation of Vivendi Universal Entertainment in May 2002 The plaintiffs allege that the defendants violated
certain provisions of the US Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certain contractual representations and warranties The case had been
consolidated with the securities class action for pre-trial purposes but was subsequently deconsolidated en March 2, 2009 for purposes of
tnial The yudge granted Liberty Media's request that they be permitted to avall themselves of the verdict rendered by the secunities class
action jury with respect to Vivendi's liability {theory of "collateral estoppel”)

The Liberty Media jury returned its verdict on June 25, 2012 It found Vivend: hable to Liberty Media for making certain false or rsleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained n the parties' agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Media in the amount of €765 million Vivend: has filed certain post-trial motions challenging the jury’s verdict, including motions requesting
that the Court set aside the jury's verdict for lack of ewidence and order a new tnal
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On January 9, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury's verdict It also awarded Liberty Media pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
2001 until the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of return on one-year U S Treasury bills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment in the total amount of €345 mihon, including pre-judgment interest, but stayed its execution while 1t considered
two pending post-trial motions, which were denied on February 12, 2013 On February 15, 2013, Vivend: ftled with the Court a Notice of
Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which it beheves it has strong arguments

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and following the entry of the final judgment by the Court, at December 31, 2012,
Vivendi recognized a provision in the amount of £345 million

LBBW et al against Vivend)

On March 4, 2011, twenty-six mstitutional investors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, Ireland, ltaly, Sweden, Belgium and Austria filed a
comptaint against Vivend: with the Panis Commercial Court seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications issued by Vivendi in October and December 2000, September 2001 and Apnl 2002 Then on Apnl 10 and on Aprl
23, 2012, two similar complaints were filed against Vivend: the first one by a US pension fund, the Public Employee Ret:rement System of
ldaho and the other by six German and British institutional investors Finally, on Aegust 8, 2012, the British Columbia Investment
Management Corporation also filed a complamnt against Vivendi an the same basis

Califorma State Teachers Retirement System et al agamst Vivendi and Jean-Mane Messier

On Apnil 27, 2012, sixty-seven institutignal foreign investors filed @ complaint against Vivend) and Jean-Mane Messier before the Panis
Commercial Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivend) and 1ts
former leader, between 2000 and 2002 On September 6, 2012, twenty-four new plaintffs joined these proceedings, however, in November
2012, two plaintiffs withdrew from the proceedings

Lagardére against Vivendi, Canal+ Group and Canal + France

On February 12, 2013, Lagardere Holcing TV, a 20% shareholder of Canal + France, filed a complaint against Vivend:, Canal+ Group and
Canal + France with the Pans Comwmercial Court The Lagardere group 1s seeking nullification of the cash management agreement entered
into hetween Canal + France and Canal+ Group on the grounds that it constitutes a related party agreement and hence, 1S seeking
restitution, under penalty, from Canal+ Group, of the entire cash surplus given over by Canal+ France under the agreement, 1 e, the sum of
€16 billlon Vivend: fgrmally dernues the allegatians of the Lagardare Group as to the nature of this agreement, which should be considered
ord:nary course, and intends to vigorously defend its nights

Vivendi Deutschland against FIG

Further to a claim filed by CGIS BIM [a subsidiary of Vivendi) against FIG to obtain the release of part of a payment remaining due pursuant
to a buldings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 29, 2008, the annulment of the sale following a judgment of the Berlin Court of Appeal,
which overruled a judgment rendered by the Berin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay damages
Vivend| delivered a guarantee so as to pursue settlement negotiations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008, CGIS BIM
challenged the validity of the reasoning of the judgment On Apnt 23, 2009, the Regional Berlin Court 1ssued a decision setting aside the
Judgrnent of the Berlin Court of Appeal dated May 29, 2008 On June 12, 2009, HG appealed that decision On December 16, 2010, the Berlin
Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regional Berhin Court in Apnl 2009, which decided 1n CGIS's favor
and confirmed the invalidity of the reasoning of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase the bulding and
pay demages and nterest This decision s now final in paraliel, FiG filed a second claim for additional damages in the Berhn Regional Court
which was served on CGIS on March 3, 2009 The Court, which had previously suspended this proceeding, must now rule on the validity of
this claim

Free against SFR

On May 21, 2012, Free filed a complaint against SFR with the Pans Commercial Court Free is challenging SFR's model of subsidizing mobile
phone purchases through what Free calls “concealed” consumer loans and clarms this constitutes an unfarr and deceptive trade practice On
January 15, 2013, the Court dismissed Free's claims and ordered 1t to pay to SFR £300.000 in damages for defamation and £100,000 for
costs Free appealed this decision

Vivendi's complaint against France Télécom before the European Commission for abuse of a dominant pesition

On March 2, 2009, Vivend: and Free jowntly filed a complaint agawnst France Télécom before the European Comrmussian (the "Cammussion™),
for abuse of a dominant positron Vivendi and Free allege that France Télécom impeses excessive taniffs on offers for access to its fixed
network and on telephone subscnptions In July 2009, Bouygues Telecom joined in this complaint In a letter dated February 2, 2010, the
Commussion infarmed the parties of (ts intention to dismiss the complaint On September 17, 2010, Vivend: filed an appeal hefere the Court
of First Instance of the European Union in Luxemburg
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Complaint against France Télécom and Orange hefore the French Competition Authority

On August 9, 2010, SFR filed a complaint before the French Competition Authority against France Télécom and Orange for anti-competitive
practices on the professional mobile market This case 1s under investigation

Complaint lodged with the French Competition Authority by Orange Réunion, Orange Mayotte and Outre Mer Telecom against
Société Réumonnaise du Radiotéléphone (SRR}

DOrange Réunion and Orange Mavotte filed a complaint against SRR {an SFR subsidiary) for alleged discriminatory practices On September
15, 2009, the French Competition Authonty imposed temporary protective measures on SRR, requinng 1t to propose 10 1ts subscribers offers
which do not discriminate based on the network used, except where they reflect the differences in costs amongst the network operators On
August 18, 2011, the French Competition Authority provided SRR with a report stating that SRR had not complied with the order and. on
January 24, 2012, the French Competition Authonty ordered SRR to pay a fine of €2 million The investigation 1s ongoing

Complaint of Bouygues Telecom against SFR and Orange in connection with the call termination and mobile markets

Bouygues Telecom brought a claim before the French Competition Council against SFR and Qrange for certain alleged unfarr trading
practices In the call termination and mobile markets (“price seissoring”) On May 15, 2009, the French Compettion Authonty {the
“Authonty”) resolved to postpone its decision on the 1ssue and remanded the case for further investigation On December 13, 2010, SFR was
heard on these allegations by the mstructing magistrate On August 18, 2011, SFR recewved a natification of grievances n which the
Authonity noted the existence of abusive pnce discimination practices On December 13, 2012, the Authonty fined SFR €65 708 million SFR
has appealed this decision

SFR aganst France Télecom

On August 10, 2011, France Télécom filed a claim against SFR before the Paris Commercial Court France Telécom asked the Court to compel
SFR to stop the overflow traffic at the point of interconnection of their respective networks

CLCV against SFR and other telecom operators

On January 7, 2013, the French consumer protection association, CLCV (consumption, housing and quality of life} sued several French
telecom aperators, including SFR, before the Panis Tribunal of First Instance It s seeking the removal of certain clauses that 1t considers
abusive from subscription contracts

Parabole Réunion

In July 2007, the group Parabole Réunion filed a legal action before the Panis Tribunal of First Instance following the termination of its nghts
to exclusively distrnbute the TPS channels in Reunion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauritius Pursuant to a decision dated September
18, 2007, the Canal+ Group was prohibited, under fine, from allowing the broadcast by third parties of these channels or those replacement
channels that have substituted these channels Canal+ Group appealed this decision In a ruling dated June 19, 2008, the Pans Court of
Appeal partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted excluswvely f the channels were
made available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabole Réunion was again unsuccessful in its claims concerning the content
of the channels in question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2009, the
French Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole Reunion In the context of this dispute, various Jurisdictions have taken the
opportunity to recall that in the event of the loss of the TPS Foot channel, Canal + Group must make avalable to Parabole Réunion a channel
of similar attractiveness Non-compliance with this order would result in a penalty On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réun:on filed a claim
against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the enforcement magistrate of the Court of First Instance of Nanterre
{Tnbunal de grande instance de Nanterre) seeking enforcement of this fine {a request for such enforcement having been previously rejected
by the enforcement magistrate of Nanterre, the Paris Court of Appeat and the French Supreme Court] On November 6, 2012, Parabole
Réunion expanded its claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels

In parallel with the foregoing proceedings, on October 21, 2008, Parabole Réunion and ris shareholders filed a claim against Canal Reunion,
Canal Overseas, CanalSatellite Réunion, Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution, seeking the enforcement of the agreement
entered into an May 30, 2008, pursuant to which the companies would combine ther TV channel broadcasting activities in the Indian Ocean
The execution of this agreement was contingent upon the satisfaction of certain conditions precedent As these conditions were not
satisfied, the agreement became null and void On June 15, 2009, the Commercial Court rejected Parabole Réunion’s claim Parabole
Réunion appealed this decision and the appeal was denied On May 23, 2011, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court This
appeal was dismissed on May 30, 2012

On Apnl 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ France, Canak+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the Panis Tribunal
of First Instance asking the Tribunal to acknowledge the failure of the companies of the Group to fulfill their contractual obligations to
Parabole Réunion and their commitments to the Ministry of Economy
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Action brought by the French Competition Authonity regarding practices in the Pay TV sector

On January 8, 2008, further to its voluntary investigation and a complaint by France Télécom, the French Competition Authority sent Vivendi
and Groupe Canal+ a notification of allegations It alleges that Groupe Canal+ has abused its dorminant position in certain Pay TV markets
and that Vivend: and Groupe Canal+ colluded with TF1 and M6, on the one hand, and with Lagardgre. on the other Vivend: and Groupe
Canal+ have each demed these allegations

On November 16, 2010, the French Competition Authority rendered a decision in which 1t dismissed the allegations of collusion, in respect of
all parties, and certain other allegations, in respect of Groupe Canal+ The French Competition Autherity requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Groupe Canal+'s exclusive distribution rights on channels broadcast by the group and by
independent channels as well as the extension of exclusive nghts on TF1, M6 and Lagardire channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV On
December 17, 2010, France Télécom appealed the decision before the Court of Appeal Vivend: and Groupe Canal+ joined these appeal
proceedings On July 15, 2011, France Télécom withdrew 1ts application for an annulment of the dectsion of the Competition Authonity

Inquiry into compleance with certain undertakings given 1n connection with the merger of CanalSatellite and TPS

The French Competition Authonty opened an quiry nto compliance with certan undertakings given by Vivend) and Canal+ Group in
connect:on with the merger of TPS and CanalSatellite

Cn September 20, 2011, the French Competition Authority rendered a decision in which it established that Canal+ Group had not complied
with certain undertakings — some 1t considered essential — on which depended 1ts decision authonzing, in 2006, the acquisition of TPS and
CanalSatellite by Vivendi and Canal+ Group As a consequence, the French Competition Autharity withdrew the merger authorization,
requining Vivendi and Canal+ Group to re-notify the transaction to the French Competition Authonty within one month Furthermore, the
French Competition Authonty ordered Canal+ Group to pay a £30 million fine

On October 24, 2011, the transaction was re-notified to the French Competition Authonty On Novernber 4, 2011, Vivend: and Canal+ Group
filed an appeal before the French Councrl of State against the French Competition Authority's decision dated September 20, 2011 As part of
this procedure, Canal+ Group had filed two Prionty Constitutional Questions (QPCs} concerning this decision, which were referred to the
French Constitutional Coungil by the French Council of State on July 17, 2012 On October 12, 2012, the French Constitutional Council
declared that the |egal and statutory provisions in question were constitutional

On July 23, 2012, the French Competition Autharity i1ssued 1ts decision on this new notification It authorizes the acquisition of TPS and
CanalSatellite by Vivend and Canal+ Group, subject to compliance with a certain number of injunctions These injunctions are primarily
focused on the acquisition of film nights from American studios and French producers, the participation of Canak+ Group in Qrange Cinema
Series, the distribution of premium channels and non-linear services (video on demand and subscription video on demand)

On August 30, 2012, Vivendr and Canal+ Group filed an appeal before the French Council of State to obtain the cancellation of the July 23,
2012 decision In addition, Vivend: and Canal+ Group have filed two motions, one seeking a suspension of the September 20, 2011 decision
and the other seeking a suspension of the July 23, 2012 decision

The French Counci! of State rejected these requests for suspension on September 17, 2012 and October 22, 2012, respectively A hearing on
the ments of the cancellation of the French Competition Authonty's decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 was held on
December 14, 2012 On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State essentially confirmed the two decisions of the French Competition
Authority, however, 1t reduced the fine of €30 miflion 1o €27 million because two of the alleged breaches were unfounded

Complaints against music industry majors in the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Courts 1n New York and California against Universal Music Group and the other music
industry majors for alleged anti-competitive practices in the context of sales of CDs and Internet music downloads These complaints have
been consolidated before the Federal Court in New York The motion to dismiss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court, on
October 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circuit Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a motion
for rehearing which was denied They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
process Is underway

FBT & Eminem against UMG

On May 21, 2007, FBT (the label owned by Eminem) filed suit against UMG claiming breach of contract in connection with the production of
an album and requesting that the court order additional payment of royalties for on-hine sales of music downloads and ringtones On March
6, 2009, the Los Angeles Court dismissed FBT's claims and FBT appealed The Court of Appeal overturned the lower court’s decision On
March 21, 2011, the U § Supreme Court, without ruling on the ments of the case, refused to hear an appeal from UMG, which 1s within its
Judicial discretron In a deciston dated June 27, 2012, the Court allowed FBT and Eminem to broaden the scope of their complaint and
challenge the calculation of royalties on music downloads outside the United States On October 19, 2012, the parties entered into 3
settlernent agreement that ended this litigation
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Complaints against UMG regarding royalties for digital downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class action complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royalties for on-line sales of music downloads and master ningtones UMG contests the
merits of these actions

Studio Infinity Ward, subsidiary of Activision Blizzard

After concluding an internal human resources mquiry into breaches of contract and insubordination by two senior employees at Infinity
Ward, Activision Blizzard terminated the employment of Jason West and Vince Zampella on March 1, 2010 On March 3, 2010, West and
Zampella filed a compiaint against Activision Blizzard in the Los Angeles Supenior Court for breach of contract and wrongful termination On
Apnl 9, 2010, Activision Blizzard filed a cross complaint agamst West and Zampella, asserting claims for breach of contract and fiduciary
duty In addition, 38 current and former employees of Infimty Ward filed a complaint against Activision Blizzard in the Los Angeles Superior
Court on Apnil 27, 2010 for breach cf contract and viofation of the Labor Code of the State of Califorma On July 8, 2010, an amended
complaint was filed which added a further seven plantiffs They claim that the company failed to pay bonuses and other compensation
ailegedty owed to them

On December 21, 2010, Activision Blizzard filed a consolidated cross complaint to add Electronic Arts as a party, the discovery having shown
the complicity of Electronic Asts in the case The Los Angeles Court, following Activision Blizzard's request, agreed to transfer the case to
the Complex Division On May 31, 2012, the parties entered into a settlement agreement that ended this dispute

Telefomca against Vivends in Brazil

On May 2, 2011, TELESP, Telefonica's Brazilian subsidiary, filed a claim against Vivend before the Civil Court of Sdo Paulo {3® Vara Civel do
Foro Central da Comarca da Capital do Estado de S&o Paulo) The company Is seeking damages for having been blocked from acquiring
control of GYT and damages in the amount of 15 million Braziian reals (approximately 55 million euros) corresponding to the expenses
incurred by TELESP in connection with ris offer for GVT At the beginning of September, 2011, Vivend: filed an objection to Jurisdiction,
challenging the jurisdiction of the courts of Sdo Paulg to hear a case involving parties from Cuntiba This objection was dismissed on
February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on Apnil 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeals On the ments, Vivend refuted all of Telefanica’s claims In
particular, Vivendr believes that Telefonica cannot claim to have suffered any "loss of chance” considering that its President confirmed in a
public statement that it did not want to outbid Vivend: Vivend: has also filed a counterclaim seeking to be compensated for damages
suffered as a result of the “smear campaign” carried out agawnst Vivends by Telefonica since late 2009

Dynamo against Vivend

On August 24, 2011, the Dynamo investment funds filed a complaint for damages against Vivend: before the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber
(S&o Paulo stock exchange) According to Dynamo, a former shareholder of GVT that sold the vast majonty of its stake in the company before
November 13, 2009 (the date on which Vivend: took contral of GVT), the provision in GVT's bylaws providing for an increase in the per share
purchase price when the 15% threshold 15 crossed (the “poison pill provision”) should allegedly have applied to the acquisition by Vivend
Vivend, noting that this poison pill provision was waived by a GVT General Shareholders” Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivendi
or Telefonica, denies all of Dyname's allegations

Hedging-Griffo against Vivendi

On September 4, 2012, Hedging-Gnifo filed a complaint against Vivend: before the Arbitration Chamber of the Bovespa {S&o Paulo Stock
Exchange) seeking to obtain damages for losses they allegedly incurred due to the conditions under which Vivend completed the acquisition
of GVT 1n 2009 Hedging-Gniffo demanded compensation for the difference between the price at which they sold therr GVT shares on the
market and the price paid by Vivends in connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares Vivend: believes that the decision taken by the
Hedging-Gniffa funds to sell their GVT shares before the end of the stock market battle that opposed Vivends against Telephonica was their
own decision made In the context of their management of these funds and can in no way be attributable to Vivendi

Actions related to the ICMS tax

GVT 15 party in several Brazhan States to various proceedings concerming the application of the “ICMS™ tax ICMS {Impostors Sober
Circulagdos de Mercadornas e Prestagdos de Servigos) 1s a tax on operations relating to the circulation of goods and the supply of transport,
communication and electricity services

On August 5, 2011, Confaz, the national council in charge of coordinating the tax policies of the Brazihian States, published a draft proposal
allowing GVT, as well as all other companies that dispute the application of ICMS on Internet and Broadband services, to enter into
negotiations with the objective of setthng the past disputes and clanfying the rules for the future As of today, GVT has reached agreement
with all of the states in which it operates with the exception of Rio de Janeiro
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In add:tion, GVT 15 a party to hitrgation in vanous Brazlian States concerning the application of the ICMS tax on voice telecommunication
services GVT argues that the ICMS tax should not apply to monthly plans Of the twenty proceedings initated by GVT, eighteen have
resulted in decisions favorable to GVT and twelve are no longer subject to appeal

Action related to the FUST and FUNTTEL taxes in Brazl

The Brazihan tax authoritres argue that the assessment of the taxes known as “FUST” {Fundo da Universalizagdos dos Servigos de
Telecamunicacds), a federal tax to promote the supply of telecommunications services throughout the whole Brazilhan territory, including in
areas that are not economically viable, and "FUNTTEL" {Fundo para Desenvolvimento Tecnolégioco das Telecomunicagtes), a federal tax to
finance technological investments n Brazilan telecommunications services, should be based on the company’s gross revenue without
deduction for price reductions or interconnection expenses and other taxes, which would iead to part of that sum being subject to double
taxation GVT 1s challenging this interpretation and has secured a suspension of payment of the sums claimed by the tax authonty from the
federal judge

Praceedings brought against telecommunications eperators in Brazil regarding the application of the PIS and COFINS taxes

Several proceedings were nitiated against all the telecommunications operators in Brazil, including GVT, seeking to prevent invoices from
being increased by taxes known as “PIS” (Programa de Integragdos Secial) and “COFINS” (Contribuig8e para Financiamento da Seguridade
Social), which are federal taxes that apply to revenue from the provision of telecommunications services GVT believes that the arguments in
Its defense have a stronger basis than those of the historic operators insofar as GVT operates pursuant to a more flexibie license that aliows
It to set 1ts own tariffs
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Major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity

As of December 31, 2012, approximately 690 entities were consolidated or accounted for using the equity method {compared to
approxsmately 590 entities as of Decernber 31, 2011)

Vivands S.A.

Actvision Blizzerd Inc (a)
Actvision Publishing Ing
Blizzard Enterttainmens Inc
ATVICY
Codperatie Actmvsicn Blizzard Internattonal U A
AB Partners CV
Actension Blizzard Benelux BV
Actension Blizard Deutschland GmbH
Agwwviston Bivzard France SA S
Acttvision Bhizzard Pty Limited
Bluzzard Entertainment Korea Limited
Bizzard Enterttainment S A 5
Activision Blizzard UK Limited
Universal Music Group, inc
PolyGram Holding Inc
UMG Recordings Inc
Vevo
SIG 104
Centenary Holding BV
Universal International Music B V
Universal Entertainment GmbH
Universat Music LLC
Universal Music France S A S
Universal Music Holdings Limited
EMI Group Warldwide Holding Ltd
SFR Socété Frangasse du Radiotéléphone S.A.
Société Réuntonnaise du Radioté!éphane S € S
Société Financigre de Distribution § A
Ssur53A
La Poste Telecom
Numermgy
Maroc Telecom S.A
Mauntel $ A
Onatel $ A
Gabaon Telecom 5 A
Sotelma S A
Global Village Telscom (Holding} S.A.
Global Village Tetecom Ltda
POP Internet Ltda
innoweb Ltda
Groupe Cennl+ S.A.
Canal+ France S A
Sociétd d'Edition de Canal Plus (b)
Multithématiques S A 8
TPS Star SNC (¢
Canal+ Overseas SA S
Canai+ Distnbution SA S
08
StudicCanal 5 A
TVN (d
Canaks Cyfrowy S A {d}
VETV {e)
Other
See Tickats
Dugrtick
Vivend: Mabile Entertaimment
Wenge
Elektnm Telekomumkacia

€ Consalidated, E Equity

December 31 2012

December 31 2011

Country Accounting Voting Owmership Accounting Veting Owrnership
Note Method Interest Interest Method Interest Interest
France Parant company Parent company
18 Unrted States c 61.5% 51.5% [4 0% 0%
United States [ 00% 61 5% C 100% 60%
United States C 100% 615% C 100% 60%
Metherlands 4 100% 515% [ 100% 60%
Netherlands [ 100% 515% c 100% 50%
Nethertands [ 100% 515% C 100% 0%
Netherlands [ 100% 615% C 100% 50%
Germany C 100% 615% C 100% 50%
France C 100% &15% C 100% £0%
Australia C 100% 615% C 100% 60%
Korea C 100% 61 5% C 100% 60%
France C 100% 615% ; 100% 50%
United Kingdom C 100% 815% [ 100% B0%
Unrted States [ 100% 100.0% c 100% 100%
Urited States C 100% 106% C 100% 100%
United States C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
United States E 0% 50% E 50% 50%
France C 100% 100% C 100% 160%
Netherlands C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Netherlands c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Germany C 100% 100% G 100% 100%
Japan C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Unrted Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
21 United Kingdom C 100% 100% - -
France 4 100% 1% c 100% 100%
France C 100% 10% c 100% 100%
France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
France [ 100% 100% o 100% 100%
France E 49% 3% E 49% 49%
24 France E 47% 7%
Morocco c oD% &% [ 3% 5%
Maurtansa C 51% 2% C 1% 22%
Buriuna Faso c 51% 7% C 51% 27%
Gabon C 51% 7% C 51% 27%
Mali c 51% 7% C 51% 27%
Brazil c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Braml [ 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
Brazil C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Branl C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
France ¢ 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
Fratce [ 0% BO% C 80% 80%
France c 49% 39% c 49% 39%
France C 100% 80% C 100% 80%
France [ 100% 80%
France [o¢ 100% 0% C 100% 80%
France C 100% 80% C 100% 60%
22 France C 100% 100% .
France [ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
23 Paland E 40% %
23 Poland [ 51% 51% C 5% 75%
Vigtnam C 49% 40% [ 49% 419%
United Kingdom [ 100% 100% % 100% 100%
France [ 100% 100% [ 92% 92%
France C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
France C 100% 5% C 100% 100%
Potand C 100% 100% C 100% 100%

a  Vivend: consolidates Activision Blizzard and its subsidianies because it helds the night to appoint a majority of members to Activision
Blizzard's Board of Directors and thus has the power to govern Activision Blizzard's financial and operational policies in order to obtain
benefits from 1ts operations Until July 2013, the approval of certain matters by the Activision Blizzard Board of Directors requires the
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affirmative vote of a majority of the votes present or otherwise able to be cast by the board and at least a majonty of the independent
directors of the board However, until Juty 2013, the distribution of any dividend by Activision Blizzard requires the affirmative vote of
a majonty of the \ndependent directars If Activiston Blizzard's pro forma net debt, after giving effect to such dividend, exceeds
$400 million  Moreover, due to Activision Blizzard's stock repurchase program, the exercise of stock options, restricted stocks, and
other dilutive instruments by Activision Blizzard's employees, Vivendi's ownership interest in Actwision Blizzard may fluctuate from
time to time

In 2011, Canal+ SA was renamed Société d'Edition de Cana! Plus This company 1s consolidated because {1} Vivendi has majonty
control aver the board of directors, (11} no other shareholder or shareholder group 15 10 a position to exercise substantive participating
rights that would allow them to veto or block decisions taken by Vivendr and {in) Vivendi assumes the magonity of nsks and benefits
pursuant to an agreement with this company via Canal+ Distribution SA S Indeed, Canal+ Distubution, whally-owned by Vivend.,
guarantees this company’s results in return for exclusive commerctal nghts to its subscriber base

On October 1, 2012, the company TPS Star S N C was merged with the company Multithématiques S A S by means of a transfer of
assets

On November 30, 2012, as part of the strategic partnership involving Polish pay-TV, Canal+ Group acquired a 40% interest in N-Vision,
which tndirectly holds 52% of TVN Simultaneously, Canal+ Group's ownership of Canal+ Cyfrowy § A (Cyfra+ platiorm} was diluted
by the contribution of the company ITI Neovision {"n” platform) Therefore, as of December 31, 2012, Canal+ Group held a 51%
interest in Canal+ Cyfrowy, which owns the company IT| Neovision at 100%

VSTV (Vietnam Satellite Digital Television Company Limited) 1s 43% held by Canal+ Group and 51% by VCTV, a VTV subsidiary {the
Vietnamese public television company} This company has been consolidated by Vivend given that Canal+ Group has both operational
and financial control over it due to a general delegation that was granted by the majonty shareholder and to the company’s bylaws

Note 29  Statutory auditors fees

Fees pawd by Vivend SA to its statutory auditors and members of thewr firms in 2012 and 2011 were as follows

KPMG 5 A Ernst & Young et Autres Total
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
(ir rmltions of euros) 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 012 2011 2012 2011
Statutory audit, certification, consohidated and
ndmdual financial statements audit
Issuer 07 07 7% 14% 09 08 12% 1% 16 16
Fully cansolidated subsidharies 41 35 42% 68% 51 50 69% 64% 92 BS
Other work and serwces directly related to the
statutory audst
Issuer 06 01 6% 2% 01 06 1% 8% 07 07
Fully consolidated subsidianes 27 06 28% 12% 04 10 5% 13% 31 15
Subtotal g1 49 83% 96% 65 75 87% 95% 146 124
Other services provided by the network to fully
consolated subsidianes
Legal tax and social matters 12 01 12% 2% 039 01 12% 1% 21 02
Other 04 01 5% 2% 01 02 1% 3% 05 03
Subtotal 16 02 17% 4% 10 03 13% 4% 26 05
Total 97 51 100% 100% 15 18 100% 100% 172 129

The 2012 fees incfuded the non-recurnng assignments undertaken by statutory auditors 1n relation wath the transactions underway
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Note 30  Subsequent events

The main events that occurred between December 31, 2012 and February 18, 2013, the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved the financial statements for the fiscal year 2012 are as follows

January 8, 2013 U S court ruling in the lawsuwit between Vivend) and Liberty Media Corporation {please refer to Note 27),

January 16, 2013 Maroc Telecom and the Moroccan State entered into a fourth capital expenditure agreement (please refer to
Note 26},

February 7, 2013 Vivend and Universal Music Group entered into a definitive agreement to sell Parlophone Label Group, a unit of
EMI Recorded Music, to Warner Music Group for £487 million {approximately €600 million) to be paid in cash,

February 12, 2013 Lagardére Holding TV, a 20% shareholder of Canal+ France, filed a complaint aganst Vivends, Canal+ Group and
Canal+ France with the Pans Commercial Court Lagardére Group 1s seeking restitution, under penalty, from Canal+ Group, of the
entire cash surplus given over by Canal+ France (please refer to Note 27), and

February 15, 2013 Vivend: and Universal Music Group signed a defimtive agreement for the sale of Sanctuary Records to BMG far
£40 milhion to be paid in cash
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Note 31  Audit exemptions for UMG subsidiaries in the United Kingdom

Vivend S A has provided guarantees to the following UMG subsidiaries, incorporated in England and Wales, under the registered number

ind:cated, in order for them to claim exemption from audit under section 479A of the UK Companies Act 2006

Name Company Number
BACKCITE LIMITED 2358972
CENTENARY UK LIMITED 3478918
DECCA MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 718329
UNIVERSAL MUSIC (UK} HOLDINGS LIMITED 3383881 j‘-
UNIVERSAL MUSIC ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED 859087
UNIVERSAL MUSIC GROUP INTERNATIONAL L'MITED 1778189
UNIVERSAL MUSIC HOLDINGS {UK) LIMITED 337803
UNIVERSAL MUSIC LEISURE LIMITED 3384487
DALMATIAN SONGS LIMITED 3506757
DUR DUB PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 3034798
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING BL LIMITED 2037678
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING INTERNATIONAL MGB LIMITED 2200287
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING PGM LIMITED 3782
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING MGB HOLDING UK LIMITED 5092413
UNIVERSAL/ANXIOUS MUSIC LIMITED 1862328
UNIVERSAL/DICK JAMES MUSIC LIMITED 698804
UNIVERSAL/ISLAND MUSIC LIMITED 761597
UNIVERSAL/MCA MUSIC LIMITED 410065
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC Z LIMITED 2850484
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC LIMITED 1946456
HELTER SKELTER AGENCY LIMITED 3522689
SANCTUARY (W AR} LIMITED 5221402
SANCTUARY {UB40) LIMITED 5158521
SANCTUARY ARTIST SERVICES LIMITED 1890289
SANCTUARY MUSIC PUBLISHING COPYRIGHTS LIMITED 2873472
SANCTUARY MUSIC PUBLISHING LIMITED 2898402
SANCTUARY STUDIOS LIMITED 3050388
THE SANCTUARY GROUP LIMITED 284340
V2 MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 3205625
UMGI (ATW} LIMITED 5103127
EMI Music France Holdco Ltd 6405604
EM | Overseas Holdings Ltd 403200
EMI Group Electronics Ltd 461611
EMI Group Holdings (UK} 3158108
EMI Group International Holdings Ltd 1407770
EMI Group Worldwrde 3158106
EMI Ltd 53317
EMI Mustc UK Holdco Lid 6388809
Virgin Music Group 2259349
Virgin Records Overseas Ltd 335444
EMI Music Italy Holdeo Ltd 6420934
EMI Recorded Music Holdings {ltaly) Ltd 6420969
EMI {IP} Ltd 3984464
EMI Catalogue [nvestments Haltand Ltd 3038313
EMI Group Amenca Finance Ltd 2415597
EMI Group Danish investments Ltd 242189
EMI Group Finance Denmark Ltd 2422007
EMI Investments Holland Ltd 3038307
EMI Recorded Music Holdings {UK) Ltd 6407212
EMIG 4 Ltd 3038275
VRL 1 Ltd 3967882
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